
 

 
90 North Main Street | Tooele, Utah 84074 

435-843-2113 | 435-843-2119 (fax) | www.tooelecity.org 

City Recorder’s Office 

Department  

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

Notice is hereby given that the Tooele City Council will meet in a Business Meeting on Wednesday, October 18, 
2023, at approximately 7:15 p.m., or immediately following the MBA Meeting.  The meeting will be held in the 
Tooele City Hall Council Chambers, located at 90 North Main Street, Tooele, Utah. The complete public notice 
is posted on the Utah Public Notice Website www.utah.gov, the Tooele City Website www.tooelecity.org, and at 
Tooele City Hall. To request a copy of the public notice or for additional inquiries please contact Michelle Pitt, 
City Recorder at (435)843-2111 or michellep@tooelecity.org 
 
We encourage you to join the City Council meeting electronically by visiting the Tooele City YouTube 

Channel, at https://www.youtube.com/@tooelecity or by going to YouTube.com and searching “Tooele City 
Channel”. If you are attending electronically and would like to submit a comment for the public comment 
period or for a public hearing item, please email cmpubliccomment@tooelecity.org anytime up until the start of 
the meeting.  Emails will be read at the designated points in the meeting. 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 

2. Roll Call 

3. Mayor’s Golf Tournament Youth Recreation Grant Awards 

4. Public Comment Period 

5. Public Hearing and Motion on Ordinance 2023-37 An Ordinance of Tooele City Adopting the 
Downtown Element to the Tooele City General Plan 

Presented by Jared Stewart, Economic Development Director 
 

6. Public Hearing and Motion on Ordinance 2023-42 An Ordinance of Tooele City to Amend Tooele 
City Code 7-14, Table 5, Regarding Lot Sizes within the In-Fill Area Overly Zone, Amendments 
Proposed by Robert Jalbert 

Presented by Andrew Aagard, Community Development Director 
 

7. Preliminary Subdivision Plan Request for One O-Clock Hill by SJ Company to Subdivide 
Approximately 178 Acres Located at Approximately SR-36 (Main Street) and Settlement Canyon 
Road in the R1-7 Residential Zoning District 

Presented by Andrew Aagard, Community Development Director 
 

8. Resolution 2023-90 A Resolution of the Tooele City Council Consenting to Mayor Winn’s 
Appointments of Eric Niven, Crystal Larmore, and Julie Brough to the Library Board of 
Directors 

Presented by Chase Randall, Library Director 

9. Resolution 2023-91 A Resolution of the Tooele City Council Amending the Tooele City Fee 
Schedule to Add a Bulk Culinary Water  Fee for Limited Commercial Construction 

Presented by Jamie Grandpre, Public Works Director 
 

http://www.tooelecity.org/
http://www.utah.gov/
http://www.tooelecity.org/
https://www.youtube.com/@tooelecity
mailto:cmpubliccomment@tooelecity.org


 

 
90 North Main Street | Tooele, Utah 84074 

435-843-2113 | 435-843-2119 (fax) | www.tooelecity.org 

City Recorder’s Office 

Department  

 
 
 
 

10. Resolution 2023-89 A Resolution of the Tooele City Council Approving a Contract with Black & 
McDonald for Work on City-Owned Street Lights 

Presented by Jamie Grandpre, Public Works Director 

11. Ordinance 2023-41 An Ordinance of Tooele City Amending Tooele City Code Section 10-3-30 
Regarding the Removal of Illegally Parked Cars 

Presented by Adrian Day, Police Chief 
 

12. Resolution 2023-87 A Resolution of the Tooele City Council Authorizing Payment of a Fee-in-Lieu 
of Water Rights Conveyance for the Peterson Industrial Depot’s Development of Central States 
Manufacturing 

Presented by Jared Stewart, Economic Development Director 
 

13. Resolution 2023-88 A Resolution of the Tooele City Council Authorizing Payment of a Fee-in-Lieu 
of Water Rights Conveyance for the Peterson Industrial Depot’s Development of an Indoor 
Pickleball Facility (“The Kitchen”) 

Presented by Jared Stewart, Economic Development Director 
 

14. Invoices & Purchase Orders 
Presented by Michelle Pitt, City Recorder 

15. Minutes 

16. Adjourn 

 

_______________________ 
Michelle Y. Pitt, Tooele City Recorder 
 
Pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act, individuals needing special accommodations should notify 
Michelle Y. Pitt, Tooele City Recorder, at 435-843-2111 or michellep@tooelecity.org, prior to the meeting. 

http://www.tooelecity.org/
mailto:michellep@tooelecity.org


TOOELE CITY CORPORATION 
 

ORDINANCE 2023-37 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF TOOELE CITY ADOPTING THE DOWNTOWN ELEMENT TO 
THE TOOELE CITY GENERAL PLAN. 
 
 WHEREAS, Utah Code § 10-9a-401, et seq., requires and provides for the 
adoption of a “comprehensive, long-range plan” (hereinafter the “General Plan”) by each 
Utah city and town, which General Plan contemplates and provides direction for (a) 
“present and future needs of the community” and (b) “growth and development of all or 
any part of the land within the municipality”; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Tooele City General Plan was adopted by Ordinance 2020-47, on 
December 16, 2020, and includes various elements, including for land use, affordable 
housing, annexation, transportation, economic vitality, and parks, open space, and 
recreation; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, in addition to the General Plan and its elements, the City has adopted 
various master plans, including for culinary water, sanitary sewer, water conservation, 
and storm water; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Administration and Planning Commission propose the 
adoption of a Downtown Master Plan as the Downtown Element to the General Plan; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, historically downtowns have been the economic and social hub of 
cities; downtown areas serve as common spaces where residents instinctively know to 
gather for shopping, business, and performing civic functions; city events such as festivals 
and parades most often occur downtown; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, downtowns are often organized around a core street (e.g., Main Street 
and Vine Street) or a common space such as a plaza or square (e.g., Veteran’s Memorial 
Park); and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Tooele City’s downtown has served residents since the City’s 
incorporation in 1853, beginning as a business district of small shops and government 
services that has expanded into a downtown area that spans from Utah Avenue (200 
North) to 200 South and from Garden Street westward to 100 West on Vine Street, 
covering more than four City blocks; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, downtown areas can be more financially productive per acre than 
larger shopping centers on the outskirts of town: cities thrive when their downtowns thrive; 
and, 
 
 WHEREAS, for a downtown to be fully functional and competitive, it must also be 
interconnected with the surrounding community; a thriving downtown is one in which 



surrounding neighborhoods are supportive, economically integrated, and socially 
connected to Main Street and the downtown area; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Downtown Master Plan effort is intended to encourage Tooele’s 
historic center and downtown to develop and redevelop into a more vibrant center and 
resume its place as the heart of the community; Main Street and adjacent areas will be 
recognized as local and regional destinations, becoming a significant attraction for 
business, living, entertainment, and gathering; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Downtown Master Plan draft attached as Exhibit A was prepared 
by two experienced Utah planners, John Jansen and Jake Young, who both have 
Bachelor’s and Master’s degrees in planning-related fields, are both members of the 
American Planning Association (APA) and American Institute of Certified Planners 
(AICP), and who possess 63 years of combined professional planning experience; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Jansen’s and Young’s preparation of the Downtown Master Plan 
included a rigorous process to obtain public input regarding the public’s perceptions of 
and vision for Tooele City’s downtown; and, 
  
 WHEREAS, Utah Code § 10-9a-403 and § 10-9a-404 provide for the municipal 
legislature to consider General Plan amendment recommendations given by the Planning 
Commission, and to approve, revise, or reject proposed General Plan amendments; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, on October 11, 2023, the Planning Commission convened a duly 
noticed public hearing and voted to forward its recommendation to the City Council (see 
Planning Commission minutes attached as Exhibit B); and, 
 
 WHEREAS, on October 4, 2023, the City Council convened a duly-advertised 
public hearing; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, a Downtown Element to the General Plan is in the best interest of 
Tooele City and its residents and businesses: 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL that 
the Tooele City General Plan is hereby amended by adopting the Downtown Master Plan 
(Exhibit A) as the Downtown Element of the General Plan. 
 
 This Ordinance is necessary for the immediate preservation of the peace, health, 
safety, or welfare of Tooele City and shall become effective immediately upon passage, 
without further publication, by authority of the Tooele City Charter. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Ordinance is passed by the Tooele City Council this 
____ day of _______________, 2023. 



TOOELE CITY COUNCIL 
(For) (Against) 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
ABSTAINING:  ___________________________________________ 
 

MAYOR OF TOOELE CITY 
(Approved) (Disapproved) 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Michelle Y. Pitt, City Recorder 
 
        
 
 
S E A L 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form: __________________________________ 
    Roger Evans Baker, Tooele City Attorney 
 



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Exhibit A 
 
 
 

Downtown Master Plan  



 
 
 

Exhibit B 
 
 
 

Planning Commission Minutes: 
 



 
 

 

 

Tooele City General Plan 8.1 
Downtown  Element  October 2023 

D
   

O
   

W
   

N
   

T 
  O

   
W

   
N

   
   

  E
   

L 
  E

   
M

   
E 

  N
   

T
 

Downtown Element 
 

Introduction  
 
Historically, downtowns have 
been the economic and social 
hub of cities. Downtown areas 
serve as common spaces 
where residents instinctively 
know to gather for shopping, 
business, and performing civic 
functions. City events such as 
festivals and parades most 
often occur downtown. 
Downtowns are often 
organized around a core street 
(Main Street/Center Street) or 
a common space such as a 
plaza or square. With the 
growth of suburbs, suburban 
malls, online shopping, and the 
migration of residents, many American downtowns have become 
hollowed out, vacant, and economically depressed. However, even neglected downtown areas can be more 
financially productive per acre than larger shopping centers on the outskirts of town. Cities thrive when their 
downtowns thrive.  
 
Tooele City’s Downtown has a historic past. It has served residents since the City’s incorporation in 1853. It 
began as a business district of small shops and government services that has expanded into a Downtown area 
that spans from Utah Avenue (200 North) to 200 South and from Garden Street westward to 100 West on Vine 
Street. Downtown Tooele covers more than four entire City blocks.  
 
The Downtown Tooele area is home to: 

• City and County Offices. 

• Tooele County Chamber of Commerce. 

• U.S. Post Office. 

• Veteran’s Memorial Park. 

• Historic Ritz Theater (began operating in 1939). 

• Tooele Transcript Bulletin (the oldest continuous business in Tooele City). 

• Entertainment (Drop Zone U Fun Center, an Escape Studio, rentable event space, and one bar). 

• Restaurants (Virg’s, Green Burrito, Vista Linda, Dairy Delight, Dimitri’s Café). 

• Shops, retail stores, barbershops & salons, offices, ecclesiastical spaces, and other businesses. 
 

Figure 1 – Aerial Photo of Tooele City Downtown  



 

Tooele City General Plan 8.2 
Downtown Element  UPDATE:  ___DATE 

D
   O

   W
   N

   T   O
   W

   N
        E   L   E   M

   E   N
   T

 

               
 

 

 

Recent changes have affected Downtown, and plans have been made for area improvements. These plans 

include: 

• The addition of on-street parking on the west side of Main Street in 2023, just south of the post office 
parking. 

• Participation in the Utah Main Street Program, including implementation of a state-funded façade 
improvements program with solicitations to property owners to apply. 

• The re-establishment of a Downtown Alliance; a group of business and community members 
committed to improvements in downtown. 

• A UDOT study looking at traffic calming and beautification. 

• The creation and approval of a Historic District into the National Register of Historic Places (allowing for 
historic rehabilitation tax credits). 

• Art and mural projects, funded by public and private donations.  

• A wayfinding signage grant through the State Historic Preservation Office (2023). 
 

Figure 2 – Historic Photos of Downtown Tooele City 



 
 

 

 

Tooele City General Plan 8.3 
Downtown  Element  October 2023 

D
   

O
   

W
   

N
   

T 
  O

   
W

   
N

   
   

  E
   

L 
  E

   
M

   
E 

  N
   

T
 

 
The boundaries of “downtown” Tooele may change over time. Tooele City has established a Downtown Overlay 
zone (Tooele City Code 7-16-2), which applies to properties between Utah Avenue (north), 100 South (south), 
Garden Street (east), and 50 West (west). While all of “downtown” is zoned for General Commercial uses, the 
Downtown Overlay has specific allowances and requirements which can be viewed in City Code.  
 
In 2019 the State Historic Preservation Office identified boundaries based on the significance of historic 
commercial structures still existing in the downtown area. These were primarily non-residential. State 
recommendations informed the Historic District boundaries as listed on the National Register of Historic Places. 
The listing may be found at https://ushpo.utah.gov/shpo/national-register/.  

 
For Downtown to be fully functional and competitive, it must also be interconnected with the surrounding 
community. A thriving downtown is one in which surrounding neighborhoods are supportive, economically 
integrated, and socially 
connected to Main Street and 
the downtown area. Today 
more individuals and families 
are determining where to live 
based on the nature of the 
place rather than the cost of 
living or the location of their 
jobs. There is a growing need 
for developing walkable, 
vibrant, safe, and beautiful 
places to attract new 
residents, businesses, and 
tourism. Tooele City has the 
opportunity to capitalize on 
its existing features and 
incorporate new approaches 
to restore Downtown as the 
heart and soul of the City. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure 3 – Map of the Tooele City 
Downtown Historic District as 
developed with the State Historic 
Preservation Office. 

https://ushpo.utah.gov/shpo/national-register/


 

Tooele City General Plan 8.4 
Downtown Element  UPDATE:  ___DATE 

D
   O

   W
   N

   T   O
   W

   N
        E   L   E   M

   E   N
   T

 

Vision for Downtown 
 

Tooele’s historic center and downtown will (re)develop into a vibrant center and 
become the heart of the community. Main Street and adjacent areas will be 

recognized as local and regional destinations. Downtown will be re-imagined as a 
significant place for business, living, entertainment, and gathering. 

 

Downtown Goals and Strategies 
The following actions have been crafted and evaluated throughout the planning process to help Tooele City 

realize its vision for Downtown: 

 
Goal #1: Main Street (Street and Streetscape) 
Collaborate with UDOT to change downtown Main Street into a place that is safe, comfortable, and pleasant for 
people walking, biking, driving vehicles, and using transit. 

 
Strategies 

• Work with UDOT to plan for and move forward on a Mid-valley Highway (a truck route bypass). 

• Implement traffic calming methods (bulb-outs, crosswalks, planters, pedestrian crossings, etc.). Do so 
in partnership with UDOT in strategic locations identified to not reduce traffic lanes.  

• Beautify the streetscape with street trees, planter beds, and seasonal pots with flowers. 

• Install additional streetscape furniture, including benches, banners, unique lights/posts, drinking 
fountains, and trash/recycle receptacles. 

• Install unique sculptures and art. 
o Tooele City recently added Bison sculptures.  
o This could include art pieces and sculptures which are available for purchase (to offer change 

periodically). 

• Work with UDOT to lower the Main Street speed limit Downtown. 
 
Street and Streetscape Priorities (next five years) 

- Choose two beautification projects to accomplish within the 5-year timeframe.  
- Choose two traffic calming projects to accomplish within the 5-year timeframe. 
- Evaluate several street lighting alternatives and choose one to provide a distinct sense of arrival. 

Continue the chosen street light east and west in the downtown area (Vine Street). 
- Survey respondents ranked street amenities (trees, lighting, benches, planter boxes, etc.) as the 

most important improvement to Main Street. 
 



 
 

 

 

Tooele City General Plan 8.5 
Downtown  Element  October 2023 

D
   

O
   

W
   

N
   

T 
  O

   
W

   
N

   
   

  E
   

L 
  E

   
M

   
E 

  N
   

T
 

 
Goal #2: Visual Appearance 
Work with landowners, business leaders, and community members to invest in remodels and new construction 
to create a beautiful and unique Downtown character. 
 

 
Strategies 

• Continue regular meetings with business and property owners; provide information about grants and 
encourage application. 

• Seek and apply for grants to assist in remodels and façade improvements for buildings. 

• Review and update zoning ordinances/design standards for buildings, signs (including blade/projecting 
signs), and landscaping. 

• Provide incentives to landowners and developers to improve the aesthetics of their properties on 
existing and new construction. 

• Implement water-wise landscaping to beautify the Downtown area with trees, plants, and seasonal 
flowers. 

• Improve parking area pavement, markings, access, and lighting; consider purchasing privately owned 
parking lots as possible.  

 
Visual Appearance Priorities (next five years) 

- Consider the types of trees planted on Downtown streets. Consider the Tooele City Street Tree guide 
and choose trees that will provide shade and visibility to the adjacent business. Consider more than one 
type of tree, especially for the side streets. Flowering trees could create a seasonal interest. Strategically 
plant trees on the boundary of buildings to increase visibility.  

- Target several businesses to encourage participation in storefront/façade enhancements. 
- Modify the downtown commercial zoning to emphasize historical design and consider adopting design 

standards.  
- Promote Downtown with consistent branding both on signage and digital content. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Tooele City General Plan 8.6 
Downtown Element  UPDATE:  ___DATE 

D
   O

   W
   N

   T   O
   W

   N
        E   L   E   M

   E   N
   T

 

 
Goal #3: Gathering Places 
Improve existing and develop additional outdoor gathering places that can host both large and small community 
events. Gathering places should be multi-functional and provide a sense of place to visitors and residents. 
 
 

 
Strategies 

• Consider modifications to Veteran’s Memorial Park to be an active space that creates additional reasons 
for people to visit repeatedly. If privately owned parking lots adjacent to City property could be 
acquired, consider expanding the size of Veteran’s Memorial Park to accommodate larger events. 

• Maintain and improve Vine Street to continue to provide a unique role in the Downtown area. 

• Improve additional side street streetscapes, businesses, and land uses to offer more options and a 
network of walkable and mixed-use streets (with recognition that public right of way is limited). 

• Identify properties that could be targeted for redevelopment and coordinate with property owners to 
improve utilization of non-historically contributing properties.  

• Create additional smaller gathering places for outdoor dining, street shopping, and residents. Additional 
gathering places may include alleys, courtyards, parklets, and others. 

• Get people Downtown 250+ days per year. Add programed activities at Veteran’s Memorial Park; 
consider a plaza design, programing, and management plan. Coordinate with partners (Downtown 
Alliance or Tooele City Arts Council, as examples) to operate programs.  
 

 
Gathering Places Priorities (next five years) 

- Acquire privately owned parking lots to maximize efficiency of existing spaces and bring more people 
downtown. 

- Develop a plan to create an active community space at Veteran’s Memorial Park; consider expansion 
of the park and improved amenities that would give people reasons to spend time downtown. 

- Extend street improvements/beautification efforts to 100 East and 100 West to create distinction for 
the downtown and better connections to the adjacent neighborhoods. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

 

Tooele City General Plan 8.7 
Downtown  Element  October 2023 

D
   

O
   

W
   

N
   

T 
  O

   
W

   
N

   
   

  E
   

L 
  E

   
M

   
E 

  N
   

T
 

 
Goal #4: Land Use 
Develop a vibrant, mixed-use Downtown with significant opportunities for businesses, residential living, and 
entertainment. 

 
Strategies 

• Continue to remove barriers to attract and develop additional Downtown residential living 
opportunities. Housing choices should include a variety of options for both low-income and market 
rate. Consider water conservation policies to minimize the water impact of new development. 
Incentivize quality housing projects in Downtown. 

• Continue to promote mixed-used buildings and development. 

• Focus economic development efforts on expanding and retaining existing business. Advertise the 
vacancies and changes.  

• Consider creative finance mechanisms to assist downtown development and improvements; grants, 
tax-based, and other.   

• Coordinate with the Downtown Alliance, the Tooele County Chamber of Commerce, and businesses to 
promote best practices. This could include (for example) principles from National Main Street America 
such as consistent business hours and storefront window displays. 

• Foster relationships between property owners; empower multi-owner private reinvestment projects. 

• Consider ways to help property owners meet building code requirements and improve safety in an 
affordable manner.  

 
Land Use Priorities (next five years) 

- Review City ordinances and policies to create more incentives for housing development within the 
Downtown area. 

- Resolve any identified barriers to downtown development, such as water availability, parking, and 
connectivity.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 

Tooele City General Plan 8.8 
Downtown Element  UPDATE:  ___DATE 

D
   O

   W
   N

   T   O
   W

   N
        E   L   E   M

   E   N
   T

 

 
Goal #5: Parking and Connectivity 
Improve existing parking areas, alleys, and secondary streets to create a network for both pedestrians and 
vehicles. 
 

 
 
Strategies 

• Create a plan to improve Garden Street and 50 West for an enhanced pedestrian experience. 
Incorporate these secondary roads into City events. 

• Create a parking network with connections to Main. Coordinate public parking and consider wayfinding 
efforts to help visitors find existing parking.  

• Identify and select specific alleys to be more pedestrian and business friendly. 

• Promote the use of the alley for outdoor dining, not as just a delivery and parking space. 

• Coordinate and improve shared parking opportunities for businesses, residents, landowners, and 
government organizations. Maximize parking resources without consuming unnecessary land for 
parking. Consider re-striping parking to maximize use.  

• Review and update parking policies and ordinances. 

• Explore the use of a parking district and acquisition of privately-owned lots. 

• Develop and implement wayfinding parking signage to help visitors, residents, employees, and others 
easily find parking areas, including those behind buildings. 

 
Parking and Alleys Priorities (next five years) 

- Identify one west side alley running east and west to transform as a demonstration space to increase 
gathering and business activity.  

- Work with private property owners adjacent to Veteran’s Memorial Park to create more shared 
parking, especially for events. 

- Enhance 50 West to allow for better pedestrian access and outdoor dining. 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

 

Tooele City General Plan 8.9 
Downtown  Element  October 2023 

D
   

O
   

W
   

N
   

T 
  O

   
W

   
N

   
   

  E
   

L 
  E

   
M

   
E 

  N
   

T
 

 
Goal #6: Destination for Activities and Entertainment 
Develop Downtown as a regional destination with activities and entertainment for families, residents, and 
visitors. 

 
 
Strategies 

• Develop a unique Downtown Tooele City brand that is known throughout the region. 

• Promote and encourage appropriate businesses and activity centers that will attract and benefit 
teenagers. 

• Develop a program that plans Downtown activities for more than 250 days a year and daily interest. 

• Continue to run and expand Tooele City’s established Downtown events and activities. Develop and 
promote new events for Main Street and Downtown. Work with businesses, non-profits, and the 
Downtown Alliance when planning events. 

• Create a capital improvement plan to address upgrades to existing venues and plans for new venues. 

• Focus on attracting businesses, restaurants, and entertainment to make Downtown an experience. 

• Pursue funding and grant opportunities. 

• Incorporate restaurants and food trucks into events to improve attendance and support businesses. 
 
Destination for Activities and Entertainment Priorities (next five years) 

- Consider expanding the Downtown to 100 East and 100 West to create more opportunities in the 
Downtown area. 

- Work on the Veteran’s Memorial Park to become an active place.  Activity in the Park will create more 
demand for new and existing businesses. 

- Create connections to 50 West that involve spreading the activity to the secondary road. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Tooele City General Plan 8.10 
Downtown Element  UPDATE:  ___DATE 

D
   O

   W
   N

   T   O
   W

   N
        E   L   E   M

   E   N
   T

 

Downtown Planning Process 

From Fall 2022 to Summer 2023, the City developed the Downtown Master Plan utilizing a planning 

process that included the following: 

• Stakeholder Focus Groups: The 
planning team held three focus 
groups to gain insight into 
Downtown needs. Groups were 
comprised of English- and Spanish-
speaking business owners, 
employees, residents, developers, 
and City staff and officials. Key 
takeaways from these sessions 
included: 

o A desire for greater 
community awareness of 
what is available 
Downtown. 

o The need for grant 
acquisition to address high 
rent and buildout costs 
(which have created long-
term vacancies of both 
commercial and residential 
units Downtown). 

o Discussion regarding the 
use of Downtown open 
space, including deliberation on 
whether to increase the use of Veterans Park and other existing gathering spaces or to 
develop a new community plaza. 

o Freight/truck traffic on Main Street and the associated noise create uncomfortable 
conditions for pedestrians and visitors.  

 

• Public Survey: The planning team conducted a public online survey to learn about stakeholder 
interests and concerns regarding the Downtown area. There were 613 survey responses, a 
majority of which came from Tooele City residents. Survey responses revealed the following: 

o There is little housing availability Downtown. Many respondents, however, expressed 
that there is already too much housing in the City and they want to stop the growth they 
see happening. 

o There is a lack of vibrancy Downtown. Respondents long for walkability and outdoor 
events, citing desirable characteristics like landscape features, murals and art, lighting 
(seasonal and for safety), bike routes, and a consistent event schedule and location. 

o There is a common desire for more dining and shopping variety. Respondents want new 
businesses—both locally-owned, small businesses as well as major chains and magnets—
but they are deterred by current shops that are hard to find and have poor service or 
hours of operation. 

 



 
 

 

 

Tooele City General Plan 8.11 
Downtown  Element  October 2023 

D
   

O
   

W
   

N
   

T 
  O

   
W

   
N

   
   

  E
   

L 
  E

   
M

   
E 

  N
   

T
 

 

• Presentation to Planning Commission: The planning team presented its analysis of stakeholder 
responses to the Planning Commission and City Council with recommendations, including: 

o Developing destination gathering places. 
o Promoting mixed-use development, including housing, to bring new investment 

Downtown. 
o Making Main Street more beautiful and pedestrian-friendly, including traffic calming as 

much as possible. 
o Promoting Vine Street, alleys, and other side streets as pedestrian destinations. 
o Maximizing existing parking through signage, striping, and shared parking arrangements. 

 

• Draft of Vision, Goals, and Strategies: The team drafted elements of this Downtown Master Plan 
in preparation for presentation to the public. 

 

• Public Open House and Survey: The team held a public open house in City Hall displaying 
preliminary goals and strategies and seeking public insight via an online survey. Responses to the 
survey expressed majority support for the goals. Survey respondents ranked street amenities 
(trees, lighting, benches, planter boxes, etc.) as the most important improvement to Main Street.  



TOOELE CITY CORPORATION 
 

ORDINANCE 2023-42 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF TOOELE CITY AMENDING TOOELE CITY CODE CHAPTER 7-
14, TABLE 5, REGARDING MINIMUM LOT SIZE FOR LOTS WITHIN THE IN-FILL 
AREA OVERLAY DISTRICT. 
 
 WHEREAS, Utah Constitution, Article XI, Section 5 directly confers upon Utah’s 
charter cities, including Tooele City, “the authority to exercise all powers relating to 
municipal affairs, and to adopt and enforce within its limits, local police, sanitary and 
similar regulations not in conflict with the general law”; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, UCA Section 10-8-84 enables Tooele City to “pass all ordinances and 
rules, and make all regulations . . . as are necessary and proper to provide for the safety 
and preserve the health, and promote the prosperity, improve the morals, peace and good 
order, comfort, and convenience of the city and its inhabitants, and for the protection of 
property in the city”; and, 
  
 WHEREAS, UCA Chapter 10-9a Part 5 authorizes Utah municipalities to enact 
land use regulations (formerly commonly known as zoning ordinances), for example, 
building heights; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Robert Jalbert has submitted an application requesting that Table 5 
of the In-Fill Area Overlay be amended to include an additional row that would permit lots 
within Geographic areas “A” and “B” of the In-Fill Overlay to be reduced in size to 80% of 
the minimum lot size requirement of the underlying zoning district; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, reducing the lot size to 80% of the minimum lot size requirement of 
the underlying zoning district would provide existing In-Fill Area Lots just shy of the 
acreage necessary to subdivide the opportunity to subdivide, enable more development 
possibilities for existing lots, utilize existing public infrastructure and assist in providing 
reductions in costs for new housing units; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, minimum lots widths and building setbacks would not be impacted by 
this proposed amendment; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, reducing the lot size to 80% of the minimum lot size requirement of 
the underlying zoning district would increase the unit density of 1 acre of subdividable 
property in the In-Fill Area Overlay from approximately 5 units per acre to approximately 
6 units per acre; and,  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council discussed the request in its October 4, 2023, public 
work meeting (see the presentation attached as Exhibit A and, 
 



 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission convened a public hearing, as required by 
UCA 10-9a-205 for land use regulations and by TCC 7-1A-6 for revisions to the City 
zoning ordinance, on October 11, 2023 and voted to recommend approval of this 
ordinance to the City Council (see the Staff Report attached as Exhibit B and the Planning 
Commission minutes attached as Exhibit C); and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council convened a public hearing, as required by TCC 7-1A-
6 for revisions to the City zoning ordinance, on October 18, 2023; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this ordinance is in the best interest of 
Tooele City because the reduction in lot size will enable existing In-Fill Area Lots just shy 
of the acreage necessary to subdivide the opportunity to subdivide, enable more 
development possibilities for existing lots, utilize existing public infrastructure and assist 
in providing reductions in costs for new housing units. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL that 
Tooele City Code Chapter 7-14, Table 5, is hereby amended as shown in Exhibit D. 
 

This Ordinance is necessary for the immediate preservation of the peace, health, 
safety, and welfare of Tooele City and its residents and businesses and shall become 
effective upon passage, without further publication, by authority of the Tooele City 
Charter. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Ordinance is passed by the Tooele City Council this 
____ day of _______________, 202_. 



TOOELE CITY COUNCIL 
(For) (Against) 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
ABSTAINING:  ___________________________________________ 
 

MAYOR OF TOOELE CITY 
(Approved) (Disapproved) 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
Michelle Y. Pitt, City Recorder 
        
 
           S E A L 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form: ___________________________ 

Roger Evans Baker, City Attorney 
  



 
 
 
 

Exhibit A 
 
 
 

August 2, 2023, City Council  
Public Work Meeting Presentation 

 

 



 

 
 



 
 

 
 



 
 

 
 



 
 

 
  



 
 
 
 

Exhibit B 
 
 
 

Staff Report 
 
 

  



 

 
Amusement Facilities  App. # P20-833 
City Code Text Amendment Request 1  

Community Development Department 
 

STAFF REPORT 
October 4, 2023

 
To: Tooele City Planning Commission 

Business Date:  October 11, 2023 
 
From: Planning Division 

Community Development Department 
 
Prepared By: Andrew Aagard, Community Development Director 
 
Re: In-Fill Area Overlay – Ordinance Text Amendment Request 

Applicant: Robert W Jalbert 
Request: Request for approval of a Code Text Amendment regarding proposed revisions 

to the Tooele City Code 7-14 Table 5 In-Fill Overlay District Development 
Standards regarding minimum lot sizes.   

 
BACKGROUND 
 
This application is a request for approval of Code Text Amendment to the Table of Development Standards for 
lots in the In-Fill Area Overlay Districts as defined in Table 5 of Tooele City Code 7-14.  The proposed text 
amendment addresses minimum lot sizes for lots within the overlay district.     
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Purpose.  The applicant owns approximately .28 acres at the southeast corner of the intersection of 400 
South and Coleman Street.  There is on this property an existing residential structure that is located closer 
to the property line adjacent to Coleman Street.  The location of this residential structure leaves ample 
room to the east of the structure to create a new single-family residential lot of similar size and 
configuration to other single-family residential lots located within this area.  However, the property is 
zoned R1-7 Residential and the R1-7 zone prohibits lots smaller than 7,000 square feet.  Therefore, in 
order to qualify for a subdivision a property must have at least 14,000 square feet or more in order to 
create two new lots of 7,000 square feet.   
 
The applicant’s property currently contains 12,196 square feet which puts it approximately 1800 square 
feet shy of the 14,000 square feet required to subdivide.  If a subdivision were to occur on this lot each lot 
would be approximately 6,098 square feet in size instead of the 7,000 square feet.   
 
The applicant would like to have the In-Fill Area Overlay Table of Development Standards amended to 
enable a subdivision of this lot and other lots that are in a similar situation as this one.   
 
Ordinances Affected.  The following ordinance will be affected by this proposed ordinance amendment.   
 

1. Title 7 Chapter 14 Table 5 In-Fill Overlay District Development Standards 
 
Scope.  This ordinance amendment is limited only to properties located the In-Fill Area Overlay Zones 
including Geographic Area A and Geographic Area B.     
 
The In-Fill Area Overlay.  What is the purpose of the In-Fill Area Overlay and why has the City defined 
Geographic Areas “A” and “B?”  The In-Fill Area Overlay was created and is intended to encourage 
development and re-development of properties interior to the City where roads, sewer systems and water 
systems have been constructed and where new development or re-development will not require the expense of 



 

 
Amusement Facilities  App. # P20-833 
City Code Text Amendment Request 2  

expansion of necessary infrastructure.  Many of these properties in the In-Fill Area are parcels of record and 
were created decades ago when zoning restrictions and proper subdivision platting procedures were non-
existent.  As a result these lots are long and narrow or of otherwise unique configuration and difficult to develop 
under today’s zoning development standards. 
 
In order to encourage development on properties located in the In-Fill Area reductions in typical development 
standards are provided.  This also makes development on uniquely configured properties a little easier.  
Properties in the In-Fill area have reduced front, rear and side yard setbacks, greater allowances for total lot 
coverage and a reduction in the cost of fee-in-lieu water purchases from the City.  The In-Fill Area is silent 
when it comes to lot size.   
 
Proposed Amendments.   The lots adjacent to the applicant’s property are located in a subdivision recorded prior 
to 1971 and many of those lots are .14 acres in size or 12,196 square feet.  Most of those lots within that 
subdivision do not meet the 7,000 square foot lot size requirement.  In order to facilitate a subdivision of his 
parcel into two .14 acre lots, similar to other lots in the area, the applicant is requesting that an additional row be 
added to Table 5 that states the following:   
 
“Lot Size” and “May reduce to 80% of the underlying zoning district.”  This would apply to all lots within the 
Geographic Areas “A” and “B.”      
 
Impacts.  If this ordinance amendment were to be adopted by the Tooele City Council, what kind of impact 
would it have on development in the City?  Staff has analyzed both geographic areas in the In-Fill areas and 
there are some larger undeveloped parcels that, if they developed, might have slight increases in density.  
Currently the R1-7 Residential zone has a net density of about 6 units per acre.  A reduction in lot size would 
slightly increase the density to 7 units per acre.   
 
For example, if one has 1 acre or 43,560 square feet in the In-fill area, going by gross acreage alone and not 
considering land lost for roads and infrastructure, they could have a lot yield of 6 lots under current R1-7 
standards.  If lots sizes were able to be reduced by 20% that would increase lot yield to 7 lots and that might not 
even be possible when considering the amount of property that goes towards roads, detention basins, etc.  So 
there is a possibility of seeing negligible increases in densities.  If a twenty acre parcel is developed in the In-Fill 
area using the 20% reduction in lot size could, possibly, yield an additional 20 units than what would be 
permitted in a standard R1-7 subdivision. 
 
Benefits and Detriments.  There are benefits and detriments to every zoning code amendment.  Staff has 
analyzed the proposed request and has identified the following benefits this amendment could provide the City’s 
in-fill areas:   

1. Greater flexibility for lots that don’t have sufficient acreage to qualify for subdivision.  Some lots may 
be slightly under the necessary acreage for subdivision, such as the applicant’s parcel.  This amendment 
would provide greater ability for unused portions of existing lots to become individual lots themselves.   

2. Providing additional, slightly smaller lots serviced by existing infrastructure could serve to reduce the 
overall cost of the homes in the In-Fill Areas.   

3. Encourage more development in the In-Fill Area Overlay zones and provide more housing in areas 
where infrastructure is established.   

4. Having the In-Fill Area ordinance established provides Tooele City with a unique opportunity to assist 
and encourage more development in the In-Fill Area.  All we have to do is amend the table where in 
other zones in order to accomplish this would require a new overlay creation or amendment to the 
zoning district itself.  The In-Fill is already established which makes a change such as that being 
proposed here more simple to implement.  

 
What are some of the detrimental impacts this proposed text amendment could have?  Staff have identified a 
couple of potential impacts but these are relatively general and aren’t necessarily going to happen.   

1. Proposed amendment will not just affect the applicant’s property but every property located in 



 

 
Amusement Facilities  App. # P20-833 
City Code Text Amendment Request 3  

Geographic Areas “A” and “B.”   
2. Ripple effects to other ordinances that are dependent upon lot size that cannot be identified at this time.   
3. Larger undeveloped parcels of land within the In-Fill area will receive a slight increase in net density as 

demonstrated above.  However, the net density increases are negligible and would not be discernable to 
the lay person driving by the new development.   

4. Slightly increased densities for larger parcels would have additional impacts on existing water and 
sewer systems.   

 
Criteria For Approval.  The criteria for review and potential approval of a City Code Text Amendment request 
is found in Sections 7-1A-7 of the Tooele City Code.  This section depicts the standard of review for such 
requests as: 

 
(1) No amendment to the Zoning Ordinance or Zoning Districts Map may be recommended by the 

Planning Commission or approved by the City Council unless such amendment or conditions 
thereto are consistent with the General Plan.  In considering a Zoning Ordinance or Zoning 
Districts Map amendment, the applicant shall identify, and the City Staff, Planning 
Commission, and City Council may consider, the following factors, among others: 
(a) The effect of the proposed amendment on the character of the surrounding area. 
(b) Consistency with the goals and policies of the General Plan and the General Plan 

Land Use Map. 
(c) Consistency and compatibility with the General Plan Land Use Map for adjoining and 

nearby properties. 
(d) The suitability of the properties for the uses proposed viz. a. viz. the suitability of the 

properties for the uses identified by the General Plan. 
(e) Whether a change in the uses allowed for the affected properties will unduly affect the 

uses or proposed uses for adjoining and nearby properties. 
(f) The overall community benefit of the proposed amendment. 

 
REVIEWS 
 
Planning Division Review.   The Tooele City Planning Division has completed their review of the City Code 
Text Amendment request and has issued the following comment: 
 

1. There will be impacts generated by this ordinance amendment as there are impacts generated by every 
ordinance amendment.  However, Staff is confident that this ordinance amendment will serve to 
encourage even more development in the In-Fill Areas and help to fill in vacant areas that currently do 
not qualify for subdivision due to a lack of lot size.   

2. The impacts of a reduction in lot size by 20% would be negligible on larger properties in the In-Fill Area.   
 
Engineering and Public Works Review.   The Tooele City Engineering and Public Works Divisions do not 
typically review legislative matters such as ordinance amendments and as such have not reviewed or issued 
comments for this application.    
 
Fire Department Review.   The Tooele City Fire Department does not typically review legislative matters such 
as ordinance amendments and as such has not reviewed or issued comments for this application.    
 
Noticing.  The City has expressed their desire to amend the City Code and do so in a manner which is compliant 
with the City Code.  As such, notice has been properly issued in the manner outlined in the City and State 
Codes. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission carefully weigh this request for a City Code Text Amendment 



 

 
Amusement Facilities  App. # P20-833 
City Code Text Amendment Request 4  

according to the appropriate tenets of the Utah State Code and the Tooele City Code, particularly Section 7-1A-
7(1) and render a decision in the best interest of the community with any conditions deemed appropriate and 
based on specific findings to address the necessary criteria for making such decisions. 
 
Potential topics for findings that the Commission should consider in rendering a decision: 
 

1. The effect the text amendment may have on potential applications regarding the character of 
the surrounding areas. 

2. The degree to which the proposed text amendment may effect a potential application’s 
consistency with the intent, goals, and objectives of any applicable master plan. 

3. The degree to which the proposed text amendment may effect a potential application’s 
consistency with the intent, goals, and objectives of the Tooele City General Plan. 

4. The degree to which the proposed text amendment is consistent with the requirements and 
provisions of the Tooele City Code. 

5. The suitability of the proposed text amendment on properties which may utilize its provisions 
for potential development applications.  

6. The degree to which the proposed text amendment may effect an application’s impact on the 
health, safety, and general welfare of the general public or the residents of adjacent properties. 

7. The degree to which the proposed text amendment may effect an application’s impact on the 
general aesthetic and physical development of the area. 

8. The degree to which the proposed text amendment may effect the uses or potential uses for 
adjoining and nearby properties. 

9. The overall community benefit of the proposed amendment. 
10. Other findings the Commission deems appropriate to base their decision upon for the proposed 

application. 
 

MODEL MOTIONS  
 
Sample Motion for a Positive Recommendation – “I move we forward a positive recommendation to the City 
Council for the Tooele City In-Fill Area Overlay Text Amendment request by Rober Jalbert for the purpose of 
reducing lot sizes by 20% for lots located within Geographic Areas “A” and “B”, based on the following 
findings:” 
 

1. List findings … 
 
Sample Motion for a Negative Recommendation – “I move we forward a negative recommendation to the City 
Council for the Tooele City In-Fill Area Overlay Text Amendment request by Rober Jalbert for the purpose of 
reducing lot sizes by 20% for lots located within Geographic Areas “A” and “B”, based on the following 
findings:” 
 

1. List findings … 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

Exhibit C 
 
 
 

Planning Commission Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Exhibit D 

Proposed Text Amendment 
 



Development Standard Geographic Area A Geographic Area B Nonconforming Lot/Parcel 

Minimum Front Yard Setback May reduce to 65% of underlying zoning 
district 

May reduce to 80% of underlying zoning 
district 

May reduce to 90% of underlying zoning 
district, or to historic foundation line, whichever 

is less 

Minimum Lot Width at Front Setback (all 
residential uses in residential zones) 

May reduce to 80% of underlying zoning 
district 

May reduce to 80% of underlying zoning 
district Per underlying zoning district 

Minimum Garage Setback 25 feet 25 feet 25 feet 

Minimum Rear Yard Setback (interior lot) May reduce to 65% of underlying zoning 
district 

May reduce to 80% of underlying zoning 
district 

May reduce to 90% of underlying zoning 
district, or to historic foundation line, whichever 

is less 

Minimum Rear Yard Setback (corner lot) May reduce to 65% of underlying zoning 
district 

May reduce to 80% of underlying zoning 
district 

May reduce to 90% of underlying zoning 
district, or to historic foundation line, whichever 

is less 

Minimum Side Yard Setback (interior lot) May reduce to 65% of underlying zoning 
district, or to 5 feet, whichever is greater 

May reduce to 80% of underlying zoning 
district, or to 5 feet, whichever is greater 

May reduce to 90% of underlying zoning 
district, or to 5 feet, whichever is greater, or to 

historic foundation line 

Minimum Side Yard Setback (corner lot) May reduce to 65% of underlying zoning 
district, or to 5 feet, whichever is greater 

May reduce to 80% of underlying zoning 
district, or to 5 feet, whichever is greater 

May reduce to 90% of underlying zoning 
district, or to 5 feet, whichever is greater, or to 

historic foundation line 

Total Lot Coverage (all buildings) May increase to 135% of underlying zoning 
district 

May increase to 120% of underlying zoning 
district 

May increase to 110% of underlying zoning 
district 

Lot Size May reduce to 80% of underlying zoning 
district. 

May reduce to 80% of underlying zoning 
district. 

May reduce to 80% of underlying zoning 
district. 

Roadway Improvements Required As required by Tooele City Code As required by Tooele City Code As required by Tooele City Code 



Water Rights (payment of fee in lieu of 
conveyance-for single-lot developments only) 

Pay 50% of the fee-in-lieu established by the 
City 

Pay 75% of the fee-in-lieu established by the 
City 

Pay 100% of the fee-in-lieu established by the 
City 

 



 

 
One O'Clock Hill  App. # P22-1001 
Preliminary Subdivision Plan Request 1  

Community Development Department 
 

STAFF REPORT 
October 5, 2023

 
To: Tooele City Planning Commission 

Business Date:  October 11, 2023 
 
From: Planning Division 

Community Development Department 
 
Prepared By: Andrew Aagard, City Planner / Zoning Administrator 
 
Re: One O'Clock Hill – Preliminary Subdivision Plan Request 

Application No.: P22-1001 
Applicant: Shaun Johnson, representing SJ Company 
Project Location: Approximately SR-36 and Settlement Canyon Road 
Zoning: R1-7 Residential Zone 
Acreage: 178.40 Acres (Approximately 7,771,208 ft2) 
Request: Request for approval of a Preliminary Subdivision Plan in the R1-7 

Residential zone affecting approximately 38 acres of the a 178 acre parcel 
to create approximately 134 single-family residential lots. 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
This application is a request for approval of a Preliminary Subdivision Plan for approximately 178.40 
acres located at approximately SR-36 and Settlement Canyon Road and extending southwest to 
approximately 1220 South.  The property is currently zoned R1-7 Residential.  The applicant is requesting 
that a Preliminary Subdivision Plan be approved to allow for the development of approximately 38 acres 
of property located adjacent to SR-36 (Main Street) into approximately 134 single-family residential lots.    
 
ANALYSIS 
 
General Plan and Zoning.  The Land Use Map of the General Plan calls for the Medium Density 
Residential land use designation for the subject property.  The property has been assigned the R1-7 
Residential zoning classification, supporting approximately 5 dwelling units per acre.  The zoning map 
essentially follows the boundaries of the portions of the 178 acre parcel that are proposed to be 
subdivided are zoned R1-7, GC General Commercial and NC Neighborhood Commercial and MR-12 
Multi-Family Residential. There is a pocket of 4 properties located at the southwest end of the subdivision 
that are zoned RR-1 Residential.  Properties to the south are zoned RR-1 Residential or MU-16 Multiple 
Use.  To the east of the proposed subdivision properties are zoned R1-12 Residential and RR-1 
Residential. To the north of the proposed subdivision property is   Mapping pertinent to the subject 
request can be found in Exhibit “A” to this report. 
 
First and foremost, it should be emphasized that this is a unique parcel of ground that comes with many 
geological challenges that need to be addressed.  As such this review has been cumbersome for both staff 
and the applicant as we have worked to resolve many of these unique challenges and provide a 
subdivision that not only benefits the applicant but also becomes a safe and livable development for years 
to come.  During the Zoning Map Amendment process back in late 2021 and early 2022 the developer 
changed the zoning to the R1-7 Residential zone and removed the property from the Sensitive Area 
Overlay.  By removing the property from the Sensitive Area Overlay the subdivision would not be subject 
to the more stringent development standards for new development in this area.  However, removal from 



 

 
One O'Clock Hill  App. # P22-1001 
Preliminary Subdivision Plan Request 2  

the overlay didn’t make the sensitive challenging geotechnical issues related to the site just disappear.  
The site itself sits at the immediate base of the Oquirrh Mountains and has numerous geological 
challenges associated with it.  As part of the Zoning Map Amendment process the applicant submitted the 
following studies:  
 

1. Geotechnical Report.  This report provided recommendations on ways to mitigate collapsible 
soils, fill materials, general site grading and soil stabilization.  The study also provided 
considerations on seismic design, faults, and liquefaction potential.  Other issues such as slope 
stability, surface drainage and subsurface drainage were also studied.  The study was conducted 
by Earthtec Engineering out of Salt Lake City.  Their geotechnical study made the following 
recommendation:  “Based on the results of our field exploration, laboratory testing, and 
engineering analyses, it is our opinion that the subject site may be suitable for the proposed 
development, provided the recommendations presented in this report are followed and 
implemented during design and construction.”   

2. Fault Rupture Study.  This report, provided by Earthtec Engineering, studied the location of 
faults as this property sits at the base of the Oquirrh Mountains.  It is located in a seismically 
sensitive area and does provide inherent risks that are not entirely preventable.  The study said:  
“The conclusions and recommendations presented in this report are intended to provide a factor 
of safety against surface fault rupture and related tectonic and seismic hazards sufficient to 
reduce the risk to human life.  However, potential structure damage due to these natural hazards 
at the site cannot be totally mitigated due to the limitations and inherent level of uncertainty 
associated with analyzing and predicting such hazards.  Therefore by choosing to build and/or 
reside on the subject site, the property owners and/or residents should understand and accept the 
inherent risks associated with building and living in a geologically and seismically sensitive 
area.”  

3. Rockfall Hazard Study. This study, conducted by Earthtec Engineering, summarizes the 
potential dangers of a residential development next to a steep mountain slope and the possibility 
of large rock dislodging, falling down the slope and damaging property.  The study provided the 
following recommendation: “Rock-stabilization methods are physical means of reducing the 
hazard at its source using rock bolts and anchors, steel mesh, scaling or shotcrete on susceptible 
outcrops.  Engineered catchment or deflection structures such as rock fall fences, berms, swales, 
or benches can be placed below source areas, or at-risk structures themselves can be designed to 
stop, deflect, retard or retain falling rocks.  Such methods, however, may increase rock fall 
hazard if not properly designed and maintained.”   

4. Traffic Impact Study. The traffic impact study was conducted by Hales Egnineering.  The 
project is anticipated to generate approximately 1,056 weekday daily trips, including 78 trips in 
the morning peak hour and 105 trips in the evening peak hour.  The study evaluated existing 
roads and connections and the levels of service for those as they currently stand.  The study then 
evaluated the new connections to these roads and the impacts that will be incurred by the existing 
roads and made recommendations on how to mitigate those impacts.  The study says that “no 
mitigation measures are recommended.”   

 
For the sake of space and limiting the size of the packet, these studies have not been included in this 
report.  However, they are available for reading if the Commissioners desire to do so.  Please reach out to 
the Tooele City Community Development Director or City Planner and these studies will be provided.   
 
Subdivision Layout.  The property being developed is about 38 acres lying immediately southeast of SR-
36 extending from 1220 South to Settlement Canyon road.  There is about 7 acres located at the southwest 
end of the development that are not participants in this subdivision plat.  The remaining 140 acres of 
property will remain as undevelopable land due to excessive slopes and inaccessibility.   
 



 

 
One O'Clock Hill  App. # P22-1001 
Preliminary Subdivision Plan Request 3  

The subdivision plan proposes the creation of 134 single-family residential lots.  The lots range in size 
from 7,000 square feet up to 14,470 square feet.  Each proposed lot meets or exceeds the minimum lot 
standards of the R1-7 Residential zone for lot size, lot width and lot frontages.   
 
Access into the subdivision will be from 3 new points of connection to SR-36.  The southern most access 
with line up directly across from 3 O’Clock Drive.  The access at 1025 South is centrally located and will 
line up with the access to the Tooele City Public Works shops.  An access into the subdivision is also 
proposed at and will line up with 900 South.  A fourth access is proposed directly onto Settlement Canyon 
road a few hundred feet south of the existing Masonic Temple property.  All roads within the 
development will be dedicated public rights-of-way and meet Tooele City’s standards for road 
construction including curb, gutter, park strip and sidewalk.  
 
Landscaping.  The subdivision proposes the construction of three storm water detention basins.  Each of 
the basins is located adjacent to SR-36 and will be landscaped and maintained by the subdivision 
development HOA.  It is not intended that these basins will come to Tooele City for ownership and future 
maintenance.   
 
The subdivision includes many double-fronting lots.  These are lots that front onto and access interior 
subdivision streets with rear property lines adjacent to SR-36.  Typically, the subdivision ordinance 
requires that when double fronting lots occur that the development provide the following:  

1. A six foot solid masonry or concrete wall along the rear frontages of the lots.   
2. Landscaping in the park strip, trees and an in-ground irrigation system.   
3. A HOA (Home Owners Association) to maintain the landscaping in the park strip. 

 
Unfortunately, this is not a typical situation.  SR-36 is a state highway maintained by the Utah 
Department of Transportation (UDOT).  UDOT therefore controls all improvements within the right-of-
way of this highway.  UDOT is not in favor of a sidewalk and landscaping along SR-36.  Therefore, the 
City is pressing for maximum compliance and the applicant is proposing the installation of the required 
fence along the length of subdivision where adjacent to SR-36.   
 
Fencing.  Six foot solid masonry fencing is proposed for all lots with rear-frontages along SR-36.  The 
fencing indicated in the plans is a six foot pre-cast concrete wall that complies with UDOT standards.  
Fencing will be maintained by the development.   
 
UDOT Approval.  UDOT has reviewed and approved the proposed points of access onto SR-36 and has 
issued an approval.  The applicant has provided an email from UDOT indicating the process for final 
approval is close to being complete and that all is needed to complete the process is bonding for work 
within the UDOT right-of-way.   
 
Rocky Mountain Power.  Anyone who knows this area can attest that there are numerous power 
distribution poles and lines cris-crossing the property.  The preliminary plans currently show some of 
those power poles being located in the center of some of the proposed lots.  The applicant has been 
working diligently with Rocky Mountain Power to relocate these power lines.  The central power line is 
proposed to be combined with the line running along the southern boundary of the subdivision.  The 
northern most power line will be located closer to the SR-36 right-of-way.  However, Rocky Mountain 
Power hasn’t issued a final approval as they won’t issue an approved distribution line relocation plan 
without an approved subdivision plan.  So, we are dealing with a chicken and egg situation here.  Rocky 
Mountain Power won’t approve without City subdivision approval and Tooele City is hesitant to approve 
without Rocky Mountain Power.  In this situation all we can say is that the applicant is providing due 
diligence to ensure the power lines are relocated to the best possible location.   
 



 

 
One O'Clock Hill  App. # P22-1001 
Preliminary Subdivision Plan Request 4  

Rocky Mountain Power has prohibited the burying of any of these distribution lines.  The lines must be 
maintained overhead.     
 
Trail.  When the property was going through the Zoning Map Amendment process the developer 
presented a map that indicated a trail would be provided that would run the entire length of the 
development from Settlement Canyon Drive to the southern most point of the subdivision near 1220 
South.  This trail would provide a point of connection between the southern section separated by the 7 
acres of property with the northern section of the subdivision and also provide walking access to 
Settlement Canyon.  This trail was a condition of the zoning and must be fulfilled in order for the 
subdivision to be approved.   
 
The applicant is providing a trail that extends from Settlement Canyon Road to the southern section of the 
subdivision.  The trail is largely proposed to be a 10’ wide gravel trail extending from Settlement Canyon 
Road along the back of the individual lots adjacent to the steeper slopes of One O’Clock and Two 
O’Clock Mountains.  When the trail reaches 1025 South Street it will transition to a ten foot wide asphalt 
path and become part of the 58 foot public right-of-way and will extend to 1120 South Street.  At this 
point the trail will turn south, transition from asphalt to gravel and climb up and behind the 7 acres of 
property not participating in the subdivision.  This portion of the trail is a two track gravel maintenance 
road that is on the applicant’s property but is utilized by Rocky Mountain Power for access to its 
distribution line utilities.  The trail will then continue past the 7 acres and drop down into the southern 
section of the subdivision between two lots connecting to the right-of-way of Top Clock Drive.  Staff is 
confident that this trail system satisfies the Zoning Map Amendment condition.   
 
Tooele City Water Facility.  There is an existing City well house facility located on this property.  The 
subdivision plans maintain this property and will maintain a gravel access road that will connect to 
Hillside Drive which will be a public right-of-way.   
 
This is a preliminary subdivision plan and as such is just that, preliminary.  There will need to be some 
“fine-tuning” of construction, cuts and fills, power line relocation, easements, trail construction, utility 
locations and so forth that must be addressed during the final plat subdivision review.  To ensure that 
these elements are properly addressed during the final plat this preliminary subdivision plan approval 
includes numerous “conditions of approval” that must be addressed with each final plat phase as each 
phase develops.  Those conditions are included on a separate document in this report as “Exhibit A” but 
are referred to in Condition #5 below.    
 
Criteria For Approval.  The procedure for approval or denial of a Subdivision Preliminary Plat request, as 
well as the information required to be submitted for review as a complete application is found in Sections 
7-19-8 and 9 of the Tooele City Code. 

 
REVIEWS 
 
Planning Division Review.   The Tooele City Planning Division has completed their review of the 
Preliminary Subdivision Plan submission and has issued a recommendation for approval for the request 
with the following comments: 
 

1. The subdivision plan as proposed meets the basic standards for subdivision development 
as required by Tooele City’s R1-7 zoning code and Tooele City’s Subdivision ordinance.   

2. This is a preliminary plan and there will still need to be resolution of minor issues during 
the final plat subdivision process for each phase.   

3. The project is going to be divided into four phases.  The applicant needs to specify with 
each final plat phase the portions of the trail to be completed with each phase.   



 

 
One O'Clock Hill  App. # P22-1001 
Preliminary Subdivision Plan Request 5  

 
Engineering & Public Works Review.   The Tooele City Engineering and Public Works Divisions have 
completed their reviews of the Preliminary Subdivision Plan submission and have issued a 
recommendation for approval for the request with the following proposed conditions: 
 

1. See Exhibit “A” for a detailed list of those conditions provided by the Tooele City 
Engineer.  These 10 conditions shall be addressed during the final plat subdivision review 
for each phase.    

 
Tooele City Fire Department Review.  The Tooele City Fire Department has completed their review of the 
Preliminary Subdivision Plan submission and has issued a recommendation for approval for the request. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends approval of the request for a Preliminary Subdivision Plan by Shaun Johnson, 
representing the SJ Company, application number P22-1001, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. That all requirements of the Tooele City Engineering and Public Works Divisions shall 
be satisfied throughout the development of the site and the construction of all buildings 
on the site, including permitting. 

2. That all requirements of the Tooele City Building Division shall be satisfied throughout 
the development of the site and the construction of all buildings on the site, including 
permitting. 

3. That all requirements of the Tooele City Fire Department shall be satisfied throughout the 
development of the site and the construction of all buildings on the site. 

4. That all requirements of the geotechnical report shall be satisfied throughout the 
development of the site and the construction of all buildings on the site. 

5. The 10 conditions as listed in Exhibit “A” of this report shall be addressed and resolved 
during the final plat subdivision review for each phase.   

 
This recommendation is based on the following findings: 
 

1. The proposed development plans meet the intent, goals, and objectives of the Tooele City 
General Plan. 

2. The proposed development plans meet the requirements and provisions of the Tooele 
City Code. 

3. The proposed development plans will not be deleterious to the health, safety, and general 
welfare of the general public nor the residents of adjacent properties. 

4. The proposed development conforms to the general aesthetic and physical development 
of the area. 

5. The public services in the area are adequate to support the subject development. 
6. The Preliminary Subdivision Plan as proposed meets the minimum development standard 

and qualifications for subdivision development as required by Tooele City R1-7 
Residential zoning code and the Tooele City Subdivision ordinance.   

 
MODEL MOTIONS  
 
Sample Motion for a Positive Recommendation – “I move we forward a positive recommendation to the 
City Council for the One O'Clock Hill Preliminary Subdivision Plan Request by Shaun Johnson, 
representing the SJ Company, application number P22-1001, based on the findings and subject to the 
conditions listed in the Staff Report dated October 5, 2023:” 



 

 
One O'Clock Hill  App. # P22-1001 
Preliminary Subdivision Plan Request 6  

 
1. List any additional findings and conditions… 

 
Sample Motion for a Negative Recommendation – “I move we forward a negative recommendation to the 
City Council for the One O'Clock Hill Preliminary Subdivision Plan Request by Shaun Johnson, 
representing the SJ Company, application number P22-1001, based on the following findings:” 
 

1. List findings… 
       

 
 

 
 

 



 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – 1 O’CLOCK HILL 
PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION – OCTOBER 3, 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



The Engineering redline comments applied to the Preliminary Plan are based upon the
Preliminary Plan submittal requirements, and should not be considered as the final review and/or
approval of the development plans.  The trail system, which was required by the Planning
Commission as a condition of the Rezone, was added conceptually to the plans with the most
recent submittal package.  As a result of the newly added trail information, together with other
previously noted items, the following are noted as to be addressed and require additional detail as
part of the Final Subdivision Plan and Construction Plan submittal, together with all other final
plan requirements required by Tooele City Code and Standards:

1. The easement must be provided for all portions of the trail which lie outside of the
boundaries of any of the subdivision plats.  The Planning Commission should indicate the
portions and timing for completion of the trail with each of the four proposed phases.

2. The Final Subdivision Plan must include details on the trail construction, drainage
crossings, and all trail improvements as well as location of fences separating the trail
from lots (if any).

3. The Preliminary plans show multiple power lines crossing the site, with no reference to
their relocation plans or vacation of their easements.  The Developer and Rocky
Mountain Power have indicated their intent to relocate the power lines from the interior
lots to a location parallel to the eastern most line and also along of SR-36, as shown on
the following Google Earth image provided by the Developer.  The Final Subdivision
Plan must incorporate the relocated lines and address new and vacated easements.

4. The Phase 1 Preliminary Plat references a 15-foot wide trail easement shown along the
northern boundary of Lot 107.  It is recommended that the trail easement be created as a
separate parcel with public access, rather than part of a recorded lot.  By creating a
separate parcel it will ensure that the side yard setback of the home on Lot 107 will meet
City Standard rather than potentially being placed immediately adjacent to the trail.

Recommended Conditions of Approval - 1 O'Clock Hill Preliminary Subdivision
October 3, 2023

Page 1 of 2



It is also noted at this same location that the water and sewer laterals for Lot 107 should
be adjusted so as to not conflict with the trail construction or limit their access for repairs.

5. It is recommended that the Developer create a public access easement and construct a
connection to the proposed trail from the future public ROW between Lots 311 and 312.
A drive approach should also be constructed within this area for City vehicle access to its
property and the City well.

6. As part of the final plans, the Developer must address who will maintain the park strip
landscaping of any and portions of ROW not fronting a lot or storm water basin (which
will be maintained by the Home Owners Association).

7. As noted above, the 10-foot trail has been added conceptually to the plans.  As part of the
final plat submittal, the grading plans will need to be modified to accommodate trail
construction as well as provide stabilization plans (short and long term) of all disturbed
slopes.

8. Where there are four (4) phases planned, Phase 1 being to the south, and Phase 4 being to
the north, it is noted that each phase must be capable of standing along (e.g., water loop,
blowoff valves, secondary roadway connection, etc.).  With these requirements, it may be
necessary to construction improvements beyond the limits of the respective phase line.
Paved cul-de-sacs will be required for all dead end roads created as part of phased
construction.

9. As part of the Final Plat consideration the water modeling, which is being performed by
the City’s consultant, we need verification that the proposed connection to the existing 6"
diameter waterline adjacent to Retention Pond 5, along SR-36, will meet flow demands.
If it does not, then the water line size and new connection point shall be modified as
required.

10. The sidewalk and curb and gutter should be extended 10-foot east of Lot 409 along
Settlement Canyon Road in order to allow connection to the 10-foot trail which
commenced at this point and runs south along the rear lots of the proposed homes.

Page 2 of 2



 

 

 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

MAPPING RELATED TO THE SUBDIVISION REQUEST 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

EXHIBIT B 
 

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT PLANS & 
APPLICANT SUBMITTED INFORMATION 

 
 



HAWTHORN HOUSE
SUBDIVISION

ENTRY # 414205

TRI-SHOPS
SUBDIVISION

ENTRY # HISTPO196559

SETTLEMENT POINT
PHASE 5 SUBDIVISION

ENTRY NO. 123376

SETTLEMENT POINT
PHASE 3 SUBDIVISION

ENTRY NO. 91205

ROCKY MOUNTAIN MASONIC
TEMPLE ASSOCIATION INC.

ENTRY NO. 210058

CANYON RIM ESTATES

SUBDIVISION

ENTRY NO. 262727

TOOELE CITY WATER
SPECIAL SERVICES
ENTRY NO. 192874

RO
CK

Y 
PE

AK
PR

OP
ER

TI
ES

 L
LC

EN
TR

Y 
NO

. 5
37

16
8

SITLA
SITLA

THE PRITZKAU

FAMILY TRUST

ENTRY NO. 28
830

5

SETTLEMENT POINT
PHASE 4 SUBDIVISION

ENTRY NO. 117950

TO
P CLO

CK DRIVENO TI
ME DRIVE

MID MOUNTAIN ROAD

60' ROW EASEMENT

IN FAVOR OF PACIFICORP

ENTRY NO. 393622

(APPROXIMATE LOCATION

60' ROW EASEMENT
IN FAVOR OF PACIFICORP

ENTRY NO. 393622
(APPROXIMATE LOCATION

60' ROW EASEMENT
IN FAVOR OF PACIFICORP

ENTRY NO. 393622
(APPROXIMATE LOCATION

EASEMENT
ENTRY NO.

355230

EASEMENT
ENTRY NO.

355230

EASEMENT
ENTRY NO.

355230

POLE LINE
EASEMENT

ENTRY NO. 229433

POLE LINE
EASEMENT

ENTRY NO. 229433

28.0' TEMPORARY

ACCESS EASEMENT

ENTRY NO. 192874

POLE LINE
EASEMENT

ENTRY NO. 188827

POLE LINE
EASEMENT
ENTRY NO. 229427

POLE LINE
EASEMENT
ENTRY NO. 188827

POLE LINE
EASEMENT
ENTRY NO. 229427

POLE LINE
EASEMENT
ENTRY NO. 188827

POLE LINE
EASEMENT
ENTRY NO. 188827

STATE HWY 36

STATE HWY 36

STATE HWY 36

RETENTION POND 4
EASEMENT IN FAVOR
OF
ENTRY # ___________

LOT 1

LOT
19 LOT

66
LOT
65

LOT
64

LOT
63

LOT
62

LOT
61

LOT
60

LOT
119

LOT
118LOT

117

LOT
116

LOT
313

LOT
312

LOT
311LOT

404

LOT
405

LOT
406

LOT
407

LOT
504

LOT
505

LOT
506

LOT
512

LOT
513

LOT 5

LOT 4

LOT 6

LOT 7

LOT 8

LOT
2

LOT
1

LOT
81

LOT
80

LOT
2

LOT
3

LOT
1

LOT
1

LOT
28

JULIE ANN

COURT

SETTLERS

COURT

TRAPPERS

POND

COURT

GOLD

DUST

COURT

BOOT

HILL
CIRCLE

LOT
314

LOT
514

LOT
1

LOT
3

1220 SOUTH

COLEMAN
STREET

POLE LINE
EASEMENT
ENTRY NO. 188827

LOT 122
LOT 123

LOT 124
LOT 125

LOT 126
LOT 127

LOT 128

LOT 129

LOT 121

LOT 116

LOT 111

PARCEL A
RETENTION

POND 1

LOT 120
LOT 119

LOT 118
LOT 117

LOT 101
LOT 102

LOT 103
LOT 104

LOT 105

LOT 110

LOT 106

LOT 107
LOT 108

LOT 109

LOT 112
LOT 113

LOT 114

LOT 206

LOT 215

LOT 214

LOT 207
LOT 208

LOT 210
LOT 211

LOT 212
LOT 213

LOT 205

LOT 209

LOT 223

LOT 216

LOT 224

LOT 217

LOT 225

LOT 218

LOT 226

LOT 219
LOT 220

LOT 221
LOT 222

LOT 239
LOT 238

LOT 237
LOT 236

LOT 235

LOT 242

PARCEL C
RETENTION

POND 3

LOT 241
LOT 240

LOT 234

LOT 343

LOT 233
LOT 232

LOT 231
LOT 348

LOT 347
LOT 346

LOT 345
LOT 344

LOT 342

LOT 227
LOT 228

LOT 229
LOT 230

LOT 301
LOT 302

LOT 303
LOT 304

LOT 305
LOT 306

LOT 307
LOT 308

LOT 309
LOT 310

LOT 340
LOT 339

LOT 338
LOT 337

LOT 336
LOT 335

LOT 324

LO
T 3

25 LOT 402
LOT 401

LOT 407

LOT 409
LOT 311

LOT 323

LO
T 

32
1

LO
T 

32
0

LO
T 3

26

LOT 334
LOT 333

LOT 332
LOT 331

LO
T 3

30
LO

T 3
29

LO
T 3

28
LO

T 3
27

LOT 317LOT 315
LOT 314

LOT 313 LO
T 

31
9

LO
T 

31
8

LOT 312

REMAINDER PARCEL

PC1

PL3

PL2

PL1

S 
0°

27
'50

" W
    

 23
83

.05
'

NORTH     2383.05'SOUTH     2383.05'EAST     2383.05'WEST     2383.05'

S 89°22'08" W     2635.37'NORTH     2635.37'SOUTH     2635.37'EAST     2635.37'WEST     2635.37'

S 89°45'03" W     1298.30'
NORTH     1298.30'SOUTH     1298.30'EAST     1298.30'WEST     1298.30'

PL9

N 45
°31

'25
" E

     
142

3.8
0'

NORTH     1423.80'SOUTH     1423.80'EAST     1423.80'WEST     1423.80'

PC2

PC3

PC4

N 57°55'25" E     3
54.49'

NORTH     354.49'SOUTH     354.49'EAST     354.49'WEST     354.49'

PL5
PL6 PL7

HERITAGE HILL

DRIVE

PC5
PL8

N 44°39'14" W     497.98'

NORTH     497.98'SOUTH     497.98'EAST     497.98'WEST     497.98'

N 44°46'56" W

225.36'

NORTH225.36'SOUTH225.36'EAST225.36'WEST225.36'

3 O'CLOCK DR

HILLSIDE DRIVE

PC6

SETTLEMENT CANYON ROAD

1025 SOUTH STREET

900 SOUTH

LOT 341

3 O'CLOCK DRIVE

LOT 115

LOT 405
LOT 404

LOT 406

LOT 403

LOT 408

LOT 322

LOT 316

PHASE 3

PHASE 2

PHASE 1

PHASE 4

PARCEL D
RETENTION

POND 5

900 SOUTH

THE GARY & JANICE

ALLRED FAMILY TRUST

ENTRY NO. 535810

THE PHILLIP WARD

TURNER AND TERESA

LEE TURNER LIVING TRUST

ENTRY NO. 537688

THE PHILLIP WARD

TURNER AND TERESA

LEE TURNER LIVING TRUST

ENTRY NO. 452364

SOUTHWEST MOBILE
VILLAGE
ENTRY #LOT

1

S 45
°43

'00
" W

     
600

.21
'

NORTH     600.21'SOUTH     600.21'EAST     600.21'WEST     600.21'

N 44°09'44" W

226.35'

NORTH226.35'SOUTH226.35'EAST226.35'WEST226.35'

PL4

HILLSIDE DRIVE

HILLSIDE DRIVE

LOT 202
LOT 203

LOT 204

LOT 201

LOT 243
PARCEL B

RETENTION
POND 2 1120 SOUTH STREET

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE
I, Douglas J. Kinsman, do hereby certify that I am a Professional Land Surveyor, and that I hold License No. 334575, in accordance with
Title 58, Chapter 22, of the Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors Act. I further certify that by authority of the owners I have
completed a survey of the property described on this subdivision plat in accordance with Section 17-23-17, have verified all
measurements, and have subdivided said tract of land into lots, together with easements, hereafter to be known as 1 O'Clock Hill
Subdivision and that the same has been correctly surveyed and monumented on the ground as shown on this plat.

TOOELE
169 North Main Street Unit 1
Tooele, Utah 84074
Phone: 435.843.3590
Fax: 435.578.0108

WWW.ENSIGNENG.COM

SALT LAKE CITY
Phone: 801.255.0529

LAYTON
Phone: 801.547.1100

CEDAR CITY
Phone: 435.865.1453

RICHFIELD
Phone: 435.896.2983

E N S I G N

1. PURSUANT TO UTAH CODE ANN. § 54-3-27 THIS PLAT CONVEYS TO THE OWNER(S) OR OPERATORS OF UTILITY
FACILITIES A PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT ALONG WITH ALL THE RIGHTS AND DUTIES DESCRIBED THEREIN.

2. PURSUANT TO UTAH CODE ANN. § 17-27A-603(4)(C)(II) ROCKY MOUNTAIN POWER ACCEPTS DELIVERY OF THE PUE
AS DESCRIBED IN THIS PLAT AND APPROVES THIS PLAT SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONFIRMING THAT THE
PLAT CONTAINS PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENTS AND APPROXIMATES THE LOCATION OF THE PUBLIC UTILITY
EASEMENTS, BUT DOES NOT WARRANT THEIR PRECISE LOCATION. ROCKY MOUNTAIN POWER MAY REQUIRE
OTHER EASEMENTS IN ORDER TO SERVE THIS DEVELOPMENT. THIS APPROVAL DOES NOT AFFECT ANY RIGHT
THAT ROCKY MOUNTAIN POWER HAS UNDER:

(1) A RECORDED EASEMENT OR RIGHT-OF WAY
(2) THE LAW APPLICABLE TO PRESCRIPTIVE RIGHTS
(3) TITLE 54, CHAPTER 8A, DAMAGE TO UNDERGROUND UTILITY FACILITIES OR
(4) ANY OTHER PROVISION OF LAW.

APPROVED THIS                   DAY OF                                           , 20

ROCKY MOUNTAIN POWER

BY -

TITLE -

ROCKY MOUNTAIN POWER COMPANY

PROJECT  NUMBER :

DRAWN BY :

CHECKED BY :

MANAGER :

DATE :

SHEET
11635

1 OF 7

D. KINSMAN

M. SANDOVAL

D. KINSMAN

08/24/2022

BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

The purpose of this description is to establish the boundary of the subdivision. The basis of bearing for this description is the line between the
Southeast Corner and the Witness Corner to the East Quarter Corner of Section 32, Township 3 South, Range 4 West, Salt Lake Base and Meridian,
which bears North 0°16'21” West 2625.64 feet.

A parcel of land, situate in the Southeast Quarter of Section 32 and the West half of section 33, Township 3 South, Range 4 West, Salt Lake
Base and Meridian, said parcel also located in Tooele, Utah, more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at the Southwest corner of Section 33, Township 3 South, Range 4 West, Salt Lake Base and Meridian and running:
thence South 89°45'03" West 1,298.30 feet;
thence North 0°14'53" West 69.99 feet;
thence South 89°45'03" West 217.83 feet, to the Southeasterly line of State Road 36;
thence Northeasterly 788.07 feet along the arc of a 5,669.65 feet radius non-tangent curve to the right (center bears South 52°24'47" East

and the long chord bears North 41°34'08" East 787.44 feet through a central angle of 7°57'50"), along said Southeasterly line of State Road 36;
thence along a line non-tangent to said curve, North 45°31'24" East 91.41 feet, along said Southeasterly line of State Road 36;

thence South 44°39'14" East 497.98 feet;
thence North 45°43'00" East 600.21 feet;
thence North 43°14'31" West 48.31 feet;
thence North 44°09'44" West 226.35 feet;
thence North 44°46'56" West 225.36 feet, to the said Southeasterly line of State Road 36;

thence along said Southeasterly line of State Road 36 the following 5 calls:
thence North 45°31'25" East 1,423.80 feet;
thence Northeasterly 798.94 feet along the arc of a 5,669.65 feet radius tangent curve to the right (center bears South 44°28'35" East and

the long chord bears North 49°33'38" East 798.28 feet through a central angle of 8°04'26");
thence Northeasterly 247.80 feet along the arc of a 5,729.65 feet radius non-tangent curve to the right (center bears South 38°42'14" East

and the long chord bears North 52°32'06" East 247.78 feet through a central angle of 2°28'41");
thence Northeasterly 181.01 feet along the arc of a 5,679.65 feet radius non-tangent curve to the right (center bears South 33°54'09" East

and the long chord bears North 57°00'38" East 181.01 feet through a central angle of 1°49'34");
thence along a line non-tangent to said curve, North 57°55'25" East 354.49 feet;

thence South 45°55'43" East 210.00 feet;
thence North 57°58'20" East 209.99 feet, to the Southwesterly line of Settlement Canyon Road;

thence along said Southwesterly line of Settlement Canyon Road the following 5 calls:
thence South 45°39'37" East 304.52 feet;
thence Southeasterly 164.41 feet along the arc of a 720.00 feet radius tangent curve to the right (center bears South 44°20'23" West and the

long chord bears South 39°07'07" East 164.05 feet through a central angle of 13°04'59");
thence South 32°34'38" East 158.76 feet;
thence Southeasterly 165.75 feet along the arc of a 780.00 feet radius tangent curve to the left (center bears North 57°25'22" East and the

long chord bears South 38°39'53" East 165.44 feet through a central angle of 12°10'31");
thence South 44°45'09" East 59.18 feet;
thence South 0°27'50" West 2,383.05 feet, along the Quarter Section line to the South Quarter Corner;
thence South 89°22'08" West 2,635.37 feet, along the Section line to the Point of Beginning.

Contains 7,771,208 square feet or 178.40 acres.

Less and excepting:
A parcel of land, situate in the Southwest Quarter of Section 33, Township 3 South, Range 4 West, Salt Lake Base and Meridian, said parcel

also located in Tooele, Utah, more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at a point, said point being North 89°31'21" East 1372.79 feet and South 0°28'39" East 151.49 feet from the West Quarter Corner
of Section 33, Township 3 South, Range 4 West, Salt Lake Base and Meridian and running:

thence South 37°50'05" East 208.70 feet;
thence South 52°09'55" West 208.70 feet;
thence North 37°50'05" West 208.70 feet;
thence North 52°09'55" East 208.70 feet, to the Point of Beginning.

Contains 43,556 square feet or 1.00 acres.

__________________________
Date
Douglas J Kinsman
License No. 334575

APPROVED THIS                   DAY OF                                             , 20                ,
BY THE

HEALTH DEPARTMENT

TOOELE COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT.

TOOELE  COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT

APPROVED THIS                   DAY OF                                             , 20                ,
BY THE

TOOELE COUNTY COUNCIL

TOOELE COUNTY COUNCIL.

CHAIRMAN TOOELE COUNTY COUNCIL

APPROVED THIS                   DAY OF                                             , 20                ,
BY THE

CHIEF OF POLICE

TOOELE COUNTY CHIEF OF POLICE.

TOOELE COUNTY CHIEF OF POLICE

APPROVED THIS                   DAY OF                                             , 20                ,
BY THE

POST MASTER

POST MASTER 

POST MASTER

APPROVED THIS                   DAY OF                                             , 20                ,
BY THE

SCHOOL DISTRICT

TOOELE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

TOOELE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

APPROVED THIS                   DAY OF                                             , 20                ,
BY THE

PARKS DEPARTMENT

TOOELE COUNTY PARKS DEPARTMENT.

TOOELE COUNTY PARKS DEPARTMENT

APPROVED THIS                   DAY OF                                             , 20                ,
BY THE

FIRE CHIEF

TOOELE COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT.

TOOELE COUNTY FIRE CHIEF

APPROVED THIS                   DAY OF                                             , 20                ,
BY THE

CENTURY LINK

CENTURY LINK.

CENTURY LINK

APPROVED THIS                   DAY OF                                             , 20                ,
BY THE

COMCAST

COMCAST CABLE

COMCAST

APPROVED AS TO FORM THIS                   DAY OF                                             ,
20                .

COUNTY ATTORNEY

TOOELE COUNTY ATTORNEY

APPROVED AS TO FORM THIS                   DAY OF                                             ,
20                .

COUNTY ENGINEER

TOOELE COUNTY ENGINEER

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT APPROVAL

TOOELE COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

APPROVED AS TO FORM ON THIS                   DAY OF                                          ,
A.D. 20________.

REVIEWED THIS                   DAY OF                                             , 20                ,
BY THE TOOELE COUNTY RECORDER AS TO DESCRIPTION OF RECORD.

COUNTY RECORDER

TOOELE COUNTY RECORDER

APPROVED THIS                   DAY OF                                            , 20                  , BY THE TOOELE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION.

PLANNING COMMISSION

ATTEST:

OWNER'S DEDICATION AND CONSENT TO RECORD
Known all men by these present that the undersigned are the owner(s) of the hereon described tract of land and hereby cause the same to
divided into lots together with easements as set forth hereafter to be known as:

The undersigned owner(s) hereby convey to Tooele City and to any and all public utility companies providing service to the hereon
described tract a perpetual, non-exclusive easement over the public utility and drainage easements shown on this plat, the same to be used
for drainage and for the installation, maintenance and operation of public utility service lines and facilities. The undersigned owner(s) also
hereby convey any other easements as shown to the parties indicated and for the purpose shown heron.

In witness whereof I / we have hereunto set my / our hand this                  day of                                                         A.D., 20               .

                                      
By: TOOELE 90 LLC                                       By: 
 SHAUN JOHNSON, MANAGER      

1 O'CLOCK HILL SUBDIVISION

1 O'CLOCK HILL SUBDIVISION

FEE$ TOOELE COUNTY RECORDER

STATE OF UTAH, COUNTY OF TOOELE, RECORDED AND FILED AT THE

DATE:                                              TIME:                                                 BOOK:                                                PAGE:

RECORDED #                                             

REQUEST OF :

TOOELE COUNTY RECORDER

Dominion Energy Utah - Note:
Questar Gas Company dba Dominion Energy Utah, hereby approves this plat for the purpose of approximating the location, boundaries,
course and dimensions of the Rights-of-Way and Easement Grants and existing underground facilities. Nothing herein shall be constructed to
warrant or verify the precise location of such items. The Rights-of-Way and easements are subject to numerous restrictions appearing on the
recorded right-of-way and easement grant(s). Dominion Energy Utah also hereby approves this plat for the purpose of confirming that the plat
contains public utility easements; however, Dominion Energy Utah may require additional easements in order to serve this development. This
approval does not constitute abrogation or waiver of any other existing rights, obligations or liabilities provided by law or equity. This approval
does not constitute acceptance, approval or acknowledgment of any terms contained in the plat, including those set in the Owners Dedication
or in the Notes, and does not constitute a guarantee of particular terms or conditions of natural gas service. For further information please
contact Dominion Energy Utah's Right-of-Way Department at 800-366-8532.

APPROVED THIS  DAY OF  A.D. 20 .

DOMINION ENERGY

BY -  

TITLE -

DOMINION ENERGY

 
PR

O
FE

SS I ONA L  L AND

 

SURVEYOR

HATU FO ETATS

DOUGLAS J
KINSMAN

No. 334575

CALL BLUESTAKES
@ 811 AT LEAST 48 HOURS
PRIOR TO THE
COMMENCEMENT OF  ANY
CONSTRUCTION.Know what's below.

before you dig.Call

R

ENSIGN ENG.
LAND SURV.

LEGEND

WM

H Y D

D

D

S

WV

SS

SD
W

X

SECTION CORNER

MONUMENT

EXIST REBAR AND CAP

WATER METER

WATER VALVE

FIRE HYDRANT

SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

STORM DRAIN CLEAN OUT

STORM DRAIN CATCH BASIN

STORM DRAIN COMBO BOX

STORM DRAIN CULVERT

SIGN

ELECTRICAL BOX

UTILITY POLE

LIGHT

CABLE BOX

GAS METER

ADJACENT RIGHT OF WAY

RIGHT OF WAY

CENTERLINE

PROPERTY LINE

ADJACENT PROPERTY LINE

FENCE

EDGE OF ASPHALT

SANITARY SEWER LINE

STORM DRAIN LINE

CULINARY WATER LINE

OVERHEAD POWER LINE

ELECTRICAL LINE

GAS LINE

EXISTING CONTOURS

CONCRETE

BUILDING

E

OHP

E

CABLE

G

NOTE: MAY CONTAIN SYMBOLS THAT ARE NOT USED IN THIS PLAN SET.

SET 5/8" REBAR WITH YELLOW PLASTIC CAP, OR
NAIL STAMPED "ENSIGN ENG. & LAND SURV." AT
ALL LOT CORNERS; OFFSET PINS TO PLACED IN
BACK OF CURBS

SITE

SKYLINE DRIVE

700S

CO
LE

MA
N 

ST
RE

ET

900S

TEAD

TOOELE CITY

   VICINITY MAP   
NOT TO SCALE

BENCHMARK
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 33,
TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH, RANGE 4 WEST
SALT LAKE BASE AND MERIDIAN

ELEV =  5445.32'

WEST QUARTER CORNER
OF SECTION 33, T3S, R4W,
SLB&M

HORIZONTAL GRAPHIC SCALE
0

( IN FEET )
HORZ: 1 inch =        ft.150

150 75 150 300

PRELIMINARY PLAT
1 O'CLOCK HILL SUBDIVISION

LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 32,
SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 33 AND THE NORTHWEST

QUARTER OF SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH, RANGE 4 WEST,
SALT LAKE BASE AND MERIDIAN,

TOOELE CITY, TOOELE COUNTY, UTAH

LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 32,
SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 33 AND THE NORTHWEST

QUARTER OF SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH, RANGE 4 WEST,
SALT LAKE BASE AND MERIDIAN,

TOOELE CITY, TOOELE COUNTY, UTAH

DEVELOPER
SJ COMPANY

447 NORTH COOLEY STREET
GRANTSVILLE, UT 84029

801-349-0761

LLC ACKNOWLEDGMENT
STATE OF UTAH
County of

On the               day of                                                        A.D., 20            ,                                                                                                       ,
                                                                                                                                                                                                              personally
appeared before me, the undersigned Notary public, in and for said County of                                                              in said State of Utah,
who after being duly sworn, acknowledged to me that  He/She/They signed the Owner's Dedication,               in number, freely and voluntarily
for  the purposes therein mentioned.

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:                                                                                  ,

                                                                                               RESIDING IN                                                             COUNTY.
NOTARY PUBLIC

TOOELE
}S.S.



TO
P CLO

CK DRIVE

NO TI
ME DRIVE

126
0 S

OUTH

125
2 S

OUTH

124
0 S

OUTH

123
2 S

OUTH

122
4 S

OUTH

121
6 S

OUTH

12
72

 S
OU

TH
127

0 S
OUTH

121
9 S

OUTH

122
9 S

OUTH

123
7 S

OUTH

124
5 S

OUTH

125
5 S

OUTH

126
5 S

OUTH

124
6 S

OUTH

125
4 S

OUTH

126
2 S

OUTH

127
7 S

OUTH

126
7 S

OUTH

125
9 S

OUTH

125
1 S

OUTH

12
41

 SO
UT

H

127
4 S

OUTH

128
0 S

OUTH

598 WEST

619 WEST

585 W
EST

630 WEST

608 WEST

60' ROW EASEMENT
IN FAVOR OF PACIFICORP

ENTRY NO. 393622
(APPROXIMATE LOCATION

WATER DEED
EASEMENT
ENTRY NO.

355230

NO WIDTH SPECIFIED
POLE LINE

EASEMENT
ENTRY NO. 188827

NO WIDTH SPECIFIED
POLE LINE
EASEMENT
ENTRY NO. 229427

MAIN STR
EET

STA
TE

 ROAD 36
HAWTHORN HOUSE

SUBDIVISION

ENTRY # 4
142

05

UTAH POWER &
LIGHT COMPANY
ENTRY # 401709

SITLA
ROGER K NIX AND

JULIE K NIX REVOCABLE TRUST
ENTRY # 487245

THE GARY & JANICE
ALLRED FAMILY TRUST

ENTRY NO. 535810

THE PRITZKAU
FAMILY TRUST

ENTRY NO. 288305

LOT 1

3 O'CLOCK
DRIVE

LOT 122
8,883 sq.ft.
0.20 acres

LOT 123
7,324 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

LOT 124
7,424 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

LOT 125
7,463 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

LOT 126
7,442 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

LOT 127
7,360 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

LOT 128
10,471 sq.ft.
0.24 acres

LOT 129
17,879 sq.ft.
0.41 acres

LOT 121
8,845 sq.ft.
0.20 acres

LOT 116
8,607 sq.ft.
0.20 acres

LOT 111
8,921 sq.ft.
0.20 acres

LOT 120
7,950 sq.ft.
0.18 acres

LOT 119
7,950 sq.ft.
0.18 acres

LOT 118
7,950 sq.ft.
0.18 acres

LOT 117
7,965 sq.ft.
0.18 acres

LOT 101
8,931 sq.ft.
0.21 acres

LOT 102
7,066 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 103
7,000 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 104
8,534 sq.ft.
0.20 acres

LOT 110
8,837 sq.ft.
0.20 acres

LOT 106
10,085 sq.ft.
0.23 acres

LOT 107
7,900 sq.ft.
0.18 acres

LOT 108
7,900 sq.ft.
0.18 acres

LOT 109
7,900 sq.ft.
0.18 acres

LOT 115
11,225 sq.ft.
0.26 acres

LOT 112
7,900 sq.ft.
0.18 acres

LOT 113
7,900 sq.ft.
0.18 acres

LOT 114
7,900 sq.ft.
0.18 acres

TO
OELE

 90
 LL

C

ENTR
Y NO. 57

118
2

POINT OF
BEGINNING

130.75'

39.31'

39.31'

N 45
°31

'24
" E

     
91.

41'

NORTH     91.41'SOUTH     91.41'EAST     91.41'WEST     91.41'

S 44°39'14" E     509.58'

NORTH     509.58'SOUTH     509.58'EAST     509.58'WEST     509.58'

S 41
°48

'14
" W

     
480

.18
'

NORTH     480.18'SOUTH     480.18'EAST     480.18'WEST     480.18'

S 89°45'03" W     217.83'
NORTH     217.83'SOUTH     217.83'EAST     217.83'WEST     217.83'

407.65'N 89°45'03" E
407.64'

NORTH407.65'SOUTH407.65'EAST407.65'WEST407.65'

192.48'

N 44
°55

'38
" E

   1
07.

08'

NORTH   107.08'SOUTH   107.08'EAST   107.08'WEST   107.08'

N 45
°20

'46
" E

   1
00.

00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

N 45
°20

'46
" E

   1
00.

00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

N 67°33'35" E   115.19'
NORTH   115.19'SOUTH   115.19'EAST   115.19'WEST   115.19'

S 75°48'47" E   124.37'
NORTH   124.37'SOUTH   124.37'EAST   124.37'WEST   124.37'

S 48°11'46" E   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

S 48°11'46" E   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

S 48°11'46" E   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

S 48°11'46" E   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00' EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

N 48°11'46" W   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

N 48°11'46" W   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

N 48°11'46" W   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

N 48°11'46" W   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

S 48°11'46" E   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

S 48°11'46" E   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

S 48°11'46" E   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

S 48°11'46" E   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

S 48°11'46" E   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

80.
01'

N 41
°48

'14
" E

   7
9.6

5'

NORTH   79.65'SOUTH   79.65'EAST   79.65'WEST   79.65'

79.
50'

79.
50'

N 41
°48

'14
" E

   7
9.5

0'

NORTH   79.50'SOUTH   79.50'EAST   79.50'WEST   79.50'

88.
65'

N 48°11'46" W   103.62'

NORTH   103.62'SOUTH   103.62'EAST   103.62'WEST   103.62'

N 48°11'46" W   106.48'

NORTH   106.48'SOUTH   106.48'EAST   106.48'WEST   106.48'

N 48°11'46" W   106.61'

NORTH   106.61'SOUTH   106.61'EAST   106.61'WEST   106.61'

N 48°11'46" W   105.87'

NORTH   105.87'SOUTH   105.87'EAST   105.87'WEST   105.87'

N 48°11'46" W   104.27'

NORTH   104.27'SOUTH   104.27'EAST   104.27'WEST   104.27'

93.
92'

79.
00'

79.
00'

79.
00'

155
.89

'

37.
45'

79.
00'

79.
00'

79.
00'

60.
00'

72.46'

60.
00'

79.
50'

79.
50'

79.
50'

79.
65'

60.
00'

71.
23'

79.
00'

79.
00'

79.
00'

26.
22'

38.
83'

79.
00'

79.
00'

79.
00'

125
.36

'

78.
99'

88.53'

70.00'

27.55'

70.00'

26.95'

104.93'

100.75'

26.18'

70.04'

16.
27'

70.
00'

70.
00'

70.
00'

70.
00'

70.
00'

60.
00'

C21

C2
0

C3

C6 (TOTAL)

C18

C1
0 (

TO
TA

L)

C1
2

C11

C13
C16 (TOTAL)

C33

C17

C3
1 (

TO
TA

L)

C22

C23

C24

C25

C26

C27

C28

C32

C2
9

C30

C14
C15

C4

C5

C7

C8

C9
52.03'

C19

N 0°14'53" W
69.99'

NORTH69.99'SOUTH69.99'EAST69.99'WEST69.99'

N 48°11'46" W   105.48'

NORTH   105.48'SOUTH   105.48'EAST   105.48'WEST   105.48'

PC1

N 44
°55

'38
" E

   1
22.

54'

NORTH   122.54'SOUTH   122.54'EAST   122.54'WEST   122.54'

60.00'

C2

C1

75.33'

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

(DEDICATE
D PUBLIC

 STR
EET)

(DEDICATE
D PUBLIC

 STR
EET)

3 O'CLOCK DRIVE

(DEDICATED PUBLIC STREET)

60.00'

50.00'

30.
00'

30.
00'

30.
00'

30.
00'

30
.00

'

30
.00

'

30.
00'

30.
00'

30.00'

30.00'

60.00'

60.00'

30.
00'

30.
00'

30.00' 30.00'

30.00'

30.00'

30
.00

'
30

.00
'

30
.00

'
30

.00
'

30
.00

'
30

.00
'

30
.00

'

30
.00

'

30.00'

30.00'

C34

C35

CL5

CL3
CL2

CL11

CL12

CL14

CL15

CL16
 (T

OTAL)

CL13
 (T

OTA
L)

S 75°01'49" E      185.29'
(MON TO MON)NORTH      185.29'SOUTH      185.29'EAST      185.29'WEST      185.29'

N 46
°25

'21
" E

     
 41

0.0
3' (

MON TO MON)

NORTH      410.03'SOUTH      410.03'EAST      410.03'WEST      410.03'

S 3
4°

02
'00

" W
    

  5
47

.78
'

MON T
O M

ON

NORTH      547.78'SOUTH      547.78'EAST      547.78'WEST      547.78'

S 37°42'44" E      277.04' (MON TO MON)

NORTH      277.04'SOUTH      277.04'EAST      277.04'WEST      277.04'

60.00'

43.91'

42.28'

29.81' 86.19'
(MON TO MON)

N 45°04'22" W      116.00'

NORTH      116.00'SOUTH      116.00'EAST      116.00'WEST      116.00'

CL1

CL4 (TOTAL)
CL6

N 44°39'14" W      124.50'

NORTH      124.50'SOUTH      124.50'EAST      124.50'WEST      124.50'

CL7

334
.45

'

55.93'

55.
93'

N 41
°48

'14
" E

     
 43

4.8
5' (

PI T
O PI)

NORTH      434.84'SOUTH      434.84'EAST      434.84'WEST      434.84'

44.
47'

44.47'

CL8

36.38'

36.38'
84.41'

N 89°45'03" E      165.26' (PI TO PI)
NORTH      165.26'SOUTH      165.26'EAST      165.26'WEST      165.26'

CL9

CL10

61.
69'

61.69'

39.31'

N 50°15'47" W
137.38'
(PI TO PI)

NORTH137.38'SOUTH137.38'EAST137.38'WEST137.38'

N 41
°48

'14
" E

     
 54

5.0
7' (

PI T
O CL-I

NT)

NORTH      545.07'SOUTH      545.07'EAST      545.07'WEST      545.07'

438
.15

'

45.
23'

426
.27

'

57.
11'

23.94'

23.94'

24.32'

24.32'

N 45
°33

'01
" E

     
 63

2.4
0'

NORTH      632.40'SOUTH      632.40'EAST      632.40'WEST      632.40'

N 45°04'22" W

NORTHSOUTHEASTWEST

S 89°45'03" W      2039.94'
NORTH      2039.94'SOUTH      2039.94'EAST      2039.94'WEST      2039.94'

890.64'

PART OF
LOT 129

LOT 105
14,470 sq.ft.
0.33 acres

84.41'741.66'

42.28'

84.41'

CL17

10,764 sq.ft.
0.25 acres

PARCEL A
RETENTION POND 1

(DEDICATE
D PUBLIC

 ROAD)

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

C36

N 41
°48

'14
" E

     
 15

.00
'

NORTH      15.00'SOUTH      15.00'EAST      15.00'WEST      15.00'

611 WEST

603 WEST

593 WEST

N 79°07'50" W   130.31'
NORTH   130.31'SOUTH   130.31'EAST   130.31'WEST   130.31'

NO WIDTH SPECIFIED
POLE LINE

EASEMENT
ENTRY NO. 188827

NO WIDTH SPECIFIED
POLE LINE
EASEMENT
ENTRY NO. 229427

N 48°11'46" W      106.10'

NORTH      106.10'SOUTH      106.10'

STR
MON

20.0' WATERLINE EASEMENT.
TRESS, SHRUBS OR

OTHER DEEP ROOTED
VEGETATION PROHIBITED

15.0' TRAIL EASEMENT

1

PROPERTY LINE CURVE TABLE
CURVE

PC1

RADIUS

5669.65'

LENGTH

788.07'

DELTA

7°57'50"

BEARING

N41°34'08"E

CHORD

787.44'

CURVE TABLE
CURVE

CL1

CL2

CL3

CL4 (TOTAL)

CL5

CL6

CL7

CL8

CL9

CL10

CL11

CL12

CL13 (TOTAL)

CL14

CL15

CL16 (TOTAL)

CL17

RADIUS

100.00'

100.00'

100.00'

100.00'

100.00'

100.00'

59.50'

100.00'

100.00'

59.50'

5730.00'

5730.00'

5730.00'

5730.00'

5730.00'

5730.00'

100.00'

LENGTH

12.43'

34.56'

34.56'

46.99'

46.17'

47.72'

89.78'

83.68'

69.79'

95.61'

688.21'

60.45'

748.65'

60.44'

1.96'

62.41'

1.56'

DELTA

7°07'10"

19°48'14"

19°48'14"

26°55'24"

26°27'04"

27°20'32"

86°27'27"

47°56'50"

39°59'10"

92°04'01"

6°52'54"

0°36'16"

7°29'09"

0°36'16"

0°01'11"

0°37'27"

0°53'28"

BEARING

S48°37'57"E

S62°05'39"E

S62°05'39"E

S58°32'04"E

N57°52'46"W

N58°19'30"W

N1°25'30"W

N65°46'38"E

S70°15'22"E

S4°13'47"E

N40°52'52"E

N44°37'26"E

N41°11'00"E

N45°13'42"E

N45°32'26"E

N45°14'18"E

N71°33'02"W

CHORD

12.42'

34.39'

34.39'

46.56'

45.76'

47.27'

81.50'

81.26'

68.38'

85.65'

687.79'

60.45'

748.12'

60.44'

1.96'

62.41'

1.56'

CURVE TABLE
CURVE

C1

C2

C3

C4

C5

C6 (TOTAL)

C7

C8

C9

C10 (TOTAL)

C11

C12

C13

C14

C15

C16 (TOTAL)

C17

C18

C19

C20

C21

C22

C23

C24

C25

C26

C27

C28

C29

C30

C31 (TOTAL)

C32

C33

C34

C35

C36

RADIUS

5669.69'

29.50'

70.00'

130.00'

130.00'

130.00'

89.50'

89.50'

89.50'

89.50'

130.00'

29.50'

70.00'

70.00'

70.00'

70.00'

29.50'

29.50'

70.00'

29.50'

29.50'

5669.65'

5669.65'

5669.65'

5669.65'

5669.65'

5669.65'

5669.65'

89.50'

89.50'

89.50'

5669.65'

130.00'

5669.65'

5669.65'

5669.65'

LENGTH

1.97'

46.65'

32.89'

18.94'

43.09'

62.04'

34.70'

57.21'

43.14'

135.05'

108.79'

44.51'

58.58'

17.38'

31.47'

48.85'

47.40'

32.87'

32.32'

44.73'

46.65'

63.65'

70.03'

70.01'

70.00'

70.00'

70.02'

129.37'

48.32'

95.49'

143.81'

123.40'

90.73'

59.81'

59.81'

80.02'

DELTA

0°01'12"

90°36'14"

26°55'24"

8°20'56"

18°59'36"

27°20'32"

22°12'48"

36°37'39"

27°37'00"

86°27'27"

47°56'50"

86°27'27"

47°56'50"

14°13'27"

25°45'42"

39°59'10"

92°04'01"

63°50'03"

26°27'04"

86°52'36"

90°36'18"

0°38'36"

0°42'28"

0°42'27"

0°42'27"

0°42'27"

0°42'27"

1°18'27"

30°56'03"

61°07'58"

92°04'01"

1°14'49"

39°59'10"

0°36'16"

0°36'16"

0°48'31"

BEARING

S45°32'28"W

S0°13'45"W

S58°32'04"E

N67°49'18"W

N54°09'02"W

N58°19'30"W

N33°32'50"W

N4°07'36"W

N27°59'43"E

N1°25'30"W

N65°46'38"E

N1°25'30"W

N65°46'38"E

S83°08'13"E

S63°08'38"E

S70°15'22"E

S4°13'47"E

S73°43'15"W

N57°52'46"W

N1°38'04"W

S89°37'29"W

N44°00'02"E

N43°19'31"E

N42°37'03"E

N41°54'37"E

N41°12'10"E

N40°29'43"E

N39°29'16"E

S26°20'12"W

S19°41'48"E

S4°13'47"E

N38°12'38"E

S70°15'22"E

S44°37'28"W

S45°13'44"W

S40°32'45"W

CHORD

1.97'

41.94'

32.59'

18.93'

42.90'

61.45'

34.48'

56.25'

42.72'

122.60'

105.64'

40.41'

56.88'

17.33'

31.21'

47.87'

42.46'

31.19'

32.03'

40.57'

41.94'

63.65'

70.02'

70.01'

70.00'

70.00'

70.02'

129.37'

47.74'

91.03'

128.83'

123.40'

88.90'

59.81'

59.81'

80.02'

PROJECT  NUMBER :

DRAWN BY :

CHECKED BY :

MANAGER :

DATE :

SHEET
11575

2 OF 7

D. KINSMAN

M. SANDOVAL

T. HUSSEY

9/27/2023

TOOELE
169 North Main Street Unit 1
Tooele, Utah 84074
Phone: 435.843.3590
Fax: 435.578.0108

WWW.ENSIGNENG.COM

SALT LAKE CITY
Phone: 801.255.0529

LAYTON
Phone: 801.547.1100

CEDAR CITY
Phone: 435.865.1453

RICHFIELD
Phone: 435.896.2983

E N S I G N

 
PR

O
F E

SS I ONA L  L AND

 

SURVEYOR

HATU FO ETATS

DOUGLAS J
KINSMAN

No. 334575

CALL BLUESTAKES
@ 811 AT LEAST 48 HOURS
PRIOR TO THE
COMMENCEMENT OF  ANY
CONSTRUCTION.

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

1 O'CLOCK HILL SUBDIVISION
PHASE 1 PRELIMINARY PLAT

HORIZONTAL GRAPHIC SCALE
0

( IN FEET )
HORZ: 1 inch =        ft.##

## ## ## ###

1 O'CLOCK HILL SUBDIVISION PHASE 1
LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 32, TOWNSHIP

3 SOUTH, RANGE 4 WEST, SALT LAKE BASE AND MERIDIAN,
TOOELE CITY, TOOELE COUNTY, UTAH

DEVELOPER
SJ COMPANY

447 NORTH COOLEY STREET
GRANTSVILLE, UT 84029

801-349-0761

LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 32, TOWNSHIP
3 SOUTH, RANGE 4 WEST, SALT LAKE BASE AND MERIDIAN,

TOOELE CITY, TOOELE COUNTY, UTAH

LEGEND

ENSIGN ENG.
LAND SURV.

EXISTING STREET MONUMENT

PROPOSED STREET MONUMENT TO BE SET

SECTION CORNER

5/8"x24" REBAR WITH YELLOW PLASTIC CAP,
OR NAIL STAMPED "ENSIGN ENG. & LAND
SURV."

BOUNDARY LINE

ADJACENT PROPERTY LINE

SECTION LINE

CENTER LINE

EASEMENT LINE

RIGHT OF WAY LINE

ADJACENT RIGHT OF WAY LINE

TANGENT LINE

SOUTHEAST CORNER
OF SECTION 32,
TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH,
RANGE 4 WEST, SALT
LAKE BASE & MERIDIAN
(FOUND, DATED 1982)

BA
SI

S 
OF

 B
EA

RI
NG

  S
 0°

16
'21

" W
    

  2
65

1.1
5'

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE
I, Douglas J. Kinsman, do hereby certify that I am a Professional Land Surveyor, and that I hold License No. 334575, in accordance
with Title 58, Chapter 22, of the Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors Act. I further certify that by authority of the owners I have
completed a survey of the property described on this subdivision plat in accordance with Section 17-23-17, have verified all
measurements, and have subdivided said tract of land into lots, together with easements, hereafter to be known as 1 O'Clock Hill
Subdivision Phase 1 and that the same has been correctly surveyed and monumented on the ground as shown on this plat.

BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

OWNER'S DEDICATION AND CONSENT TO RECORD
Known all men by these present that we the undersigned are the owner(s) of the hereon described tract of land and hereby cause the same to
divided into lots together with easements as set forth hereafter to be known as:

The undersigned owner(s) hereby convey to Tooele City and to any and all public utility companies providing service to the hereon
described tract a perpetual, non-exclusive easement over the public utility and drainage easements shown on this plat, the same to be used
for drainage and for the installation, maintenance and operation of public utility service lines and facilities. The undersigned owner(s) also
hereby convey any other easements as shown to the parties indicated and for the purpose shown heron.

In witness whereof I / we have hereunto set my / our hand this                  day of                                                         A.D., 20               .

By: TOOELE 90 LLC
     SHAUN JOHNSON, MANAGER

LLC ACKNOWLEDGMENT
STATE OF UTAH
County of

On the               day of                                                        A.D., 20            ,                                                                                                       ,
                                                                                                                                                                                                              personally
appeared before me, the undersigned Notary public, in and for said County of                                                              in said State of Utah,
who after being duly sworn, acknowledged to me that  He/She/They signed the Owner's Dedication,               in number, freely and voluntarily
for  the purposes therein mentioned.

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:                                                                                  ,

                                                                                               RESIDING IN                                                             COUNTY.
NOTARY PUBLIC

A parcel of land, situate in the Southeast Quarter of Section 32, Township 3 South, Range 4 West, Salt Lake Base and Meridian,
said parcel also located in Tooele, Tooele County, Utah, more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at a point on the Section line of said Section 32 said point is located South 89°45'03” West 890.64 feet along the
section line from the Southeast Corner of Section 32, Township 3 South, Range 4 West, Salt Lake Base and Meridian, and running:

thence South 89°45'03” West 407.64 along said section line;
thence North 0°14'53” West 69.99 feet;
thence South 89°45'03” West 217.83 feet to the Easterly line of Main Street (State Road-36);
thence Northeasterly 788.07 feet along the arc of a 5669.65-foot radius non-tangent curve to the right (center bears South 52°24'47” East and

the long chord bears North 41°34'08” East 787.44 feet through a central angle of 7°57'50”) along said Easterly line;
thence North 45°31'24” East 91.41 feet along said Easterly line more or less to an existing barbwire fence post;
thence South 44°39'14” East 509.58 feet along said fence line;
thence South 41°48'14” West 480.18 feet to said section line and to the Point of Beginning.

Contains 362,559 square feet or 8.32 acres.

__________________________
Date
Douglas J Kinsman
License No. 334575

1 O'CLOCK HILL SUBDIVISION PHASE 1

SOUTH QUARTER
CORNER OF SECTION

32, TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH,
RANGE 4 WEST, SALT

LAKE BASE & MERIDIAN
(FOUND, DATED 1982)

TOOELE
}S.S.

SITE

SKYLINE DRIVE

700S

CO
LE

MA
N 

ST
RE

ET

900S

TEAD

TOOELE CITY

   VICINITY MAP   
NOT TO SCALE

EAST QUARTER CORNER OF SECTION 32,
TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH, RANGE 4 WEST,

SALT LAKE BASE & MERIDIAN
(CALCULATED POSITION ONLY )

25
.51

'
26

25
.64

'

WITNESS CORNER
TO EAST QUARTER CORNER

 OF SECTION 32,
TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH,

 RANGE 4 WEST,
SALT LAKE BASE & MERIDIAN

(FOUND, DATED 2021)

FEE$ TOOELE COUNTY RECORDER

STATE OF UTAH, COUNTY OF TOOELE, RECORDED AND FILED AT THE

DATE:                                              TIME:                                                 BOOK:                                                PAGE:

RECORDED #                                             

REQUEST OF :

TOOELE COUNTY RECORDER

1 RETENTION POND IS TO BE OWNED, OPERATED AND
MAINTAINED BY THE _______________________ H.O.A.

KEY NOTES

For
 R

ev
iew

09
/2

7/
20

23
  1

:3
7:

34
 P

M



MID MOUNTAIN ROAD

HILLSIDE ROAD

60' ROW EASEMENT
IN FAVOR OF PACIFICORP

ENTRY NO. 393622
(APPROXIMATE LOCATION

NO WIDTH SPECIFIED
POLE LINE

EASEMENT
ENTRY NO. 188827

NO WIDTH SPECIFIED
POLE LINE
EASEMENT
ENTRY NO. 229427

TRI-SHOPS

SUBDIVISION

ENTRY # H
ISTPO196

559

THE PHILLIP WARD
TURNER AND TERESA

LEE TURNER LIVING TRUST
ENTRY NO. 537688

THE PRITZKAU

FAMILY TRUST

ENTRY NO. 288305

LOT 8

COLEMAN STREET

THE PHILLIP WARD
TURNER AND TERESA

LEE TURNER LIVING TRUST
ENTRY NO. 452364

30.00'

30.00'

30.
00'

30.
00'

30.
00'

30.00'

MAIN STREET (S
TATE ROAD 36

)

STR
MON

TO
OELE

 90
 LL

C

ENTR
Y NO. 57

118
2

S 45
°32

'03
" W

     
607

.08
'

NORTH     607.08'SOUTH     607.08'EAST     607.08'WEST     607.08'

607
.08

'

787
.49

'

S 45
°42

'02
" W

   9
8.1

3'

NORTH   98.13'SOUTH   98.13'EAST   98.13'WEST   98.13'

N 44°09'44" W     202.86'

NORTH     202.86'SOUTH     202.86'EAST     202.86'WEST     202.86'

N 44°46'56" W     225.36'

NORTH     225.36'SOUTH     225.36'EAST     225.36'WEST     225.36'

67.43'

63.63'

71.80'

79.69'

3.87'

32.43'

71.30'

37.27'

86.
13'

83.
00'

83.
00'

83.
00'

83.
00'

73.
75'

73.
75'

73.
75'

73.
75'

73.
75'

73.
75'

80.
27'

70.
00'

70.
00'

70.
00'

70.
00'

70.
00'

70.
00'

70.
00'

89.
70'

60.
41'

70.
00'

70.
00'

70.
00'

70.
00'

70.
00'

70.
00'

70.
00'

S 45
°32

'03
" W

   7
3.7

5'

NORTH   73.75'SOUTH   73.75'EAST   73.75'WEST   73.75'

73.
75'

S 45
°32

'03
" W

   7
3.7

5'

NORTH   73.75'SOUTH   73.75'EAST   73.75'WEST   73.75'

73.
75'

73.
75'

73.
75'

73.
75'

S 45
°32

'03
" W

   7
3.7

5'

NORTH   73.75'SOUTH   73.75'EAST   73.75'WEST   73.75'

N 44°27'57" W   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

N 44°27'57" W   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

N 44°27'57" W   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

N 44°27'57" W   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

N 44°27'57" W   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

N 44°27'57" W   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

N 44°27'57" W   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

N 44°27'57" W   96.54'

S 44°27'57" E   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

S 44°27'57" E   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

S 44°27'57" E   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

S 44°27'57" E   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

S 44°27'57" E   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

S 44°27'57" E   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

S 44°27'57" E   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

S 44°27'57" E   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

N 44°27'57" W   100.17'

NORTH   100.17'SOUTH   100.17'EAST   100.17'WEST   100.17'

N 44°27'57" W   100.18'

NORTH   100.18'SOUTH   100.18'EAST   100.18'WEST   100.18'

N 44°27'57" W   100.20'

NORTH   100.20'SOUTH   100.20'EAST   100.20'WEST   100.20'

N 44°27'57" W   100.22'

NORTH   100.22'SOUTH   100.22'EAST   100.22'WEST   100.22'

N 44°27'57" W   100.23'

160
.00

'

86.
13'

83.
00'

83.
00'

83.
00'

C4

S 45
°42

'02
" W

   9
9.3

3'

NORTH   99.33'SOUTH   99.33'EAST   99.33'WEST   99.33'

787
.44

'

N 44°27'57" W   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

N 45
°31

'25
" E

     
709

.61
'

NORTH     709.61'SOUTH     709.61'EAST     709.61'WEST     709.61'

14,255 sq.ft.
0.33 acres

PARCEL B
RETENTION POND 2

LOT 202
7,111 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 203
7,000 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 205
8,150 sq.ft.
0.19 acres

LOT 204
6,291 sq.ft.
0.14 acres

S 44°17'58" E      141.00'

NORTH      141.00'SOUTH      141.00'EAST      141.00'WEST      141.00'

59.67'

59.
67'

S 45
°42

'02
" W

   9
8.2

6'

NORTH   98.26'SOUTH   98.26'EAST   98.26'WEST   98.26' C1

N 45
°42

'02
" E

   1
02.

38'

NORTH   102.38'SOUTH   102.38'EAST   102.38'WEST   102.38'

70.69'

C2

S 45
°42

'02
" W

     
98.

59'

NORTH     98.59'SOUTH     98.59'EAST     98.59'WEST     98.59'

71.12'

PC3
C3 (TOTAL)

70.41'

LOT 206
8,797 sq.ft.
0.20 acres

LOT 207
7,000 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 208
7,000 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 209
7,000 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 210
7,000 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 211
7,000 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 212
7,000 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 213
7,000 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 214
7,997 sq.ft.
0.18 acres

LOT 223
7,375 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

LOT 216
8,770 sq.ft.
0.20 acres

LOT 224
7,375 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

LOT 217
7,375 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

LOT 218
7,375 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

LOT 219
7,375 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

LOT 220
7,375 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

LOT 221
7,375 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

LOT 222
7,375 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

70.59'

C1
8

60.
00'

89.
70'

89.
29'

N 44°27'57" W   100.15'

NORTH   100.15'SOUTH   100.15'EAST   100.15'WEST   100.15'

60.
35'

S 44°17'58" E   105.05'

NORTH   105.05'SOUTH   105.05'EAST   105.05'WEST   105.05'

LOT 243
9,004 sq.ft.
0.21 acres

LOT 242
8,627 sq.ft.
0.20 acres

LOT 241
8,315 sq.ft.
0.19 acres

LOT 240
8,316 sq.ft.
0.19 acres

LOT 239
8,317 sq.ft.
0.19 acres

LOT 238
8,319 sq.ft.
0.19 acres

(DEDICATED PUBLIC STREET)

(DEDICATED PUBLIC STREET)

(DEDICATED PUBLIC STREET)

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

192
.02

'

LOT 201
8,260 sq.ft.
0.19 acres

30.00'

30.
00'

S 84°28'55" E   51.83'
NORTH   51.83'SOUTH   51.83'EAST   51.83'WEST   51.83'

N 45
°42

'02
" E

   1
07.

52'

NORTH   107.52'SOUTH   107.52'EAST   107.52'WEST   107.52'

C17 (TOTAL)
C16

C15

C1
4

C13

CL3

CL
4

STR
MON 1120 SOUTH

STREET

550 WEST

544 WEST

536 WEST

530 WEST

524 WEST

112
8 S

OUTH

112
0 S

OUTH

111
2 S

OUTH

110
6 S

OUTH

109
8 S

OUTH

109
2 S

OUTH

108
2 S

OUTH

107
8 S

OUTH

107
0 S

OUTH

539 WEST

109
3 S

OUTH

108
7 S

OUTH

107
9 S

OUTH

107
1 S

OUTH

106
5 S

OUTH

107
6 S

OUTH

108
4 S

OUTH

109
0 S

OUTH

109
6 S

OUTH

110
4 S

OUTH

111
2 S

OUTH553 WEST

527 WEST

N 60°52'24" W      209.19'

MON TO MON
NORTH      209.19'SOUTH      209.19'EAST      209.19'WEST      209.19'

73.
75'

111
7 S

OUTH

110
9 S

OUTH

110
1 S

OUTH

SET BAR
AND CAP

35.0' UTILITY
EASEMENT

S 
1°

08
'15

" W
    

 43
.42

'

NORTH     43.42'SOUTH     43.42'EAST     43.42'WEST     43.42'

HILLSIDE ROAD

(DEDICATED PUBLIC STREET)

MID MOUNTAIN ROAD

(DEDICATED PUBLIC STREET)

(DEDICATED PUBLIC STREET)

787
.48

'

N 45
°32

'03
" E

     
 84

6.9
6'

NORTH      846.96'SOUTH      846.96'EAST      846.96'WEST      846.96'

N 45
°32

'03
" E

     
 61

7.6
6' (

MON TO MON)

NORTH      617.66'SOUTH      617.66'EAST      617.66'WEST      617.66'

607
.08

'

WATER DEED
EASEMENT
ENTRY NO.

355230

59.33'

59.
33'

1

TREES SHRUBS
OR OTHER
DEEP ROOTED
VEGETATION
IS PROHIBITED

PROPERTY LINE CURVE TABLE
CURVE

PC1

PC2

PC3

RADIUS

130.00'

130.00'

89.50'

LENGTH

176.77'

27.40'

64.10'

DELTA

77°54'34"

12°04'29"

41°02'04"

BEARING

S5°29'42"E

S39°29'49"W

S66°03'05"W

CHORD

163.46'

27.35'

62.74'

CENTER LINE CURVE TABLE
CURVE

CL1

CL2

CL3

CL4

RADIUS

100.00'

100.00'

59.50'

59.50'

LENGTH

135.98'

21.07'

93.64'

93.29'

DELTA

77°54'34"

12°04'29"

90°09'59"

89°50'01"

BEARING

N5°29'42"W

S39°29'49"W

N89°22'57"W

N0°37'03"E

CHORD

125.74'

21.04'

84.27'

84.02'

CURVE TABLE
CURVE

C1

C2

C3 (TOTAL)

C4

C5

C6

C7

C8

C9

C10

C11

C12

C13

C14

RADIUS

89.50'

89.50'

89.50'

29.50'

70.00'

70.00'

29.50'

29.50'

29.50'

29.50'

29.50'

29.50'

89.50'

89.50'

LENGTH

26.75'

50.00'

140.85'

46.42'

14.75'

95.18'

46.35'

46.33'

46.35'

46.32'

46.35'

46.33'

29.80'

30.52'

DELTA

17°07'32"

32°00'23"

90°09'59"

90°09'59"

12°04'29"

77°54'34"

90°00'57"

89°59'02"

90°00'58"

89°58'24"

90°01'35"

89°59'03"

19°04'43"

19°32'11"

25°36'41"

BEARING

N52°51'44"W

N77°25'41"W

S89°22'57"E

S89°22'57"E

N39°29'49"E

N5°29'42"W

N89°27'28"W

S0°32'32"W

S89°27'28"E

S0°32'13"W

N89°27'47"W

N0°32'32"E

N35°59'42"E

N16°41'15"E

N5°53'11"W

CHORD

26.65'

49.35'

126.76'

41.78'

14.72'

88.02'

41.73'

41.71'

41.73'

41.71'

41.73'

41.71'

29.66'

30.37'

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE
I, Douglas J. Kinsman, do hereby certify that I am a Professional Land Surveyor, and that I hold License No. 334575, in accordance
with Title 58, Chapter 22, of the Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors Act. I further certify that by authority of the owners I have
completed a survey of the property described on this subdivision plat in accordance with Section 17-23-17, have verified all
measurements, and have subdivided said tract of land into lots, together with easements, hereafter to be known as 1 o'clock
Subdivision Phase 2 and that the same has been correctly surveyed and monumented on the ground as shown on this plat.

BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

PROJECT  NUMBER :

DRAWN BY :

CHECKED BY :

MANAGER :

DATE :

SHEET
11575

3 OF 7

D. KINSMAN

M. SANDOVAL

T. HUSSEY

9/26/2023

TOOELE
169 North Main Street Unit 1
Tooele, Utah 84074
Phone: 435.843.3590
Fax: 435.578.0108

WWW.ENSIGNENG.COM

SALT LAKE CITY
Phone: 801.255.0529

LAYTON
Phone: 801.547.1100

CEDAR CITY
Phone: 435.865.1453

RICHFIELD
Phone: 435.896.2983

E N S I G N

OWNER'S DEDICATION AND CONSENT TO RECORD
Known all men by these present that we the undersigned are the owner(s) of the hereon described tract of land and hereby cause the same to
divided into lots together with easements as set forth hereafter to be known as:

The undersigned owner(s) hereby convey to Tooele City and to any and all public utility companies providing service to the hereon
described tract a perpetual, non-exclusive easement over the public utility and drainage easements shown on this plat, the same to be used
for drainage and for the installation, maintenance and operation of public utility service lines and facilities. The undersigned owner(s) also
hereby convey any other easements as shown to the parties indicated and for the purpose shown heron.

 
PR

O
FE

SS I ONA L  L AND

 

SURVEYOR

HATU FO ETATS

DOUGLAS J
KINSMAN

No. 334575

INDIVIDUAL ACKNOWLEDGMENT
STATE OF UTAH
County of

On the               day of                                                        A.D., 20            ,                                                                                                       ,
                                                                                                                                                                                                              personally
appeared before me, the undersigned Notary public, in and for said County of                                                              in said State of Utah,
who after being duly sworn, acknowledged to me that  He/She/They signed the Owner's Dedication,               in number, freely and voluntarily
for  the purposes therein mentioned.

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:                                                                                  ,

                                                                                               RESIDING IN                                                             COUNTY.
NOTARY PUBLIC

CALL BLUESTAKES
@ 811 AT LEAST 48 HOURS
PRIOR TO THE
COMMENCEMENT OF  ANY
CONSTRUCTION.Know what's below.

before you dig.Call

R

1 O'CLOCK HILL SUBDIVISION PHASE 2
PRELIMINARY PLAT

A parcel of land, situate in the Southeast Quarter of Section 32, and the Southwest Quarter of Section 33, Township 3
South, Range 4 West, Salt Lake Base and Meridian, said parcel also located in Tooele, Tooele County, Utah, more particularly described
as follows:

Beginning at a point which is located North 0°16'21” East 1636.10 feet along the section line to the Easterly line of Main Street
(State Road-36), from the Southeast Corner of Section 36, Township 2 South, Range 6 West, Salt Lake Base and Meridian, and running:

thence North 45°31'25” East 658.82 feet along said Easterly line of Main Street (State Road-36);
thence South 44°27'57” East 100.36 feet;
thence South 41°34'18” East 60.08 feet;
thence South 44°27'57” East 100.00 feet;
thence South 45°31'41” West 299.52 feet;
thence Southeasterly 176.77 feet along the arc of a 130.00-foot radius tangent curve to the right (center bears South 45°33'01” West and the

long chord bears South 5°29'42” East 163.46 feet through a central angle of 77°54'34”);
thence South 33°27'35” West 143.43 feet;
thence Southwesterly 27.40 feet along the arc of a 130.00-foot radius tangent curve to the right (center bears North 56°32'25” West and the

long chord bears South 39°29'49” West 27.35 feet through a central angle of 12°04'29”);
thence South 45°32'03” West 607.08 feet;
thence Southwesterly 64.10 feet along the arc of an 89.50-foot radius tangent curve to the right (center bears North 44°27'57” West and the

long chord bears South 66°03'05” West 62.74 feet through a central angle of 41°02'04”);
thence South 1°08'15” West 43.42 feet;
thence South 45°42'02” West 98.59 feet more or less to an existing barbwire fence post;
thence North 44°09'44” West 202.86 feet along said fence line;
thence North 44°46'56” West 225.36 feet along said fence line and to the Easterly line of Main Street (State Road-36);
thence North 45°31'25” East 709.61 feet along said Easterly line of Main Street (State Road-36) and to the Point of Beginning.

Contains 516,958 square feet or 11.87 acres.

__________________________
Date
Douglas J Kinsman
License No. 334575

1 O'CLOCK HILL SUBDIVISION PHASE 2 
LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 32 AND THE

SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH, RANGE
4 WEST, SALT LAKE BASE AND MERIDIAN,

TOOELE CITY, TOOELE COUNTY, UTAH

1 O'CLOCK HILL SUBDIVISION PHASE 2

DEVELOPER
SJ COMPANY

447 NORTH COOLEY STREET
GRANTSVILLE, UT 84029

801-349-0761

LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 32 AND THE
SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH, RANGE

4 WEST, SALT LAKE BASE AND MERIDIAN,
TOOELE CITY, TOOELE COUNTY, UTAH

In witness whereof I / we have hereunto set my / our hand this                  day of                                                         A.D., 20               .

By: TOOELE 90
     SHAUN JOHNSON, MANAGER

TOOELE
}S.S.

SOUTHEAST QUARTER
CORNER OF SECTION
32, TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH,
RANGE 4 WEST, SALT
LAKE BASE & MERIDIAN
(FOUND, DATED 1982)

HORIZONTAL GRAPHIC SCALE
0

( IN FEET )
HORZ: 1 inch =        ft.40

40 20 40 80

LEGEND

ENSIGN ENG.
LAND SURV.

EXISTING STREET MONUMENT

PROPOSED STREET MONUMENT TO BE SET

SECTION CORNER

5/8"x24" REBAR WITH YELLOW PLASTIC CAP,
OR NAIL STAMPED "ENSIGN ENG. & LAND
SURV."

BOUNDARY LINE

ADJACENT PROPERTY LINE

SECTION LINE

CENTER LINE

EASEMENT LINE

RIGHT OF WAY LINE

ADJACENT RIGHT OF WAY LINE

TANGENT LINE

16
36

.10
'

SITE

SKYLINE DRIVE

700S

CO
LE

MA
N 

ST
RE

ET

900S

TEAD

TOOELE CITY

   VICINITY MAP   
NOT TO SCALE

SEE DRAWING 2 OF 2

SEE DRAWING 2 OF 2

BA
SI

S 
OF

 B
EA

RI
NG

  S
 0°

16
'21

" W
    

  2
65

1.1
5'

WITNESS CORNER TO EAST QUARTER CORNER OF SECTION 32,
TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH, RANGE 4 WEST, SALT LAKE BASE & MERIDIAN
(FOUND, DATED 2021)

EAST QUARTER CORNER OF SECTION 32, TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH, RANGE 4
WEST, SALT LAKE BASE & MERIDIAN
(CALCULATED POSITION ONLY )

25
.51

'
26

25
.64

'

1 RETENTION POND IS TO BE OWNED, OPERATED AND
MAINTAINED BY THE _______________________ H.O.A.

KEY NOTES

For
 R

ev
iew

09
/2

7/
20

23
  1

:3
7:

34
 P

M



MID MOUNTAIN ROAD

HILLSIDE ROAD

HILLSIDE ROAD

60' ROW EASEMENT
IN FAVOR OF PACIFICORP

ENTRY NO. 393622
(APPROXIMATE LOCATION)

WATER DEED
EASEMENT
ENTRY NO.

355230

NO WIDTH SPECIFIED
POLE LINE

EASEMENT
ENTRY NO. 229433

30.00'

30.00'

30.00'

30.00'

LOT 6

LOT 7

30.
00'

30.
00'

30.
00'

30.
00'

30.00'
30.00'

30.00'

30.00'

30.
00'

30.
00'

STR
MON

STR
MON

TO
OELE

 90
 LL

C

ENTR
Y NO. 57

118
2

42.
18'

S 45
°32

'03
" W

     
607

.08
'

607
.08

'

14
3.4

3'

S 3
3°

27
'35

" W
    

 14
3.4

3'

NORTH     143.43'SOUTH     143.43'EAST     143.43'WEST     143.43'

787
.49

'

S 45
°31

'41
" W

     
299

.52
'

NORTH     299.52'SOUTH     299.52'EAST     299.52'WEST     299.52'

86.
13'

83.
00'

83.
00'

83.
00'

83.
00'

83.
00'

83.
00'

70.
00'

73.
75'

73.
75'

73.
75'

73.
75'

73.
75'

73.
75'

77.
45'

80.
27'

70.
00'

70.
00'

70.
00'

70.
00'

70.
00'

70.
00'

70.
00'

70.
00'

70.
00'

56.
67'

9.16'

S 45
°32

'03
" W

   7
3.7

5'

NORTH   73.75'SOUTH   73.75'EAST   73.75'WEST   73.75'

73.
75'

73.
75'

73.
75'

73.
75'

S 45
°32

'03
" W

   7
3.7

5'

NORTH   73.75'SOUTH   73.75'EAST   73.75'WEST   73.75'

77.
45'

N 44°27'57" W   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

N 44°27'57" W   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

N 44°27'57" W   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

N 44°27'57" W   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

N 44°27'57" W   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

N 44°27'57" W   96.54'

NORTH   96.54'SOUTH   96.54'EAST   96.54'WEST   96.54'

S 44°27'57" E   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

S 44°27'57" E   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

S 44°27'57" E   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

S 44°27'57" E   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

S 44°27'57" E   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

S 44°27'57" E   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

S 44°27'57" E   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

S 44°27'57" E   100.00'

N 44°27'57" W   100.17'

NORTH   100.17'SOUTH   100.17'EAST   100.17'WEST   100.17'

N 44°27'57" W   100.18'

NORTH   100.18'SOUTH   100.18'EAST   100.18'WEST   100.18'

N 44°27'57" W   100.20'

NORTH   100.20'SOUTH   100.20'EAST   100.20'WEST   100.20'

N 44°27'57" W   100.22'

NORTH   100.22'SOUTH   100.22'EAST   100.22'WEST   100.22'

N 44°27'57" W   100.23'

NORTH   100.23'SOUTH   100.23'EAST   100.23'WEST   100.23'

N 44°27'57" W   100.25'

NORTH   100.25'SOUTH   100.25'EAST   100.25'WEST   100.25'

N 44°27'57" W   100.26'

NORTH   100.26'SOUTH   100.26'EAST   100.26'WEST   100.26'

N 44°27'57" W   100.27'

NORTH   100.27'SOUTH   100.27'EAST   100.27'WEST   100.27'

83.
00'

83.
00'

83.
00'

83.
00'

C5

PC2

787
.44

'

59.23'

59.17' N 45
°31

'25
" E

     
658

.82
'

NORTH     658.82'SOUTH     658.82'EAST     658.82'WEST     658.82'

S 44°27'57" E     100.36'

NORTH     100.36'SOUTH     100.36'EAST     100.36'WEST     100.36'

S 44°27'57" E     100.00'

NORTH     100.00'SOUTH     100.00'EAST     100.00'WEST     100.00'

S 41°34'18" E

60.08'NORTH60.08'SOUTH60.08'EAST60.08'WEST60.08'

STR
MON10.58'

10.58'

70.51'

59.52'

N 44°26'59" W      210.87'

(MON TO PI)

NORTH      210.87'SOUTH      210.87'EAST      210.87'WEST      210.87'

59.48'

70.54'

80.85'

80
.85

'

PC1

CL1

30.
00'

30.
00'

30.00'
30.00'

59.48'

41.29'

29.53'

59.20'

59.52'

41.31'

29.47'

S 44°26'59" E

130.30'

(MON TO MON)

NORTH130.30'SOUTH130.30'EAST130.30'WEST130.30'

30.04'

30.04'

59.
51'

59.
50'

271
.52

'

59.
48'59.

52'

271
.48

'

N 45
°32

'03
" E

     
 33

1.0
0' (

MON TO PL)

NORTH      331.00'SOUTH      331.00'EAST      331.00'WEST      331.00'

LOT 209

LOT 210
7,000 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 211
7,000 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 212
7,000 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 213
7,000 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 214
7,997 sq.ft.
0.18 acres

LOT 215
13,662 sq.ft.
0.31 acres

LOT 223
7,375 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

LOT 224
7,375 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

LOT 225
7,745 sq.ft.
0.18 acres

LOT 218
7,375 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

LOT 219
7,375 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

LOT 220
7,375 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

LOT 221
7,375 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

LOT 222
7,375 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

LOT 226
8,763 sq.ft.
0.20 acres

LOT 227
8,766 sq.ft.
0.20 acres

LOT 229
7,001 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 230
7,000 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 228
7,001 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

13
4.2

7'

S 45
°32

'03
" W

   1
86.

66'

NORTH   186.66'SOUTH   186.66'EAST   186.66'WEST   186.66'

0.02'

C6

70.49'

89.
48'

S 44°27'57" E   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

60.
00'

C7

LOT 241
8,315 sq.ft.
0.19 acres

LOT 240
8,316 sq.ft.
0.19 acres

LOT 239
8,317 sq.ft.
0.19 acres

LOT 238
8,319 sq.ft.
0.19 acres

LOT 237
8,320 sq.ft.
0.19 acres

LOT 236
8,321 sq.ft.
0.19 acres

LOT 235
7,019 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

9,906 sq.ft.
0.23 acres

PARCEL C
RETENTION POND 3

40.
82'

83.
00'

70.
00'

73.
01'

C11

41.29'

C1
2

N 45
°32

'03
" E

   7
3.0

0'

NORTH   73.00'SOUTH   73.00'EAST   73.00'WEST   73.00'

59.
99' N 44°27'57" W   100.32'

NORTH   100.32'SOUTH   100.32'EAST   100.32'WEST   100.32'

60.
00'

C9

41.31'

C1
0

71.
00'

N 44°27'57" W   100.33'

NORTH   100.33'SOUTH   100.33'EAST   100.33'WEST   100.33'

71.
00'

71.
00'

N 44°27'57" W   100.35'

NORTH   100.35'SOUTH   100.35'EAST   100.35'WEST   100.35'

71.
00'

71.
00'

71.
00'

LOT 234
8,604 sq.ft.
0.20 acres

LOT 231
7,125 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 232
7,124 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 233
7,123 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

N 44°27'57" W   100.02'

NORTH   100.02'SOUTH   100.02'EAST   100.02'WEST   100.02'

89.
52'70.54'

C8

60.
00'

70.
00'

N 44°27'57" W   100.02'

NORTH   100.02'SOUTH   100.02'EAST   100.02'WEST   100.02'

70.
00'

N 44°27'57" W   100.01'

NORTH   100.01'SOUTH   100.01'EAST   100.01'WEST   100.01'

70.
00'

70.
00'

70.
00'

70.
00'

(DEDICATED PUBLIC STREET)

(DEDICATED PUBLIC STREET)

(DEDICATED PUBLIC STREET)

1025 SOUTH

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

POINT OF BEGINNING
SET BAR

 AND CAP

N 45
°33

'01
" E

     
 10

97.
82'

NORTH      1097.82'SOUTH      1097.82'EAST      1097.82'WEST      1097.82'

846
.28

'

59.
51'

N 45
°33

'01
" E

NORTHSOUTHEASTWEST

59.
49'

TOOELE 90 LLC

ENTRY NO. 571182

CL2

109
8 S

OUTH

109
2 S

OUTH

108
2 S

OUTH

107
8 S

OUTH

107
0 S

OUTH

10
56

 SO
UT

H

109
3 S

OUTH

108
7 S

OUTH

107
9 S

OUTH

107
1 S

OUTH

106
5 S

OUTH

105
7 S

OUTH

104
9 S

OUTH

104
1 S

OUTH 450 WEST

433 WEST

102
3 S

OUTH

101
7 S

OUTH

101
1 S

OUTH

100
3 S

OUTH

998
 SOUTH

100
6 S

OUTH

101
4 S

OUTH

102
2 S

OUTH471 WEST

104
4 S

OUTH

106
2 S

OUTH

106
8 S

OUTH

107
6 S

OUTH

108
4 S

OUTH

109
0 S

OUTH

109
6 S

OUTH

110
4 S

OUTH

73.
75'

110
1 S

OUTH

N 41
°47

'23
" E

     
 90

8.4
0'

(M
ON TO

 MON)
NORTH      908.40'SOUTH      908.40'EAST      908.40'WEST      908.40'

(DEDICATED PUBLIC STREET)

N 25°18'42" W
      241.13' (MON TO MON)

NORTH      241.13'SOUTH      241.13'EAST      241.13'WEST      241.13'

HILLSIDE ROAD

(DEDICATED PUBLIC STREET)

MAIN STREET (S
TATE ROAD 36

)

(DEDICATED PUBLIC STREET)

787
.48

'

N 45
°32

'03
" E

     
 84

6.9
6'

NORTH      846.96'SOUTH      846.96'EAST      846.96'WEST      846.96'

59.
48'

N 45
°32

'03
" E

     
 61

7.6
6' (

MON TO MON)

N 3
3°

27
'35

" E
    

  1
54

.00
' (M

ON T
O M

ON)

NORTH      154.01'SOUTH      154.01'EAST      154.01'WEST      154.01'

STR
MON

23
4.8

5' 
(M

ON T
O PL

)

WATER DEED
EASEMENT
ENTRY NO.

355230

WATER DEED
EASEMENT
ENTRY NO.

355230

1

PROPERTY LINE CURVE TABLE
CURVE

PC1

PC2

PC3

RADIUS

130.00'

130.00'

89.50'

LENGTH

176.77'

27.40'

64.10'

DELTA

77°54'34"

12°04'29"

41°02'04"

BEARING

S5°29'42"E

S39°29'49"W

S66°03'05"W

CHORD

163.46'

27.35'

62.74'

CENTER LINE CURVE TABLE
CURVE

CL1

CL2

CL3

CL4

RADIUS

100.00'

100.00'

59.50'

59.50'

LENGTH

135.98'

21.07'

93.64'

93.29'

DELTA

77°54'34"

12°04'29"

90°09'59"

89°50'01"

BEARING

N5°29'42"W

S39°29'49"W

N89°22'57"W

N0°37'03"E

CHORD

125.74'

21.04'

84.27'

84.02'

CURVE TABLE
CURVE

C1

C2

C3 (TOTAL)

C4

C5

C6

C7

C8

C9

C10

C11

C12

C13

C14

RADIUS

89.50'

89.50'

89.50'

29.50'

70.00'

70.00'

29.50'

29.50'

29.50'

29.50'

29.50'

29.50'

89.50'

89.50'

LENGTH

26.75'

50.00'

140.85'

46.42'

14.75'

95.18'

46.35'

46.33'

46.35'

46.32'

46.35'

46.33'

29.80'

30.52'

DELTA

17°07'32"

32°00'23"

90°09'59"

90°09'59"

12°04'29"

77°54'34"

90°00'57"

89°59'02"

90°00'58"

89°58'24"

90°01'35"

89°59'03"

19°04'43"

19°32'11"

25°36'41"

BEARING

N52°51'44"W

N77°25'41"W

S89°22'57"E

S89°22'57"E

N39°29'49"E

N5°29'42"W

N89°27'28"W

S0°32'32"W

S89°27'28"E

S0°32'13"W

N89°27'47"W

N0°32'32"E

N35°59'42"E

N16°41'15"E

N5°53'11"W

CHORD

26.65'

49.35'

126.76'

41.78'

14.72'

88.02'

41.73'

41.71'

41.73'

41.71'

41.73'

41.71'

29.66'

30.37'

PROJECT  NUMBER :

DRAWN BY :

CHECKED BY :

MANAGER :

DATE :

SHEET
11575

4 OF 7

D. KINSMAN

M. SANDOVAL

T. HUSSEY

9/26/2023

TOOELE
169 North Main Street Unit 1
Tooele, Utah 84074
Phone: 435.843.3590
Fax: 435.578.0108

WWW.ENSIGNENG.COM

SALT LAKE CITY
Phone: 801.255.0529

LAYTON
Phone: 801.547.1100

CEDAR CITY
Phone: 435.865.1453

RICHFIELD
Phone: 435.896.2983

E N S I G N

 
PR

OF
ESS I ONA L  L AND

 

SURVEYOR

HATU FO ETATS

DOUGLAS J
KINSMAN

No. 334575

CALL BLUESTAKES
@ 811 AT LEAST 48 HOURS
PRIOR TO THE
COMMENCEMENT OF  ANY
CONSTRUCTION.Know what's below.

before you dig.Call

R

1 O'CLOCK HILL SUBDIVISION PHASE 2
PRELIMINARY PLAT

HORIZONTAL GRAPHIC SCALE
0

( IN FEET )
HORZ: 1 inch =        ft.40

40 20 40 80

1 O'CLOCK HILL SUBDIVISION PHASE 2 
LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 32 AND THE

SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH, RANGE
4 WEST, SALT LAKE BASE AND MERIDIAN,

TOOELE CITY, TOOELE COUNTY, UTAH

DEVELOPER
SJ COMPANY

447 NORTH COOLEY STREET
GRANTSVILLE, UT 84029

801-349-0761

LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 32 AND THE
SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH, RANGE

4 WEST, SALT LAKE BASE AND MERIDIAN,
TOOELE CITY, TOOELE COUNTY, UTAH

FEE$ TOOELE COUNTY RECORDER

STATE OF UTAH, COUNTY OF TOOELE, RECORDED AND FILED AT THE

DATE:                                              TIME:                                             BOOK:                                            PAGE:

RECORDED #                                             

REQUEST OF :

TOOELE COUNTY RECORDER

LEGEND

ENSIGN ENG.
LAND SURV.

EXISTING STREET MONUMENT

PROPOSED STREET MONUMENT TO BE SET

SECTION CORNER

5/8"x24" REBAR WITH YELLOW PLASTIC CAP,
OR NAIL STAMPED "ENSIGN ENG. & LAND
SURV."

BOUNDARY LINE

ADJACENT PROPERTY LINE

SECTION LINE

CENTER LINE

EASEMENT LINE

RIGHT OF WAY LINE

ADJACENT RIGHT OF WAY LINE

TANGENT LINE

SOUTHEAST QUARTER
CORNER OF SECTION
32, TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH,
RANGE 4 WEST, SALT
LAKE BASE & MERIDIAN
(FOUND, DATED 1982)

10
15

.05
'

16
36

.10
'

SEE DRAWING 1 OF 2

SEE DRAWING 1 OF 2

SITE

SKYLINE DRIVE

700S

CO
LE

MA
N 

ST
RE

ET

900S

TEAD

TOOELE CITY

   VICINITY MAP   
NOT TO SCALE

BA
SI

S 
OF

 B
EA

RI
NG

  S
 0°

16
'21

" W
    

  2
65

1.1
5'

WITNESS CORNER TO EAST QUARTER CORNER OF SECTION 32,
TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH, RANGE 4 WEST, SALT LAKE BASE & MERIDIAN
(FOUND, DATED 2021)

EAST QUARTER CORNER OF SECTION 32, TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH, RANGE 4
WEST, SALT LAKE BASE & MERIDIAN
(CALCULATED POSITION ONLY )

25
.51

'

1 RETENTION POND IS TO BE OWNED, OPERATED AND
MAINTAINED BY THE _______________________ H.O.A.

KEY NOTES

For
 R

ev
iew

09
/2

7/
20

23
  1

:3
7:

34
 P

M



CENTER LINE CURVE TABLE
CURVE

CL1

CL2

CL3

CL4 (TOTAL)

CL5

CL6

CL7

CL8

CL9

CL10

CL11 (TOTAL)

CL12

CL13

CL14

CL15 (TOTAL)

CL16

CL17

RADIUS

270.00'

1000.00'

1000.00'

1000.00'

370.00'

280.00'

100.00'

100.00'

5729.99'

5729.19'

5730.00'

5731.24'

5730.20'

5729.89'

5730.00'

5730.00'

8060.00'

LENGTH

10.92'

45.34'

35.87'

81.21'

29.45'

196.29'

12.95'

79.52'

440.89'

60.56'

501.45'

39.32'

243.08'

432.53'

735.92'

167.73'

160.09'

DELTA

2°19'03"

2°35'52"

2°03'18"

4°39'10"

4°33'39"

40°09'57"

7°25'06"

45°33'42"

4°24'31"

0°36'20"

5°00'51"

0°23'35"

2°25'50"

4°19'30"

7°21'31"

1°40'38"

1°08'17"

BEARING

N46°41'35"E

N49°09'02"E

N51°28'37"E

N50°10'41"E

N54°47'06"E

N77°08'54"E

S86°28'40"E

N67°01'55"E

N47°45'16"E

N50°15'42"E

S48°03'26"W

N50°45'39"E

N52°22'58"E

N55°45'38"E

S54°14'37"W

S58°45'42"W

N59°01'52"E

CHORD

10.92'

45.34'

35.86'

81.18'

29.45'

192.29'

12.94'

77.44'

440.78'

60.56'

501.29'

39.32'

243.06'

432.42'

735.41'

167.73'

160.09'

997
 SOUTH

60' ROW EASEMENT
IN FAVOR OF PACIFICORP

ENTRY NO. 393622
(APPROXIMATE LOCATION

POLE LINE
EASEMENT
ENTRY NO. 229433

SETTLEMENT POINT
PHASE 5 SUBDIVISION

ENTRY NO. 123376

TOOELE CITY WATER

SPECIAL SERVICES

ENTRY NO. 192874

RETENTION POND 4
EASEMENT IN FAVOR OF
_________________ H.O.A
ENTRY # ___________

LOT 506

LOT 512

LOT 513

LOT 5

LOT 4

LOT 514

POLE LINE
EASEMENT
ENTRY NO. 188827

HILLSIDE ROAD

MAIN STREET

(STATE ROAD 36)

900 SOUTH

BOOT HILL CIRCLE

900 SOUTH

28.0' TEMPORARY

ACCESS EASEMENT

ENTRY NO. 192874

TOOELE 90
 LLC

ENTRY NO. 57
118

2

59.02'

59.00'

30.00'

30.00'

30.00'

30.00'

30.00'

30.00'

30.00'

30.00'

59.00'

59.00'

N 53°25'02" E      
705.05' (M

ON TO MON)

NORTH      705.05'SOUTH      705.05'EAST      705.05'WEST      705.05'

S 37°29'44" E     100.00'

NORTH     100.00'SOUTH     100.00'EAST     100.00'WEST     100.00'

483.81'

N 37°29'44" W   101.83'

NORTH   101.83'SOUTH   101.83'EAST   101.83'WEST   101.83'

N 37°29'44" W   102.27'

NORTH   102.27'SOUTH   102.27'EAST   102.27'WEST   102.27'

N 37°29'44" W   101.84'

NORTH   101.84'SOUTH   101.84'EAST   101.84'WEST   101.84'

N 37°29'44" W   101.81'

NORTH   101.81'SOUTH   101.81'EAST   101.81'WEST   101.81'

N 37°29'44" W   102.48'

NORTH   102.48'SOUTH   102.48'EAST   102.48'WEST   102.48'

N 37°29'44" W   102.29'

NORTH   102.29'SOUTH   102.29'EAST   102.29'WEST   102.29'

60.00'

70.00'

70.00'

70.00'

70.00'

C2
4

C22
C25

C2
3

N 45°31'25" E
55.37'

NORTH55.37'SOUTH55.37'EAST55.37'WEST55.37'

PC4

PC1

S 52°30'16" W
     2

64.91'

NORTH     264.91'SOUTH     264.91'EAST     264.91'WEST     264.91'

S 47
°51

'06
" W

     
420

.00
'

NORTH     420.00'SOUTH     420.00'EAST     420.00'WEST     420.00'

N 44°27'57" W     100.00'

NORTH     100.00'SOUTH     100.00'EAST     100.00'WEST     100.00'

N 41°34'18" W
60.08'

NORTH60.08'SOUTH60.08'EAST60.08'WEST60.08'

N 44°27'57" W     100.36'

NORTH     100.36'SOUTH     100.36'EAST     100.36'WEST     100.36'

PC3

LOT 304
7,000 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 341
8,748 sq.ft.
0.20 acres

LOT 340
7,148 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 339
7,149 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 338
7,108 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 337
7,155 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 336
7,172 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 335
7,128 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 345
7,437 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

LOT 342
9,009 sq.ft.
0.21 acres

LOT 343
7,371 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

LOT 344
7,435 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

LOT 347
7,250 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

LOT 346
7,375 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

LOT 302
7,000 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 303
7,000 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 308
7,027 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 305
7,000 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 306
7,000 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 307
7,000 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 310
7,000 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 309
7,002 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 311
7,000 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 301
7,012 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 348
7,253 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

LOT 334

LOT 333

LOT 332

LOT 331

54.
46'

C1
8.22'

N 42°08'54" W   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

70.
00' N 42°08'54" W   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

70.
00' N 42°08'54" W   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

70.
00' N 42°08'54" W   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

70.
00' N 42°08'54" W   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

70.
00' N 42°08'54" W   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

70.
00' N 42°08'54" W   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

C2 N 38°12'20" W   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

6.69'

58.60'

N 37°29'44" W   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

C3

70.00' N 37°29'44" W   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

70.
00'

70.00'

C4 (TOTAL)

C31

C32

C33

C34

C35

C36

C37

C38

41.75'

42.12'

61.
62'

N 42°08'54" W   103.07'

NORTH   103.07'SOUTH   103.07'EAST   103.07'WEST   103.07'

C39

N 42°08'54" W   104.42'

NORTH   104.42'SOUTH   104.42'EAST   104.42'WEST   104.42'

71.
00'

C40

C41

N 42°08'54" W   104.88'

NORTH   104.88'SOUTH   104.88'EAST   104.88'WEST   104.88'

C42

N 42°08'54" W   104.46'

NORTH   104.46'SOUTH   104.46'EAST   104.46'WEST   104.46'

N 42°08'54" W   103.14'

NORTH   103.14'SOUTH   103.14'EAST   103.14'WEST   103.14'

N 42°08'54" W   100.94'

NORTH   100.94'SOUTH   100.94'EAST   100.94'WEST   100.94'

71.
00'

71.
00'

71.
00'

71.
00'

C26

51.
42'

C43

C44

C45

5.46'

5.46'

30.04'

30.04'

52.
94'

CL1 30.00'

30.00'

30.00'

30.00'

N 45
°32

'03
" E

389
.40

' (M
ON TO PI)

NORTH389.40'SOUTH389.40'EAST389.40'WEST389.40'

S 47
°51

'06
" W

     
 48

0.6
4' (

PI TO PI)

NORTH      480.64'SOUTH      480.64'EAST      480.64'WEST      480.64'

40.
63'

40.63'

11.
30'

434
.55

'423
.26

'

CL2

CL3

CL4 (TOTAL)

331
.00

'

STR
MON

STR
MON

59.00'

29.73'

41.75'

58.24'57.70'

42.12'

29.90'

S 39°21'31" E

129.72'

(MON TO MON)

NORTH129.72'SOUTH129.72'EAST129.72'WEST129.72'

N 52°30'16" E      
560.88' (P

I TO PI)

NORTH      560.88'SOUTH      560.88'EAST      560.88'WEST      560.88'

505.52'483.81'

21.71'

1 O'CLOCK SUDVISIOIN

PHASE 2

ENTRY NO. __________

(DEDICATED PUBLIC STREET)

S 39°21'31" E      114.53'

NORTH      114.53'SOUTH      114.53'EAST      114.53'WEST      114.53'

N 45
°33

'01
" E

     
 39

0.2
4'

NORTH      390.24'SOUTH      390.24'EAST      390.24'WEST      390.24'

328
.35

'

CL9

CL10

CL15 (TOTAL)

CL11
 (TOTAL)

CL12

CL13

HILLSIDE ROAD

(DEDICATED PUBLIC STREET)
SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

S 52°30'16" W
     1

40.00'

NORTH     140.00'SOUTH     140.00'EAST     140.00'WEST     140.00'

S 52°26'58" W

69.38'
NORTH69.38'SOUTH69.38'EAST69.38'WEST69.38'

70.00'

70.00'

S 49°37'30" W

66.54'
NORTH66.54'SOUTH66.54'EAST66.54'WEST66.54'

SET BAR
AND CAP

70.
00'

70.
00'

70.
00'

70.
00'

70.
00'

S 45
°53

'56
" W

67.
97'

NORTH67.97'SOUTH67.97'EAST67.97'WEST67.97'

SET BAR
AND CAP

1120.21'

POINT OF
BEGINNING
SET BAR
AND CAP

989
 SOUTH

983
 SOUTH

977
 SOUTH

969
 SOUTH

963
 SOUTH

957
 SOUTH

949
 SOUTH

943 SOUTH

937 SOUTH

931 SOUTH

916 SOUTH

922 SOUTH

928 SOUTH

934 SOUTH

942 SOUTH

357 WEST

372 WEST

954 SOUTH

960 SOUTH

966 SOUTH

970 SOUTH

982 SOUTH

984 SOUTH

992
 SOUTH

4167.97'

POLE LINE
EASEMENT
ENTRY NO. 188827

910 SOUTH

70.00'

CURVE TABLE
CURVE

C1

C2

C3

C4 (TOTAL)

C5

C6

C7

C8

C9 (TOTAL)

C10

C11

C12

C13 (TOTAL)

C14

C15

C16

C17

C18

C19

C20 (TOTAL)

C21

C22

C23

C24

C25

C26

C27

C28

C29

C30

C31

C32

C33

C34

C35

C36

C37

C38

RADIUS

240.00'

970.00'

970.00'

970.00'

340.00'

250.00'

250.00'

250.00'

250.00'

130.00'

130.00'

130.00'

130.00'

70.00'

70.00'

310.00'

310.00'

310.00'

310.00'

310.00'

400.00'

29.50'

29.50'

29.50'

29.50'

300.00'

5679.65'

5679.65'

5679.65'

5729.65'

5729.65'

5729.65'

5729.65'

5729.65'

5669.65'

5669.65'

5669.65'

5669.65'

LENGTH

9.34'

66.75'

12.02'

78.77'

27.07'

16.73'

87.47'

71.06'

175.26'

16.83'

44.27'

59.10'

103.38'

55.66'

9.06'

49.94'

65.76'

65.76'

35.86'

217.32'

31.84'

45.38'

46.61'

44.90'

46.69'

11.73'

40.88'

70.00'

70.14'

6.29'

70.01'

70.00'

70.00'

21.57'

38.52'

70.00'

70.00'

62.06'

DELTA

2°13'51"

3°56'34"

0°42'36"

4°39'10"

4°33'39"

3°50'00"

20°02'50"

16°17'07"

40°09'57"

7°25'06"

19°30'46"

26°02'56"

45°33'42"

45°33'42"

7°25'06"

9°13'50"

12°09'13"

12°09'13"

6°37'41"

40°09'57"

4°33'39"

88°08'12"

90°31'30"

87°12'37"

90°41'02"

2°14'24"

0°24'45"

0°42'22"

0°42'27"

0°03'46"

0°42'00"

0°42'00"

0°42'00"

0°12'57"

0°23'21"

0°42'27"

0°42'27"

0°37'38"

BEARING

S46°38'59"W

S49°49'23"W

S52°08'58"W

N50°10'41"E

S54°47'06"W

S58°58'56"W

S70°55'21"W

S89°05'19"W

S77°08'54"W

S86°28'40"E

N80°03'23"E

N57°16'32"E

N67°01'55"E

N67°01'55"E

S86°28'40"E

N87°23'02"W

S81°55'26"W

S69°46'13"W

S60°22'46"W

S77°08'54"W

N54°47'06"E

S83°25'38"E

S5°54'14"W

N4°14'47"E

N84°42'02"W

N46°39'15"E

N57°43'02"E

N57°09'29"E

N56°27'04"E

N53°44'33"E

N53°21'40"E

N52°39'39"E

N51°57'39"E

N51°30'11"E

N53°24'10"E

N52°51'16"E

N52°08'50"E

N51°28'47"E

CHORD

9.34'

66.74'

12.02'

78.75'

27.06'

16.72'

87.03'

70.82'

171.69'

16.82'

44.06'

58.60'

100.67'

54.21'

9.06'

49.89'

65.63'

65.63'

35.84'

212.90'

31.83'

41.04'

41.91'

40.69'

41.97'

11.73'

40.88'

70.00'

70.14'

6.29'

70.01'

70.00'

70.00'

21.57'

38.52'

70.00'

70.00'

62.06'

CURVE TABLE
CURVE

C39

C40

C41

C42

C43

C44

C45

RADIUS

5669.65'

5669.65'

5669.65'

5669.65'

5669.65'

5669.65'

5669.65'

LENGTH

64.78'

71.01'

71.00'

71.00'

71.01'

71.03'

18.89'

DELTA

0°39'17"

0°43'04"

0°43'03"

0°43'03"

0°43'03"

0°43'04"

0°11'27"

BEARING

N49°37'48"E

N48°56'38"E

N48°13'35"E

N47°30'32"E

N46°47'28"E

N46°04'24"E

N45°37'09"E

CHORD

64.78'

71.01'

71.00'

71.00'

71.01'

71.03'

18.89'

PROPERTY LINE CURVE TABLE
CURVE

PC1

PC2

PC3

PC4

RADIUS

5729.65'

5679.65'

5669.65'

5729.65'

LENGTH

237.88'

181.01'

798.94'

9.92'

DELTA

2°22'43"

1°49'34"

8°04'26"

0°05'57"

BEARING

N52°35'04"E

N57°00'38"E

N49°33'38"E

N51°20'44"E

CHORD

237.86'

181.01'

798.28'

9.92'

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE
I, Douglas J. Kinsman, do hereby certify that I am a Professional Land Surveyor, and that I hold License No. 334575, in accordance
with Title 58, Chapter 22, of the Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors Act. I further certify that by authority of the owners I have
completed a survey of the property described on this subdivision plat in accordance with Section 17-23-17, have verified all
measurements, and have subdivided said tract of land into lots, together with easements, hereafter to be known as 1 o'clock
Subdivision Phase 3 and that the same has been correctly surveyed and monumented on the ground as shown on this plat.

BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

PROJECT  NUMBER :

DRAWN BY :

CHECKED BY :

MANAGER :

DATE :

SHEET
11575

5 OF 7

D. KINSMAN

M. SANDOVAL

T. HUSSEY

9/26/2023

TOOELE
169 North Main Street Unit 1
Tooele, Utah 84074
Phone: 435.843.3590
Fax: 435.578.0108

WWW.ENSIGNENG.COM

SALT LAKE CITY
Phone: 801.255.0529

LAYTON
Phone: 801.547.1100

CEDAR CITY
Phone: 435.865.1453

RICHFIELD
Phone: 435.896.2983

E N S I G N

OWNER'S DEDICATION AND CONSENT TO RECORD
Known all men by these present that we the undersigned are the owner(s) of the hereon described tract of land and hereby cause the same to
divided into lots together with easements as set forth hereafter to be known as:

The undersigned owner(s) hereby convey to Tooele City and to any and all public utility companies providing service to the hereon
described tract a perpetual, non-exclusive easement over the public utility and drainage easements shown on this plat, the same to be used
for drainage and for the installation, maintenance and operation of public utility service lines and facilities. The undersigned owner(s) also
hereby convey any other easements as shown to the parties indicated and for the purpose shown heron.

 
PR

OF
ESS I ONA L  L AND

 

SURVEYOR

HATU FO ETATS

DOUGLAS J
KINSMAN

No. 334575

LLC ACKNOWLEDGMENT
STATE OF UTAH
County of

On the               day of                                                        A.D., 20            ,                                                                                                       ,
                                                                                                                                                                                                              personally
appeared before me, the undersigned Notary public, in and for said County of                                                              in said State of Utah,
who after being duly sworn, acknowledged to me that  He/She/They signed the Owner's Dedication,               in number, freely and voluntarily
for  the purposes therein mentioned.

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:                                                                                  ,

                                                                                               RESIDING IN                                                             COUNTY.
NOTARY PUBLIC

CALL BLUESTAKES
@ 811 AT LEAST 48 HOURS
PRIOR TO THE
COMMENCEMENT OF  ANY
CONSTRUCTION.

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R PRELIMINARY PLAT

A parcel of land, situate in the West Half of Section 33, Township 3 South, Range 4 West, Salt Lake Base and Meridian,
said parcel also located in Tooele City, Tooele County, Utah, more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at a point which is located North 89°31'21” East 1120.21 feet along the Quarter Section line to the Easterly line of Main
Street (State Road-36), from the West Quarter Corner of Section 33, Township 3 South, Range 4 West, Salt Lake Base and Meridian,
and running:

thence Northeasterly 237.88 feet along the arc of a 5729.65-foot radius tangent curve to the right (center bears South 38°36'17” East and the
long chord bears North 52°35'04” East 237.86 feet through a central angle of 2°22'43”) along said Easterly line;

thence Northeasterly 181.01 feet along the arc of a 5679.65-foot radius tangent curve to the right (center bears South 33°54'09” East and the
long chord bears North 57°00'38” East 181.01 feet through a central angle of 1°49'34”);

thence North 57°55'25” East 354.46 feet;
thence South 45°55'43” East 210.00 feet;
thence North 57°58'20” East 99.13 feet;
thence South 45°46'13” East 336.64 feet;
thence South 39°13'44” East 19.22 feet;
thence South 49°54'41” West 107.32 feet;
thence South 89°48'46” West 276.55 feet;
thence North 82°46'07” West 184.27 feet;
thence South 81°26'42” West 106.25 feet;
thence South 57°03'56” West 166.74 feet;
thence South 71°04'18” West 41.17 feet;
thence North 37°29'44” West 85.89 feet;
thence South 52°30'16” West 264.91 feet;
thence South 37°29'44” East 100.00 feet;
thence South 52°30'16” West 140.00 feet;
thence South 52°26'58” West 69.38 feet;
thence South 49°37'30” West 66.54 feet;
thence South 47°51'06” West 420.00 feet;
thence South 45°53'56” West 67.97 feet;
thence North 44°27'57” West 100.00 feet;
thence North 41°34'18” West 60.08 feet;
thence North 44°27'57” West 100.36 feet to the said Easterly line of Main Street;
thence North 45°31'25” East 55.37 feet along said Easterly line to an arc;
thence Northeasterly 798.94 feet along the arc of a 5669.65-foot radius tangent curve to the right (center bears South 44°28'35” East and the

long chord bears North 49°33'38” East 798.28 feet through a central angle of 8°04'26”);
thence Northeasterly 9.92 feet along the arc of a 5729.65-foot radius tangent curve to the right (center bears South 38°42'14” East and the long

chord bears North 51°20'44” East 9.92 feet through a central angle of 0°05'57”) to the Point of Beginning.

Contains 526,630 square feet or 12.09 acres.

__________________________
Date
Douglas J Kinsman
License No. 334575

LOCATED IN THE WEST HALF OF SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH,
RANGE 4 WEST, SALT LAKE BASE AND MERIDIAN,

TOOELE CITY, TOOELE COUNTY, UTAH

1 O'CLOCK HILL SUBDIVISION PHASE 3

DEVELOPER
SJ COMPANY

447 NORTH COOLEY STREET
GRANTSVILLE, UT 84029

801-349-0761

LOCATED IN THE WEST HALF OF SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH,
RANGE 4 WEST, SALT LAKE BASE AND MERIDIAN,

TOOELE CITY, TOOELE COUNTY, UTAH

1 O'CLOCK HILL SUBDIVISION PHASE 3

1 O'CLOCK HILL SUBDIVISION PHASE 3

FEE$ TOOELE COUNTY RECORDER

STATE OF UTAH, COUNTY OF TOOELE, RECORDED AND FILED AT THE

DATE:                                              TIME:                                            BOOK:                                             PAGE:

RECORDED #                                             

REQUEST OF :

TOOELE COUNTY RECORDER

In witness whereof I / we have hereunto set my / our hand this                  day of                                                         A.D., 20               .

By: TOOELE 90 LLC
     SHAUN JOHNSON, MANAGER

TOOELE

}S.S.

LEGEND

ENSIGN ENG.
LAND SURV.

EXISTING STREET MONUMENT

PROPOSED STREET MONUMENT TO BE SET

SECTION CORNER

5/8"x24" REBAR WITH YELLOW PLASTIC CAP,
OR NAIL STAMPED "ENSIGN ENG. & LAND
SURV."

BOUNDARY LINE

ADJACENT PROPERTY LINE

SECTION LINE

CENTER LINE

EASEMENT LINE

RIGHT OF WAY LINE

ADJACENT RIGHT OF WAY LINE

TANGENT LINE
WEST QUARTER
CORNER OF SECTION
33, TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH,
RANGE 4 WEST, SALT
LAKE BASE & MERIDIAN
(CALCULATED POSITION
ONLY)

EAST QUARTER
CORNER OF SECTION
33, TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH,
RANGE 4 WEST, SALT
LAKE BASE & MERIDIAN
(FOUND, DATED 1982)

SITE

SKYLINE DRIVE

700S

CO
LE

MA
N 

ST
RE

ET

900S

TEAD

TOOELE CITY

   VICINITY MAP   
NOT TO SCALE

SEE DRAWING 2 OF 2

WITNESS CORNER TO WEST
QUARTER CORNER OF SECTION 33,
TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH, RANGE 4
WEST, SALT LAKE BASE & MERIDIAN
(FOUND, DATED 2021)

25
.51

'

SEE DRAWING 2 OF 2

HORIZONTAL GRAPHIC SCALE
0

( IN FEET )
HORZ: 1 inch =        ft.40

40 20 40 80

For
 R

ev
iew

09
/2

7/
20

23
  1

:3
7:

35
 P

M



60' ROW EASEMENT
IN FAVOR OF PACIFICORP

ENTRY NO. 393622
(APPROXIMATE LOCATION

POLE LINE
EASEMENT
ENTRY NO. 188827

SETTLEMENT POINT
PHASE 5 SUBDIVISION

ENTRY NO. 123376

SETTLEMENT POINT
PHASE 4 SUBDIVISION

ENTRY NO. 117950

SETTLEMENT POINT
PHASE 3 SUBDIVISION

ENTRY NO. 91205 UTAH DEPARTMENT
OF TRANSPORTATION

ENTRY NO. 415050

ROCKY MOUNTAIN MASONIC
TEMPLE ASSOCIATION INC.

ENTRY NO. 210058 CANYON RIM ESTATES

SUBDIVISION

ENTRY NO. 262727

TOOELE CITY WATER

SPECIAL SERVICES

ENTRY NO. 192874

RETENTION POND 4
EASEMENT IN FAVOR OF
_________________ H.O.A
ENTRY # ___________

LOT 1

LOT 19

LOT 66

LOT 313

LOT 312

LOT 311

LOT 404

LOT 405

LOT 406

LOT 407

LOT 504

LOT 505

POLE LINE

HILLSIDE ROAD

SETTLEMENT CANYON ROAD

HERITAGE

HILL DRIVE

MAIN STREET

(STATE ROAD 36)

TRAPPERS POND

COURT

GOLD DUST

COURT

28.0' TEMPORARY

ACCESS EASEMENT

ENTRY NO. 192874

TOOELE 90 LLC
ENTRY NO. 571182

STR
MON

59.00'

49.00'

46.54'

38.94'

51.00'

30.00'

30.00'

30
.00

'

30
.00

'
30

.00
'

30
.00

'

30
.00

'
30

.00
'

30.00'

30.00'

30.00'

30.00'

30.00'

30.00'

S 59°36'01" W      2
59.99'

NORTH      259.99'SOUTH      259.99'EAST      259.99'WEST      259.99'

CL17

S 88°00'08" W      561.93' (MON TO MON)NORTH      561.93'SOUTH      561.93'EAST      561.93'WEST      561.93'

N 53°25'02" E      
705.05' (M

ON TO MON)

NORTH      705.05'SOUTH      705.05'EAST      705.05'WEST      705.05'

STR
MON

S 37°29'44" E     100.00'

NORTH     100.00'SOUTH     100.00'EAST     100.00'WEST     100.00'

483.81'

134.58'

134.58'

182.52'

182.52'

180.13'

180.13'

S 57°03'56" W
     1

66.74'

NORTH     166.74'SOUTH     166.74'EAST     166.74'WEST     166.74'

S 71°04'18" W
41.17'

NORTH41.17'SOUTH41.17'EAST41.17'WEST41.17'

S 45°55'43" E     210.00'

NORTH     210.00'SOUTH     210.00'EAST     210.00'WEST     210.00'

N 57°58'20" E     9
9.13'

NORTH     99.13'SOUTH     99.13'EAST     99.13'WEST     99.13'

N 37°29'44" W   101.83'

N 37°29'44" W   102.27'

NORTH   102.27'SOUTH   102.27'EAST   102.27'WEST   102.27'

N 37°29'44" W   101.84'

NORTH   101.84'SOUTH   101.84'EAST   101.84'WEST   101.84'

N 37°29'44" W   101.81'

NORTH   101.81'SOUTH   101.81'EAST   101.81'WEST   101.81'

N 37°29'44" W   102.48'

NORTH   102.48'SOUTH   102.48'EAST   102.48'WEST   102.48'

N 37°29'44" W   102.29'

NORTH   102.29'SOUTH   102.29'EAST   102.29'WEST   102.29'

N 37°29'44" W   101.24'

NORTH   101.24'SOUTH   101.24'EAST   101.24'WEST   101.24'

N 32°56'04" W   100.47'

NORTH   100.47'SOUTH   100.47'EAST   100.47'WEST   100.47'

N 32°56'04" W   100.35'

NORTH   100.35'SOUTH   100.35'EAST   100.35'WEST   100.35'

N 26°18'23" W   100.03'

NORTH   100.03'SOUTH   100.03'EAST   100.03'WEST   100.03'

N 14°09'10" W
   100.02'

NORTH   100.02'SOUTH   100.02'EAST   100.02'WEST   100.02'

N 1°59'57" W
   100.01'

NORTH   100.01'SOUTH   100.01'EAST   100.01'WEST   100.01'

N 
7°

13
'53

" E
   1

00
.00

'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

N 
7°

13
'53

" E
   1

00
.00

'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

N 
7°

13
'53

" E
   1

00
.00

'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

N 
0°

11
'14

" W
   1

00
.00

'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

N 
0°

11
'14

" W
   1

00
.00

'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

S 
0°

11
'14

" E
   1

00
.00

'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

S 
0°

11
'14

" E
   1

00
.00

'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

S 
0°

11
'14

" E
   1

00
.00

'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

S 
7°

13
'53

" W
   1

00
.00

'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

S 
7°

13
'53

" W
   1

00
.00

'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

S 
7°

13
'53

" W
   1

00
.00

'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

S 32°56'04" E   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

60.00'

70.00'

70.00'

70.00'

70.00'

70.00'

3.81'

32.76'

70.00'

31.82'

16.84'
70.00'

70.00'
25.68' 41.73' 70.01' 68.39'

18.92'70.00'70.00'21.21'
29.36'

70.00'

70.00'13.16'

56.65'

70.00'

7.93'

40.28'70.01'39.78'23.74'

70.00'
16.88'

S 45°46'13" E     336.64'

NORTH     336.64'SOUTH     336.64'EAST     336.64'WEST     336.64'

84.84'

N 37°29'44" W     85.89'

NORTH     85.89'SOUTH     85.89'EAST     85.89'WEST     85.89'

C21

C9 (TOTAL)

C20 (TOTAL)

C15

C10

C14

C13 (TOTAL)
C12

C11

C8

C7

C6

C16C17

C18

C19

1.80'

1.77'

30.06'

N 82°46'07" W   180.62'NORTH   180.62'SOUTH   180.62'EAST   180.62'WEST   180.62'

S 89°48'46" W   150.07'
NORTH   150.07'SOUTH   150.07'EAST   150.07'WEST   150.07'

PROPERTY LINE CURVE TABLE
CURVE

PC1

RADIUS

5729.65'

LENGTH

237.88'

DELTA

2°22'43"

BEARING

N52°35'04"E

CHORD

237.86'

PC4

PC1

PC2

N 57°55'25" E     3
54.46'

NORTH     354.46'SOUTH     354.46'EAST     354.46'WEST     354.46'

S 52°30'16" W
     2

64.91'

NORTH     264.91'SOUTH     264.91'EAST     264.91'WEST     264.91'

LOT 318
7,000 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 317
7,000 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 314
7,001 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 313
7,000 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 334
7,275 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

LOT 333
7,034 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 312
7,000 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 332
7,346 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

LOT 331
7,505 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

LOT 330
7,504 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

LOT 329
7,425 sq.ft.
0.17 acres LOT 328

7,000 sq.ft.
0.16 acres LOT 327

7,000 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 340
7,148 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 339
7,149 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 338
7,108 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 337
7,155 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 336
7,172 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 335
7,128 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 324
8,525 sq.ft.
0.20 acres

LOT 325
7,001 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 326
7,000 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 323
8,633 sq.ft.
0.20 acres

LOT 321
7,000 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 320
7,000 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 310
7,000 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

LOT 311
7,000 sq.ft.
0.16 acres

58.60'

N 37°29'44" W   100.00'

70.00' N 37°29'44" W   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

70.00'

85.89'

42.01'

C5

30.06'

70.00'

CURVE TABLE
CURVE

C1

RADIUS

240.00'

LENGTH

9.34'

DELTA

2°13'51"

BEARING

S46°38'59"W

CHORD

9.34'

80.71'

111.08'

16.88'

16.84'

N 87°22'51" W   65.94'
NORTH   65.94'SOUTH   65.94'EAST   65.94'WEST   65.94'

S 81°55'49" W   86.81'NORTH   86.81'SOUTH   86.81'EAST   86.81'WEST   86.81'

S 69°46'34" W   86.81'
NORTH   86.81'SOUTH   86.81'EAST   86.81'WEST   86.81'

S 61°16'02" W

34.79'
NORTH34.79'SOUTH34.79'EAST34.79'WEST34.79'

C27

C28

C29

C30

C31

C32

C33

C34

C35

C36

C37

CENTER LINE CURVE TABLE
CURVE

CL1

RADIUS

270.00'

LENGTH

10.92'

DELTA

2°19'03"

BEARING

N46°41'35"E

CHORD

10.92'

N 52°30'16" E      
560.88' (P

I TO PI)

NORTH      560.88'SOUTH      560.88'EAST      560.88'WEST      560.88'

14.73' 14.73'

CL5

505.52'483.81'

N 57°03'56" E

251.68' (PI TO PI)

NORTH 251.69'SOUTH 251.69'EAST 251.69'WEST 251.69'

102.37'

134.58'

CL6
102.37'

CL7
6.48' 6.48'

182.52'

S 82°46'07" E      291.37' (PI TO PI)NORTH      291.37'SOUTH      291.37'EAST      291.37'WEST      291.37'

N 89°48'46" E      228.61' (PI TO PI)
NORTH      228.61'SOUTH      228.61'EAST      228.61'WEST      228.61'

180.13'

42.
00'CL8

42.00'

N 44°15'05" E
1.79'

NORTH1.79'SOUTH1.79'EAST1.79'WEST1.79'

30
.00

'
30

.00
'

70.00'

30,077 sq.ft.
0.69 acres

PARCEL D
RETENTION POND 5

CL15 (TOTAL)

CL14

CL16

41.06'

188.06'

71.93'

TOOELE 90 LLC

ENTRY NO. 571182

HILLSIDE ROAD

(DEDICATED PUBLIC STREET)

LOT 322
8,387 sq.ft.
0.19 acres

S 49°54'41" W
     

107.32'

NORTH     107.32'SOUTH     107.32'EAST     107.32'WEST     107.32'

S 19°42'00" E   114.01'

NORTH   114.01'SOUTH   114.01'EAST   114.01'WEST   114.01'

S 89°48'46" W     276.55'NORTH     276.55'SOUTH     276.55'EAST     276.55'WEST     276.55'

100.42'70.00'70.00'36.13'S 81°26'42" W     106.25'NORTH     106.25'SOUTH     106.25'EAST     106.25'WEST     106.25' N 82°46'07" W     184.27'
NORTH     184.27'SOUTH     184.27'EAST     184.27'WEST     184.27'

LOT 316
7,335 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

LOT 315
7,308 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

S 29°05'14" E      99.67'

NORTH      99.67'SOUTH      99.67'EAST      99.67'WEST      99.67'

S 9°03'14" E      109.23'

NORTH      109.23'SOUTH      109.23'EAST      109.23'WEST      109.23'

66.68'

51.56'
54.69' 70.00'

70.00'
44.27'

LOT 319
7,393 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

SET BAR
AND CAP

S 39°13'44" E
19.22'

NORTH19.22'SOUTH19.22'EAST19.22'WEST19.22'

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

S 52°30'16" W
     1

40.00'
70.00'

1120.21'

POINT OF
BEGINNING
SET BAR
AND CAP

943 SOUTH

937 SOUTH

931 SOUTH

895 SOUTH

891 SOUTH

887 SOUTH

885 SOUTH
883 SOUTH

881 SOUTH
877 SOUTH 875 SOUTH 871 SOUTH 869 SOUTH

867 SOUTH

868 SOUTH872 SOUTH876 SOUTH

878 SOUTH

882 SOUTH

884 SOUTH886 SOUTH

888 SOUTH

892 SOUTH

894 SOUTH

898 SOUTH

904 SOUTH

916 SOUTH

922 SOUTH

928 SOUTH

934 SOUTH

SET BAR
AND CAP

POLE LINE
EASEMENT

ENTRY NO. 229433

20' WATERLINE
EASEMENT

4167.97'
901 SOUTH910 SOUTH

70.00'

S 32°56'04" E   100.00'

NORTH   100.00'SOUTH   100.00'EAST   100.00'WEST   100.00'

1

(MON TO MON)   N 89°31'21" E      5288.18'
BASIS OF BEARING

CENTER LINE CURVE TABLE
CURVE

CL1

CL2

CL3

CL4 (TOTAL)

CL5

CL6

CL7

CL8

CL9

CL10

CL11 (TOTAL)

CL12

CL13

CL14

CL15 (TOTAL)

CL16

CL17

RADIUS

270.00'

1000.00'

1000.00'

1000.00'

370.00'

280.00'

100.00'

100.00'

5729.99'

5729.19'

5730.00'

5731.24'

5730.20'

5729.89'

5730.00'

5730.00'

8060.00'

LENGTH

10.92'

45.34'

35.87'

81.21'

29.45'

196.29'

12.95'

79.52'

440.89'

60.56'

501.45'

39.32'

243.08'

432.53'

735.92'

167.73'

160.09'

DELTA

2°19'03"

2°35'52"

2°03'18"

4°39'10"

4°33'39"

40°09'57"

7°25'06"

45°33'42"

4°24'31"

0°36'20"

5°00'51"

0°23'35"

2°25'50"

4°19'30"

7°21'31"

1°40'38"

1°08'17"

BEARING

N46°41'35"E

N49°09'02"E

N51°28'37"E

N50°10'41"E

N54°47'06"E

N77°08'54"E

S86°28'40"E

N67°01'55"E

N47°45'16"E

N50°15'42"E

S48°03'26"W

N50°45'39"E

N52°22'58"E

N55°45'38"E

S54°14'37"W

S58°45'42"W

N59°01'52"E

CHORD

10.92'

45.34'

35.86'

81.18'

29.45'

192.29'

12.94'

77.44'

440.78'

60.56'

501.29'

39.32'

243.06'

432.42'

735.41'

167.73'

160.09'

CURVE TABLE
CURVE

C1

C2

C3

C4 (TOTAL)

C5

C6

C7

C8

C9 (TOTAL)

C10

C11

C12

C13 (TOTAL)

C14

C15

C16

C17

C18

C19

C20 (TOTAL)

C21

C22

C23

C24

C25

C26

C27

C28

C29

C30

C31

C32

C33

C34

C35

C36

C37

C38

RADIUS

240.00'

970.00'

970.00'

970.00'

340.00'

250.00'

250.00'

250.00'

250.00'

130.00'

130.00'

130.00'

130.00'

70.00'

70.00'

310.00'

310.00'

310.00'

310.00'

310.00'

400.00'

29.50'

29.50'

29.50'

29.50'

300.00'

5679.65'

5679.65'

5679.65'

5729.65'

5729.65'

5729.65'

5729.65'

5729.65'

5669.65'

5669.65'

5669.65'

5669.65'

LENGTH

9.34'

66.75'

12.02'

78.77'

27.07'

16.73'

87.47'

71.06'

175.26'

16.83'

44.27'

59.10'

103.38'

55.66'

9.06'

49.94'

65.76'

65.76'

35.86'

217.32'

31.84'

45.38'

46.61'

44.90'

46.69'

11.73'

40.88'

70.00'

70.14'

6.29'

70.01'

70.00'

70.00'

21.57'

38.52'

70.00'

70.00'

62.06'

DELTA

2°13'51"

3°56'34"

0°42'36"

4°39'10"

4°33'39"

3°50'00"

20°02'50"

16°17'07"

40°09'57"

7°25'06"

19°30'46"

26°02'56"

45°33'42"

45°33'42"

7°25'06"

9°13'50"

12°09'13"

12°09'13"

6°37'41"

40°09'57"

4°33'39"

88°08'12"

90°31'30"

87°12'37"

90°41'02"

2°14'24"

0°24'45"

0°42'22"

0°42'27"

0°03'46"

0°42'00"

0°42'00"

0°42'00"

0°12'57"

0°23'21"

0°42'27"

0°42'27"

0°37'38"

BEARING

S46°38'59"W

S49°49'23"W

S52°08'58"W

N50°10'41"E

S54°47'06"W

S58°58'56"W

S70°55'21"W

S89°05'19"W

S77°08'54"W

S86°28'40"E

N80°03'23"E

N57°16'32"E

N67°01'55"E

N67°01'55"E

S86°28'40"E

N87°23'02"W

S81°55'26"W

S69°46'13"W

S60°22'46"W

S77°08'54"W

N54°47'06"E

S83°25'38"E

S5°54'14"W

N4°14'47"E

N84°42'02"W

N46°39'15"E

N57°43'02"E

N57°09'29"E

N56°27'04"E

N53°44'33"E

N53°21'40"E

N52°39'39"E

N51°57'39"E

N51°30'11"E

N53°24'10"E

N52°51'16"E

N52°08'50"E

N51°28'47"E

CHORD

9.34'

66.74'

12.02'

78.75'

27.06'

16.72'

87.03'

70.82'

171.69'

16.82'

44.06'

58.60'

100.67'

54.21'

9.06'

49.89'

65.63'

65.63'

35.84'

212.90'

31.83'

41.04'

41.91'

40.69'

41.97'

11.73'

40.88'

70.00'

70.14'

6.29'

70.01'

70.00'

70.00'

21.57'

38.52'

70.00'

70.00'

62.06'

CURVE TABLE
CURVE

C39

C40

C41

C42

C43

C44

C45

RADIUS

5669.65'

5669.65'

5669.65'

5669.65'

5669.65'

5669.65'

5669.65'

LENGTH

64.78'

71.01'

71.00'

71.00'

71.01'

71.03'

18.89'

DELTA

0°39'17"

0°43'04"

0°43'03"

0°43'03"

0°43'03"

0°43'04"

0°11'27"

BEARING

N49°37'48"E

N48°56'38"E

N48°13'35"E

N47°30'32"E

N46°47'28"E

N46°04'24"E

N45°37'09"E

CHORD

64.78'

71.01'

71.00'

71.00'

71.01'

71.03'

18.89'

PROPERTY LINE CURVE TABLE
CURVE

PC1

PC2

PC3

PC4

RADIUS

5729.65'

5679.65'

5669.65'

5729.65'

LENGTH

237.88'

181.01'

798.94'

9.92'

DELTA

2°22'43"

1°49'34"

8°04'26"

0°05'57"

BEARING

N52°35'04"E

N57°00'38"E

N49°33'38"E

N51°20'44"E

CHORD

237.86'

181.01'

798.28'

9.92'

PROJECT  NUMBER :

DRAWN BY :

CHECKED BY :

MANAGER :

DATE :

SHEET
11575

6 OF 7

D. KINSMAN

M. SANDOVAL

T. HUSSEY

9/26/2023

TOOELE
169 North Main Street Unit 1
Tooele, Utah 84074
Phone: 435.843.3590
Fax: 435.578.0108

WWW.ENSIGNENG.COM

SALT LAKE CITY
Phone: 801.255.0529

LAYTON
Phone: 801.547.1100

CEDAR CITY
Phone: 435.865.1453

RICHFIELD
Phone: 435.896.2983

E N S I G N

 
PR

OF
ESS I ONA L  L AND

 

SURVEYOR

HATU FO ETATS

DOUGLAS J
KINSMAN

No. 334575

PRELIMINARY PLAT

HORIZONTAL GRAPHIC SCALE
0

( IN FEET )
HORZ: 1 inch =        ft.40

40 20 40 80

LOCATED IN THE WEST HALF OF SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH,
RANGE 4 WEST, SALT LAKE BASE AND MERIDIAN,

TOOELE CITY, TOOELE COUNTY, UTAH

DEVELOPER
SJ COMPANY

447 NORTH COOLEY STREET
GRANTSVILLE, UT 84029

801-349-0761

LOCATED IN THE WEST HALF OF SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH,
RANGE 4 WEST, SALT LAKE BASE AND MERIDIAN,

TOOELE CITY, TOOELE COUNTY, UTAH

1 O'CLOCK HILL SUBDIVISION PHASE 3

1 O'CLOCK HILL SUBDIVISION PHASE 3

FEE$ TOOELE COUNTY RECORDER

STATE OF UTAH, COUNTY OF TOOELE, RECORDED AND FILED AT THE

DATE:                                              TIME:                                            BOOK:                                             PAGE:

RECORDED #                                             

REQUEST OF :

TOOELE COUNTY RECORDER

LEGEND

ENSIGN ENG.
LAND SURV.

EXISTING STREET MONUMENT

PROPOSED STREET MONUMENT TO BE SET

SECTION CORNER

5/8"x24" REBAR WITH YELLOW PLASTIC CAP,
OR NAIL STAMPED "ENSIGN ENG. & LAND
SURV."

BOUNDARY LINE

ADJACENT PROPERTY LINE

SECTION LINE

CENTER LINE

EASEMENT LINE

RIGHT OF WAY LINE

ADJACENT RIGHT OF WAY LINE

TANGENT LINE

WEST QUARTER
CORNER OF SECTION
33, TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH,
RANGE 4 WEST, SALT
LAKE BASE & MERIDIAN
(CALCULATED POSITION
ONLY)

EAST QUARTER OF
SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP
3 SOUTH, RANGE 4
WEST, SALT LAKE BASE
& MERIDIAN
(FOUND, DATED 1982)

SITE

SKYLINE DRIVE

700S

CO
LE

MA
N 

ST
RE

ET

900S

TEAD

TOOELE CITY

   VICINITY MAP   
NOT TO SCALE

SEE DRAWING 1 OF 2

SEE DRAWING 1 OF 2

CALL BLUESTAKES
@ 811 AT LEAST 48 HOURS
PRIOR TO THE
COMMENCEMENT OF  ANY
CONSTRUCTION.Know what's below.

before you dig.Call

R

WITNESS CORNER TO WEST
QUARTER CORNER OF SECTION 33,
TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH, RANGE 4
WEST, SALT LAKE BASE & MERIDIAN
(FOUND, DATED 2021)

25
.51

'

1 RETENTION POND IS TO BE OWNED, OPERATED AND
MAINTAINED BY THE _______________________ H.O.A.

KEY NOTES

For
 R

ev
iew

09
/2

7/
20

23
  1

:3
7:

35
 P

M



HILLSIDE ROAD

SETTLEMENT CANYON ROAD

HERITAGE

HILL DRIVE

60' ROW EASEMENT
IN FAVOR OF PACIFICORP

ENTRY NO. 393622
(APPROXIMATE LOCATION)

POLE LINE
EASEMENT

ENTRY NO. 229433

POLE LINE
EASEMENT
ENTRY NO. 188827

ROCKY MOUNTAIN MASONIC

TEMPLE ASSOCIATION INC.

ENTRY NO. 210058

CANYON RIM ESTATES

SUBDIVISION

ENTRY NO. 262727

158.76'

S 44°45'09" E

NORTHSOUTHEASTWEST

LOT 1

LOT 19

LOT 66

LOT 65

LOT 64

LOT 63

LOT 62

LOT 61

LOT 60
30.

00'

30.00'

30.00'

30.
00'

BASIS OF BEARING
N 89°31'21" E      5288.18'

30.
00'

30.00'

30.00'

30.
00'

CL3

N 52°21'29" E      
212.63'

(MON TO MON)

NORTH      212.63'SOUTH      212.63'EAST      212.63'WEST      212.63'

TOOELE 90 LLC

ENTRY NO. 571182

EXIST.
MON

N 57°58'20" E     1
10.88'

NORTH     110.88'SOUTH     110.88'EAST     110.88'WEST     110.88' S 45°39'37" E     304.52'

NORTH     304.52'SOUTH     304.52'EAST     304.52'WEST     304.52'

PC2

S 32°34'38" E

54.01'

NORTH54.01'SOUTH54.01'EAST54.01'WEST54.01'

LOT 401
8,951 sq.ft.
0.21 acres

LOT 407
7,364 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

LOT 408
7,574 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

LOT 403
9,286 sq.ft.
0.21 acres

LOT 402
10,521 sq.ft.
0.24 acres

LOT 345

LOT 335

LOT 346
LOT 348

LOT 336

PARCEL D

S 32°34'38" E     104.75'

NORTH     104.75'SOUTH     104.75'EAST     104.75'WEST     104.75'

PC1

S 45°39'37" E      190.40' (MON TO MON)

NORTH      190.40'SOUTH      190.40'EAST      190.40'WEST      190.40'

59.41'

130.99'

59.59'

45.35'

86.00'

S 45°39'37" E      190.94' (MON TO PI)

NORTH      190.94'SOUTH      190.94'EAST      190.94'WEST      190.94'

86.00'

79.99'

CL1

CL2

N 32°34'38" W      324.76' (PI TO PI)

NORTH      324.75'SOUTH      324.75'EAST      324.75'WEST      324.75'

79.99'

N 89°48'46" E      180.13'
NORTH      180.13'SOUTH      180.13'EAST      180.13'WEST      180.13'

EXIST.
MON

N 44
°15

'05
" E

     
 18

1.1
1'

(PI TO MON)

NORTH      181.11'SOUTH      181.11'EAST      181.11'WEST      181.11'

42.00'

42.
00'

1.79'

30.
00'

29.
41'

77.
91'

77.
73'

29.
59'

30.00'

30.00'

59.46'

59.55'

70.08'

N 44
°20

'23
" E

   1
07.

57'

NORTH   107.57'SOUTH   107.57'EAST   107.57'WEST   107.57'

70.08'

C1

77.
93'

C3

N 45
°30

'21
" E

   1
07.

71'

NORTH   107.71'SOUTH   107.71'EAST   107.71'WEST   107.71'

S 44
°15

'05
" W

   7
7.7

2'

NORTH   77.72'SOUTH   77.72'EAST   77.72'WEST   77.72'

C2

45.35'

C4

N 51°14'07" E   1
10.28'

NORTH   110.28'SOUTH   110.28'EAST   110.28'WEST   110.28'

C5

N 56°57'54" E   106.72'

NORTH   106.72'SOUTH   106.72'EAST   106.72'WEST   106.72'

10.40'

N 57°25'22" E   105.27'

NORTH   105.27'SOUTH   105.27'EAST   105.27'WEST   105.27'

C6

70.00'

N 57°25'22" E   105.14'

NORTH   105.14'SOUTH   105.14'EAST   105.14'WEST   105.14'

C7

N 54°09'13" E   106.43'

NORTH   106.43'SOUTH   106.43'EAST   106.43'WEST   106.43'

24.35'

C8

1 O'CLOCK SUBDIVISION
PHASE 3

ENTRY NO. __________

(DEDICATED PUBLIC STREET)

(DEDICATED PUBLIC STREET)

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

SET BAR
AND CAP

POINT OF BEGINNING
SET BAR AND CAP

203.54'

N 39°13'44" W     140.58'

NORTH     140.58'SOUTH     140.58'EAST     140.58'WEST     140.58'

N 32°41'14" W     280.84'

NORTH     280.84'SOUTH     280.84'EAST     280.84'WEST     280.84'

N 45°46'13" W     336.64'

NORTH     336.64'SOUTH     336.64'EAST     336.64'WEST     336.64'

80.72'

99.70'

195.92'

6.52'

61.13'

61.23'

11.71'

57.68'

70.00'

74.90'

78.26'

LOT 404
7,285 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

LOT 405
7,255 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

LOT 406
7,354 sq.ft.
0.17 acres

LOT 409
8,015 sq.ft.
0.18 acres

LOT 347

1 O'CLOCK SUBDIVISION
PHASE 3

ENTRY NO. __________

850 SOUTH

858 SOUTH

864 SOUTH

872 SOUTH

880 SOUTH

888 SOUTH

906 SOUTH

916 SOUTH

924 SOUTH20' WATERLINE
EASEMENT

20.0'
WATERLINE
EASEMENT

2440.66'

S 49°08'25" W
     

114.17'

NORTH     114.17'SOUTH     114.17'EAST     114.17'WEST     114.17'20.
0'

WATERLIN
E

EASEMENT

PROPERTY LINE CURVE TABLE
CURVE

PC1

PC2

RADIUS

780.00'

720.00'

LENGTH

112.76'

164.41'

DELTA

8°16'57"

13°04'59"

BEARING

S36°43'06"E

S39°07'07"E

CHORD

112.66'

164.05'

CENTER LINE CURVE TABLE
CURVE

CL1

CL2

CL3

RADIUS

750.00'

750.00'

100.00'

LENGTH

171.26'

159.37'

79.52'

DELTA

13°04'59"

12°10'31"

45°33'42"

BEARING

N39°07'07"W

S38°39'53"E

N67°01'55"E

CHORD

170.88'

159.07'

77.44'

CURVE TABLE
CURVE

C1

C2

C3

C4

C5

C6

C7

C8

RADIUS

29.50'

29.50'

720.00'

720.00'

720.00'

720.00'

780.00'

780.00'

LENGTH

46.29'

46.38'

14.65'

72.00'

72.00'

5.75'

44.51'

68.25'

DELTA

89°54'41"

90°05'19"

1°09'58"

5°43'46"

5°43'46"

0°27'28"

3°16'09"

5°00'48"

BEARING

N0°42'16"W

S89°17'44"W

N45°04'38"W

N41°37'46"W

N35°53'59"W

N32°48'22"W

N34°12'42"W

N38°21'11"W

CHORD

41.69'

41.75'

14.65'

71.97'

71.97'

5.75'

44.50'

68.23'

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE
I, Douglas J. Kinsman, do hereby certify that I am a Professional Land Surveyor, and that I hold License No. 334575, in accordance
with Title 58, Chapter 22, of the Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors Act. I further certify that by authority of the owners I have
completed a survey of the property described on this subdivision plat in accordance with Section 17-23-17, have verified all
measurements, and have subdivided said tract of land into lots, together with easements, hereafter to be known as 1 o'clock
Subdivision Phase 4 and that the same has been correctly surveyed and monumented on the ground as shown on this plat.

BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

PROJECT  NUMBER :

DRAWN BY :

CHECKED BY :

MANAGER :

DATE :

SHEET
11575

7 OF 7

D. KINSMAN

M. SANDOVAL

T. HUSSEY

08/24/2022

FEE$ TOOELE COUNTY RECORDER

STATE OF UTAH, COUNTY OF TOOELE, RECORDED AND FILED AT THE

DATE:                                              TIME:                                             BOOK:                                            PAGE:

RECORDED #                                             

REQUEST OF :

TOOELE COUNTY RECORDER

TOOELE
169 North Main Street Unit 1
Tooele, Utah 84074
Phone: 435.843.3590
Fax: 435.578.0108

WWW.ENSIGNENG.COM

SALT LAKE CITY
Phone: 801.255.0529

LAYTON
Phone: 801.547.1100

CEDAR CITY
Phone: 435.865.1453

RICHFIELD
Phone: 435.896.2983

E N S I G N

OWNER'S DEDICATION AND CONSENT TO RECORD
Known all men by these present that we the undersigned are the owner(s) of the hereon described tract of land and hereby cause the same to
divided into lots together with easements as set forth hereafter to be known as:

The undersigned owner(s) hereby convey to Tooele City and to any and all public utility companies providing service to the hereon
described tract a perpetual, non-exclusive easement over the public utility and drainage easements shown on this plat, the same to be used
for drainage and for the installation, maintenance and operation of public utility service lines and facilities. The undersigned owner(s) also
hereby convey any other easements as shown to the parties indicated and for the purpose shown heron.

 
PR

OF
ESS I ONA L  L AND

 

SURVEYOR

HATU FO ETATS

DOUGLAS J
KINSMAN

No. 334575

LLC ACKNOWLEDGMENT
STATE OF UTAH
County of

On the               day of                                                        A.D., 20            ,                                                                                                       ,
                                                                                                                                                                                                              personally
appeared before me, the undersigned Notary public, in and for said County of                                                              in said State of Utah,
who after being duly sworn, acknowledged to me that  He/She/They signed the Owner's Dedication,               in number, freely and voluntarily
for  the purposes therein mentioned.

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:                                                                                  ,

                                                                                               RESIDING IN                                                             COUNTY.
NOTARY PUBLIC

CALL BLUESTAKES
@ 811 AT LEAST 48 HOURS
PRIOR TO THE
COMMENCEMENT OF  ANY
CONSTRUCTION.

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R PRELIMINARY PLAT

A parcel of land, situate in the West Half of Section 33, Township 3 South, Range 4 West, Salt Lake Base and Meridian, said parcel also
located in Tooele City Tooele County, Utah, more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at a point which is located North 89°31'21” East 2440.66 feet along the Quarter Section line to the Westerly line of Settlement
Canyon Road, from the West Quarter Corner of Section 33, Township 3 South, Range 4 West, Salt Lake Base and Meridian, and running:

thence South 32°34'38” East 104.75 feet along said Westerly line to an arc;
thence Southeasterly 112.76 feet along the arc of a 780.00-foot radius tangent curve to the left (center bears North 57°25'22” East and the long

chord bears South 36°43'06” East 112.66 feet through a central angle of 8°16'57”);
thence South 49°08'25” West 114.17 feet;
thence North 32°41'14” West 280.84 feet;
thence North 39°13'44” West 140.58 feet;
thence North 45°46'13” West 336.64 feet;
thence North 57°58'20” East 110.88 feet to said Westerly line;
thence South 45°39'37” East 304.52 feet;
thence Southeasterly 164.41 feet along the arc of a 720.00-foot radius tangent curve to the right (center bears South 44°20'23” West and the

long chord bears South 39°07'07” East 164.05 feet through a central angle of 13°04'59”);
thence South 32°34'38” East 54.01 feet, to the Point of Beginning.

Contains 80,418 square feet or 1.84 acres.

__________________________
Date
Douglas J Kinsman
License No. 334575

HORIZONTAL GRAPHIC SCALE
0

( IN FEET )
HORZ: 1 inch =        ft.40

40 20 40 80

LOCATED IN THE WEST HALF OF SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH,
RANGE 4 WEST, SALT LAKE BASE AND MERIDIAN,

TOOELE CITY, TOOELE COUNTY, UTAH

1 O'CLOCK HILL SUBDIVISION PHASE 4

DEVELOPER
SJ COMPANY

447 NORTH COOLEY STREET
GRANTSVILLE, UT 84029

801-349-0761

LOCATED IN THE WEST HALF OF SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH,
RANGE 4 WEST, SALT LAKE BASE AND MERIDIAN,

TOOELE CITY, TOOELE COUNTY, UTAH

1 O'CLOCK HILL SUBDIVISION PHASE 4

1 O'CLOCK HILL SUBDIVISION PHASE 4

LEGEND

ENSIGN ENG.
LAND SURV.

EXISTING STREET MONUMENT

PROPOSED STREET MONUMENT TO BE SET

SECTION CORNER

5/8"x24" REBAR WITH YELLOW PLASTIC CAP,
OR NAIL STAMPED "ENSIGN ENG. & LAND
SURV."

BOUNDARY LINE

ADJACENT PROPERTY LINE

SECTION LINE

CENTER LINE

EASEMENT LINE

RIGHT OF WAY LINE

ADJACENT RIGHT OF WAY LINE

TANGENT LINE

2643.98

N 89°36'39" E      197.30'

S 
0°

27
'50

" W
    

  2
64

4.2
2'

(M
ON

 T
O 

MO
N)

(M
ON

 T
O 

MO
N)

NORTH QUARTER
CORNER OF SECTION
33, TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH,
RANGE 4 WEST, SALT
LAKE BASE & MERIDIAN
(CALCULATED POSITION
ONLY)

SOUTH QUARTER
CORNER OF SECTION
33, TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH,
RANGE 4 WEST, SALT
LAKE BASE & MERIDIAN
(FOUND, DATED 1982)

EAST QUARTER
CORNER OF SECTION
33, TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH,
RANGE 4 WEST, SALT
LAKE BASE & MERIDIAN
(FOUND, DATED 1982)

In witness whereof I / we have hereunto set my / our hand this                  day of                                                         A.D., 20               .

By: TOOELE 90 LLC
     SHAUN JOHNSON, MANAGER

TOOELE }S.S.

SITE

SKYLINE DRIVE

700S

CO
LE

MA
N 

ST
RE

ET

900S

TEAD

TOOELE CITY

   VICINITY MAP   
NOT TO SCALE

WEST QUARTER
CORNER OF SECTION
33, TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH,
RANGE 4 WEST, SALT
LAKE BASE & MERIDIAN
(CALCULATED POSITION
ONLY)

WITNESS CORNER TO WEST
QUARTER CORNER OF SECTION 33,
TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH, RANGE 4
WEST, SALT LAKE BASE & MERIDIAN
(FOUND, DATED 2021)

25
.51

'

CENTER OF SECTION
33, TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH,
RANGE 4 WEST, SALT
LAKE BASE & MERIDIAN
(CALCULATED POSITION
ONLY)

WITNESS CORNER TO
NORTH QUARTER
CORNER OF SECTION
33, TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH,
RANGE 4 WEST, SALT
LAKE BASE & MERIDIAN
(FOUND, DATED 1982)

N 
0°

27
'50

" E
    

  2
64

6.9
2'

For
 R

ev
iew

09
/2

7/
20

23
  1

:3
7:

35
 P

M



COMM

COMM

CM

COMM

COMM

GV

COMM

COMM

COMM

COMM

COMM

COMM

COMM

COMM

CM

COMM

CM

COMM

COMM

CM

COMM

COMM

GV

COMM

COMM

COMM

COMM

COMM

COMM

COMM

COMM

CM

COMM

CM

SR-36

LOT 105

LOT 115

LOT 122

LOT 123

LOT 124

LOT 125

LOT 126

LOT 127

LOT 128

LOT 121

LOT 116

LOT 111LOT 120

LOT 119

LOT 118

LOT 117

LOT 101

LOT 129

LOT 102

LOT 103

LOT 104

LOT 109

LOT 106

LOT 107

LOT 108

LOT 110

LOT 112

LOT 113

LOT 114

LOT 234

LOT 343

LOT 233

LOT 232

LOT 231

LOT 348

LOT 347

LOT 346

LOT 345

LOT 344

LOT 342

LOT 227

LOT 228

LOT 229

LOT 230

LOT 301

LOT 302

LOT 303

LOT 304

LOT 305

LOT 306

LOT 307

LOT 308
LOT 309

LOT 310

LOT 341

LOT 340
LOT 339

LOT 206

LOT 207

LOT 208

LOT 209

LOT 210

LOT 211

LOT 212

LOT 213

LOT 215

LOT 214

LOT 205

LOT 223

LOT 216

LOT 224

LOT 217

LOT 225

LOT 218

LOT 226

LOT 219

LOT 220

LOT 221

LOT 222
LOT 239

LOT 238

LOT 237

LOT 236

LOT 235

LOT 242

LOT 241

LOT 240

LOT 326

LOT 317LOT 315
LOT 314

LOT 313

LOT 334
LOT 333

LOT 332
LOT 331

LOT 330
LOT 329

LOT 328
LOT 327

LOT 338
LOT 337

LOT 336
LOT 335

LOT 324
LOT 325

LOT 402

LOT 401

LOT 407

LOT 409

LOT 323LOT 321
LOT 320

LOT 311

LOT 319
LOT 318

LOT 312

LOT 316

LOT 322
LOT 405

LOT 404

LOT 406

LOT 403

LOT 408

TO
P CLO

CK DRIVENO TI
ME DRIVE

3 O'CLOCK DR

3 O'CLOCK DR

COLEMAN
STREET 1120 SOUTH STREET

STATE HWY 36

HILLSIDE DRIVE

1025 SOUTH STREET

HILLSIDE DRIVE

900 SOUTH

STATE HWY 36

HILLSIDE DRIVE

SETTLEMENT CANYON ROAD

HERITAGE HILL

DRIVE

900 SOUTH

STATE HWY 36
SETTLERS

COURT

TRAPPERS

POND

COURT

GOLD

DUST

COURT

BOOT

HILL
CIRCLE

PARCEL A
RETENTION

POND 1

PARCEL C
RETENTION

POND 3

PARCEL D
RETENTION

POND 5

MID MOUNTAIN ROAD

PARCEL B
RETENTION

POND 2

LOT 202

LOT 243

LOT 203

LOT 204

LOT 201

RETENTION
POND 4

CHECKED BYDRAWN BY

PROJECT NUMBER

FOR:

PROJECT MANAGER

PRINT DATE

PHONE:

CONTACT:

TOOELE
169 N. Main Street, Unit 1
Tooele, UT. 84074
Phone: 435.843.3590

SALT LAKE CITY
Phone: 801.255.0529

LAYTON
Phone: 801.547.1100

CEDAR CITY
Phone: 435.865.1453

RICHFIELD
Phone: 435.896.2983

WWW.ENSIGNENG.COM

E N S I G N
THE STANDARD IN ENGINEERING

11575

1 O
'CL

OC
K 

HI
LL

 SU
BD

IVI
SIO

N

ST
AT

E R
OA

D 
36

TO
OE

LE
, U

T 8
40

74

SJ COMPANY
447 NORTH COOLEY STREET
GRANTSVILLE, UT 84029

SHAUN JOHNSON
801-349-0761

J. CLEGG

J. CLEGGJ. CID

9/27/23

CALL BLUESTAKES
@ 811 AT LEAST 48 HOURS
PRIOR TO THE
COMMENCEMENT OF  ANY
CONSTRUCTION.

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

BENCHMARK
SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 32,
TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH, RANGE 4 WEST
SALT LAKE BASE AND MERIDIAN, TOOELE
CITY, TOOELE COUNTY, UTAH

ELEV =  5703.49'

HORIZONTAL GRAPHIC SCALE
0

( IN FEET )
HORZ: 1 inch =        ft.150

150 75 150 300

C-100

OVERALL SITE PLAN

1. ALL WORK TO COMPLY WITH THE GOVERNING AGENCY'S STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

2. ALL IMPROVEMENTS MUST COMPLY WITH ADA STANDARDS AND RECOMMENDATIONS.

3. SEE LANDSCAPE/ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR CONCRETE MATERIAL, COLOR, FINISH, AND SCORE PATTERNS
THROUGHOUT SITE.

4. ALL PAVEMENT MARKINGS SHALL CONFORM TO THE LATEST EDITION OF THE M.U.T.C.D. (MANUAL ON UNIFORM
TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES).

5. ALL SURFACE IMPROVEMENTS DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE RESTORED OR REPLACED,
INCLUDING TREES AND DECORATIVE SHRUBS, SOD, FENCES, WALLS AND STRUCTURES, WHETHER OR NOT
THEY ARE SPECIFICALLY SHOWN ON THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.

6. NOTIFY ENGINEER OF ANY DISCREPANCIES IN DESIGN OR STAKING BEFORE PLACING CONCRETE OR ASPHALT.

7. THE CONTRACTOR IS TO PROTECT AND PRESERVE ALL EXISTING IMPROVEMENTS, UTILITIES, AND SIGNS, ETC.
UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED ON THESE PLANS.

GENERAL NOTES

For
 R

ev
iew

09
/2

7/
20

23
  1

:3
7:

35
 P

M













TOOELE CITY CORPORATION 
 

RESOLUTION 2023-90 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL CONSENTING TO 
MAYOR WINN’S APPOINTMENTS OF ERIC NIVEN, CRYSTAL 
LARMORE, AND JULIE BROUGH TO THE LIBRARY BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Tooele City Council created the library board of directors by 
Ordinance 1989-13, and thereby ordained, among other things, that board members 
would serve three-year terms, that members cannot serve more than two full terms in 
succession, and that the terms are to be staggered such that two expire one year, three 
expire the next year, and three expire the third year; and,  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council’s consent is required to the Mayor’s appointments of 
the Library Board members pursuant to Tooele City Code Section 2-1-3; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor, with the support of the Library Director, wishes to appoint 
Eric Niven, Crystal Larmore, and Julie Brough to the Library Board of Directors; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, they will begin their new full terms as shown in the table below; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds it to be in the best interest of Tooele City to 
consent to the appointments: 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL that 
consent is hereby given to Mayor Debra E. Winn’s appointments of Eric Niven, Crystal 
Larmore, and Julie Brough to the Library Board of Directors to serve three-year terms, as 
follows: 
 

 

 

 

 

 



Board 
Members 

Original 
Appointment 

Original 
Expiration 

Present 
Appointment 

Present Term 
Expiration 

Vacant    06-30-2024 

Melody Barnett 5-18-2022 06-30-2024 5-18-2022 06-30-2024 

Berna Sloan 04-06-2022 06-30-2025 04-06-2022 06-30-2025 

Kristalle Ford 04-06-2022 06-30-2025 04-06-2022 06-30-2025 

Vacant    06-30-2025 

Eric Niven 10-18-2023 06-30-2026 10-18-2023 06-30-2026 

Crystal 
Larmore 10-18-2023 06-30-2026 10-18-2023 06-30-2026 

Julie Brough 10-18-2023 06-30-2026 10-18-2023 06-30-2026 

Tony Graf (City 
Council) 01-01-2020    

 
 The appointee is authorized to exercise the powers specifically delegated to 
members of the library board by the Tooele City Council, as declared in the Tooele City 
Code. 
 
 This resolution shall be effective on the date of passage by authority of the Tooele 
City Charter. 
 
 Passed this _____ day of _________________, 2023. 
 

 

 

 

 



TOOELE CITY COUNCIL 
(For)                      (Against) 
 
_____________________________  _____________________________ 
 
 
_____________________________  _____________________________ 
 
 
_____________________________  _____________________________ 
 
 
_____________________________  _____________________________ 
 
 
_____________________________  _____________________________ 
 
 
ABSTAINING: ____________________________________ 
 

MAYOR of TOOELE CITY 
(For)            (Against) 
 
 
 
_____________________________  _____________________________ 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
Michelle Y. Pitt, City Recorder 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
Roger Evans Baker, City Attorney 
 



TOOELE CITY CORPORATION 
 

RESOLUTION 2023-91 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL AMENDING THE TOOELE CITY 
FEE SCHEDULE TO ADD A BULK CULINARY WATER FEE FOR LIMITED 
COMMERCIAL CONSTRUCTION. 
 
 WHEREAS, Tooele City Code §1-26-1 authorizes the City Council to establish City 
fees by resolution for activities regulated by the City and services provided by the City; 
and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Utah Code §10-3-718 authorizes the City Council to exercise 
administrative powers, such as establishing city fees and regulating the use of city 
property, by resolution; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, under the Council-Mayor form of municipal government, established 
and governed by the Tooele City Charter (2006) and Utah Code §10-3b-201 et seq., the 
Mayor exercises all executive and administrative powers; however, it has been the 
practice of Tooele City for all fees proposed by the Mayor and City Administration to be 
approved by the City Council; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Administration suggests that allowing commercial 
construction to access culinary water from fire hydrants for dust control and other 
construction needs is in the best interest of the City’s economic development program, 
but that the use of bulk culinary water should be limited to commercial construction and 
regulated by written administrative policy signed by the Mayor; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Administration recommends that the bulk culinary water fees 
be as follows:  

• Fire Hydrant Meter Deposit - $1,500 
• Daily Meter Rental Rate - $75 
• Water Usage Cost - $6 per 1,000 gallons 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL that 
the Fee Schedule is hereby amended to include the bulk culinary water fees indicated 
above, and that the City Administration is to promulgate a written policy, signed by the 
Mayor, regulating the limited use of bulk culinary water for commercial construction. 
 

This Resolution shall become effective upon passage, without further publication, 
by authority of the Tooele City Charter. 
    
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Resolution is passed by the Tooele City Council this 
____ day of _______________, 2023. 
  



TOOELE CITY COUNCIL 
(For) (Against) 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
ABSTAINING:  ___________________________________________ 
 

MAYOR OF TOOELE CITY 
(Approved) (Disapproved) 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Michelle Y. Pitt, City Recorder 
        
 
           S E A L 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form: ___________________________ 
    Roger Evans Baker, City Attorney 
 
 



TOOELE CITY CORPORATION 
 

RESOLUTION 2023-89 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING A CONTRACT WITH 
BLACK & MCDONALD FOR WORK ON CITY-OWNED STREET LIGHTS. 
 
 WHEREAS, by Ordinance 2016-02, approved on January 20, 2016, the City 
Council created an enterprise fund and fee for the maintenance, repair, and replacement 
of city-owned street lights; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the recitals of Ordinance 2016-02 are incorporated herein; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, on August 3, 2016, the City Council passed Resolution 2016-36 
approving a contract with Black & McDonald for maintenance, repair, replacement, and 
installation of City-owned street lights (the “Work”); and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to continue the services of Black & McDonald for the 
Work, to include inventory control and component storage, under the terms, conditions, 
and pricing contained in the professional services contract attached as Exhibit A; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, competitive bidding is not required for this contract under State law or 
City procurement policies; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Work is anticipated to cost approximately $200,000 annually, 
depending on the scope of the Work, annual enterprise fund revenues, and annual budget 
appropriations; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Code requires contracts of $30,000 and above to be approved 
by the City Council; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, performing the Work is in the best interest of Tooele City and its 
residents and businesses: 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL that 
the professional services contract, attached as Exhibit A, with Custom Lighting Services, 
LLC, doing business as Black & McDonald LLC, is hereby approved, and that the Mayor 
is hereby authorized to sign the contract. 
  

This Resolution shall become effective upon passage, without further publication, 
by authority of the Tooele City Charter. 
    
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Resolution is passed by the Tooele City Council this 
____ day of _______________, 2023. 
  



TOOELE CITY COUNCIL 
(For) (Against) 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
ABSTAINING:  ___________________________________________ 
 

MAYOR OF TOOELE CITY 
(Approved) (Disapproved) 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Michelle Y. Pitt, City Recorder 
        
 
           S E A L 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form: ___________________________ 
    Roger Evans Baker, City Attorney 
  



 
 
 
 

Exhibit A 
 
 
 

Professional Services Contract 



























































TOOELE CITY CORPORATION 
 

ORDINANCE 2023-41 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF TOOELE CITY AMENDING TOOELE CITY CODE SECTION 10-
3-30 REGARDING THE REMOVAL OF ILLEGALLY PARKED CARS. 
 
 WHEREAS, Utah Constitution, Article XI, Section 5 directly confers upon Utah’s 
charter cities, including Tooele City, “the authority to exercise all powers relating to 
municipal affairs, and to adopt and enforce within its limits, local police, sanitary and 
similar regulations not in conflict with the general law”; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Utah Code Section 10-8-84 enables Tooele City to “pass all 
ordinances and rules, and make all regulations . . . as are necessary and proper to provide 
for the safety and preserve the health, and promote the prosperity, improve the morals, 
peace and good order, comfort, and convenience of the city and its inhabitants, and for 
the protection of property in the city”; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Utah Code Chapter 41-6a Part 14 regulates the parking of vehicles 
on highways, including municipal public rights-of-way; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, UCA Section 41-6a-1405 addresses peace officer authority to remove 
illegally and unsafely parked vehicles, and Section 41-6a-1408 addresses peace officer 
authority to remove abandoned vehicles; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Tooele City Code Chapter 10-3 regulates the parking of vehicles on 
the public rights-of-way, identifies unlawful parking, addresses police officer authority to 
remove unattended vehicles, and imposes civil penalties for parking violations; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, TCC Section 10-3-30 addresses police officer authority to remove 
unattended vehicles, closely following UCA Sections 41-6a-1405 and -1408; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that TCC Chapter 10-3 prohibits parking in 
certain locations and circumstances precisely because those locations and 
circumstances are unsafe to park in and pose a very real risk of harm to life, health, and 
property, as well as the interruption of important government services—otherwise such 
parking would not be prohibited; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the regulations in TCC Chapter 10-3 reflect 
sound public policies designed to protect life, health, and property, and not revenue 
generation; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that authorizing police officers to remove 
illegally parked and unattended vehicles is reasonably necessary to protect the public 
health and safety, and to protect property, including the illegally parked vehicles 
themselves; and, 



 
 WHEREAS, the City Council agrees with the City Administration and Police Chief 
that, where safety allows, police officers should make reasonable attempts to notify 
registered owners of their illegally parked vehicles, giving the owners an opportunity to 
remove the vehicles before the officers do: 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL that 
Tooele City Code Section 10-3-30 regarding Moving Illegally Parked Vehicles - Police 
Authority is hereby amended, as shown in Exhibit A. 
 

This Ordinance shall become effective upon passage, without further publication, 
by authority of the Tooele City Charter. 
    
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Ordinance is passed by the Tooele City Council this 
____ day of _______________, 2023.  



TOOELE CITY COUNCIL 
(For) (Against) 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
ABSTAINING:  ___________________________________________ 
 

MAYOR OF TOOELE CITY 
(Approved) (Disapproved) 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Michelle Y. Pitt, City Recorder 
        
 
           S E A L 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form: ___________________________ 
    Roger Evans Baker, City Attorney 
  



 
 
 
 

Exhibit A 
 
 
 

Proposed TCC Section 10-3-30 



                                                                   (April 7, 2023)10-8

parked vehicle shall be parked in the direction of lawful
traffic movement with an unobstructed width of the street
opposite the standing vehicle left for the free passage of
other vehicles, leaving a clear view of such stopped
vehicles.

(2) This Section shall not apply to the driver of any
vehicle which is disabled while on a street in such a
manner and to such an extent that it is impossible to avoid
stopping and temporarily leaving the disabled vehicle in
that position.
(2019-31, 12-04-2019) (Ord. 2019-11, 04-17-2019) (Ord.
1990-08, 06-14-1990)

10-3-25. Stopping Standing or Parking Prohibited in
Certain Areas.

(1) No person shall stop, stand, or park a vehicle,
except when necessary to avoid conflict with other traffic
or in compliance with law or the directions of a police
officer or traffic-control device, in any of the following
places:

(a) on a sidewalk or curb;
(b) in front or within five feet of a private

driveway, to include the drive approach;
(c) within an intersection;
(d) within five feet of a fire hydrant, as

measured in both directions along the street or highway
curbline or right-of-way property line from the line
extending from the center of the hydrant to the curbline or
property line at its nearest point;

(e) on a crosswalk;
(f) within 20 feet of a crosswalk at an

intersection;
(g) within 30 feet upon the approach of any

flashing beacon or traffic-control device located at the
side of a roadway;

(h) between a safety zone and the adjacent curb,
or within 30 feet of points on the curb immediately
opposite the ends of a safety zone, unless authorized signs
or markings indicate a different length;

(i) within 50 feet of the nearest rail of a railroad
crossing;

(j) within 20 feet of the driveway entrance to
any fire station, and on the side of a street opposite the
entrance when properly signposted;

(k) alongside or opposite any street excavation
or obstruction, when stopping, standing, or parking would
obstruct or be hazardous to traffic;

(l) upon any bridge or other elevated structure
upon a street;

(m) where official signs or traffic markings
prohibit stopping, standing, or parking;

(n) in any public park, playground, recreational
area, or grounds of any public buildings other than on the
roads or parking lots provided for public parking and then
only in accordance with provisions of any signs, officially
installed by direction of the city;

(o) on any footpath or trail in any park,
recreational area, or playground;

(p) within a fire lane, as designated by Tooele
City, whether on public or private property;

(q) on any median or island, or on any dividing
section of a street;

(r) on any street or alley less than 20 feet wide;
or,

(s) on the south or east side of any street or
alley where the width is over 20 feet, but less than 30 feet,
unless otherwise directed by traffic-control devices.

(2) No person shall stop, stand, or park a vehicle in
any manner or position contrary to any sign or marking
officially placed by direction of the City.

(3) No person shall move a vehicle under such
person's control into any such prohibited area, or upon
any area not designated for vehicular travel or parking.
(2019-31, 12-04-2019) (Ord. 2019-11, 04-17-2019) (Ord.
1990-08, 06-14-1990)

10-3-25.1. Large Vehicle Parking.
Vehicles defined in Section 10-2-7(1):
(1) are prohibited from parking on public rights-of-

way except those routes identified in Section 10-2-7(3);
and,

(2) shall comply with the provisions of this Chapter.
(2019-31, 12-04-2019) 

10-3-26. Parking between Curb and Property Line
Prohibited.

No person shall stop, stand, or park any vehicle upon
any portion of a public right-of-way between the curb
lines and the adjacent property lines.
(2019-31, 12-04-2019) (Ord. 2019-11, 04-17-2019) (Ord.
1990-08, 06-14-1990)

10-3-27. Using Public Rights-of-way for Storage
Prohibited.

No person shall park a vehicle, boat, trailer, motor
home, camper, recreational vehicle, motorcycle, or other
item upon any public right-of-way for a period of time
longer than 48 hours.
(2019-31, 12-04-2019) (Ord. 2019-11, 04-17-2019) (Ord.
1990-08, 06-14-1990)

10-3-28. Presumption of Liability.
The fact that a vehicle which is parked in violation of

the provisions of this Chapter is registered in the name of
a person shall be sufficient to constitute a presumption
that such person was in control of the vehicle at the time
of its parking.
(2019-31, 12-04-2019) (Ord. 2019-11, 04-17-2019) (Ord.
1990-08, 06-14-1990)

10-3-29. Parking Violation - Owner Responsibility.
Whenever any vehicle is parked in violation of any of

the provisions of this Chapter, the person in whose name
the vehicle is registered shall be prima facie responsible
and strictly liable for the violation and associated penalty.
(Ord. 2019-11, 04-17-2019) (Ord. 1990-08, 06-14-1990)

10-3-30. Moving Illegally Parked Vehicles - Police
Authority.

(1) All vehicles parked in violation of this Chapter
are illegally parked and are considered to be unsafely
parked and to obstruct the normal and safe movement of
emergency response vehicles (including police vehicles,
fire apparatus, ambulance, etc.), city service vehicles



                                                                   (April 7, 2023)10-8.1

(including snow plows, street sweepers, garbage trucks,
etc.), as well as bicycles and pedestrians.  Therefore, aA
police officer is hereby authorized to remove or caused to
be removed to a place of safety any abandoned vehicle
and any unattended vehicle stopped, parked, or left
standing on a street or public right-of-way in violation of
this Chapter.  

(2) Before removing a vehicle that is not an
immediate hazard to persons or property, a police officer
will make a reasonable attempt to contact the registered
owner to request the owner’s immediate removal of the
vehicle.in a position or under circumstances as follows:

(1) the vehicle obstructs the normal and safe
movement of vehicular, bicycle, or pedestrian traffic;

(2) the vehicle obstructs the normal and safe
movement of authorized emergency vehicles and City
service vehicles, including snow plows, in the
performance of official duties;

(3) the vehicle otherwise creates a risk of danger to
persons or damage to property; and,

(4) the vehicle is abandoned or displays common
indicia of abandonment.
(Ord. 2019-11, 04-17-2019) (Ord. 1990-08, 06-14-1990)

10-3-31. Violations - Penalties.
(1) A violation of any provision of this Chapter shall

be a civil offense.
(2) Any person violating any provision of this

Chapter shall be liable for a $50 civil penalty for each
violation.  Any penalty assessed under this Chapter may
be in addition to such other penalties as may be provided
in this Title.

(3) Any penalty that is not paid within 15 calendar
days from the date of receipt of notice shall be increased
to $100.

(4) As used in this Chapter, "receipt of notice"
means any of the following:

(a) affixing a notice to the vehicle alleged to
have been in violation; 

(b) affixing a notice in a conspicuous place at
the vehicle owner’s address as indicated on vehicle
registration records;

(c) delivering a notice to the owner or driver of
the vehicle in violation;

(d) delivering a notice by U.S. mail to the
vehicle owner’s address as indicated on vehicle
registration records.  Deliveries by U.S. mail are
presumed received three days after posting.
(Ord. 2023-13, 04-05-2023) (2019-31, 12-04-2019) (Ord.
2019-11, 04-17-2019) (Ord. 1990-08, 06-14-1990)

10-3-32. Parking Violations - Appeal Procedure.
Appeal of civil penalties imposed under this Chapter

shall be to the Administrative Hearing Officer under
Chapter 1-28 of this Code.
(Ord. 2019-11, 04-17-2019) (Ord. 2013-07, 04-17-2013)
(Ord. 2006-02, 01-04-2006)  (Ord. 1990-08, 06-14-1990)

10-3-33. Using Parking Lots and Vacant Lots to
Display Used Vehicles for Sale.

It shall be unlawful for the owner of a vehicle or boat,
or for any other person, to park, cause to be parked, or

allow to be parked the vehicle or boat on a vacant lot or
parking lot owned by another person for the purpose of
displaying the vehicle or boat for sale unless the owner or
lessee of the property on which it is parked has given
authorization for the vehicle or boat to be so parked.
(Ord. 2019-11, 04-17-2019) (Ord. 1994-29, 07-06-1994)



































 

Page | 1  
 

Recorder’s Office 
 

Tooele City Council and the Tooele City Redevelopment Agency  
Work Meeting Minutes 

 
Date: Wednesday, October 4, 2023 
Time: 5:30 p.m. 
Place: Tooele City Hall, Council Chambers 
90 North Main Street, Tooele, Utah 
 
City Council Members Present: 
Maresa Manzione  
David McCall 
Ed Hansen 
Tony Graf 
Justin Brady 
 
City Employees Present: 
Mayor Debbie Winn 
Adrian Day, Police Department Chief 
Roger Baker, City Attorney 
Shannon Wimmer, Finance Director 
Michelle Pitt, City Recorder  
Holly Potter, Deputy City Recorder 
Jamie Grandpre, Public Works Director 
Paul Hansen, City Engineer 
Jared Stewart, Economic Development Director 
 
Minutes prepared by Katherin Yei 
 
1. Open City Council Meeting 
Chairman Brady called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 
 
2. Roll Call 
Maresa Manzione, Present  
David McCall, Present  
Tony Graf, Present  
Ed Hansen, Present  
Justin Brady, Present 
  
3. Mayor’s Report 
Mayor Winn reported on the following: 
UDOT has public comment open for the Midvalley Highway until October 10th. 
The treatment plant and the lakes at the golf course have been treated 2-3 times per year for 
mosquitoes. The cost is $11,000 to treat those areas. To join the Tooele Valley Abatement 
district would cost $44.22 per year per house hold.  
 



 

Page | 2  
 

Recorder’s Office 
 

4. Council Member’s Report 
The Council Members reported on the events they attended during the week.  
 
5. Discussion Items 
 
A. Proposed Amendment to Tooele City Code 7-14, Table 5, of the In-Fill Overlay Zones 
Regarding Minimum Lot Sizes  
Presented by Andrew Aagard, Community Development Director 
 
Mr. Aagard presented an amendment to Tooele City Code in regards to the in-fill overlay zones 
regarding minimum lot sizes. In-fill overlay encompasses two areas in the downtown area, 
typically in the older section of town. Reductions include building setbacks, total lot coverage, 
water rights, and lots sizes. It is there to encourage development on older lots that have 
infrastructure. The applicant would like to subdivide the lot he owns in section B. He would not 
be creating a unique situation for this area, but would match many of the surrounding properties. 
He is proposing language be added to City Code 7-14, Table 5.   
 
The City Council asked the following questions: 
What are the safety issues for allowing a property closer to another? 
How would this affect water within the City? 
Does the ADU specify the size of the structure? 
 
Mr. Aagard addressed the Council’s questions. There may not be a large impact to other 
neighboring properties. The larger the property gets, there is a small increase in the allowed 
homes. Anything more than one lot would require them to bring their own water rights. They 
would still have to provide their own water. Staff would anticipate an increase in density on 
those properties.  
 
Mr. Baker addressed the Council. This could be an opportunity to create a detached dwelling 
unit. They would not have to pay water rights and impact fees would be cut in half. A duplex 
does require 1400 square feet in R1-7. The ADU does have to be smaller than the original home.  
 
The Council would like to see this item move forward.  
 
B. Ordinance 2023-40 An Ordinance of Tooele City Amending Tooele City Code Section 
11-1-12 Regarding Camping 
Presented by Adrian Day, Police Chief 
 
Chief Day presented an ordinance to amend the Tooele City Code Section 11-1-12 regarding 
camping. Health and safety concerns are rising with the homeless populations moving in. The 
definition of camping can be improved. The definition of camping will include addressing 
vehicles, bedding material, and establishing a temporary or permanent resident. Chief Day 
shared examples of an increase safety hazards from people camping in public areas.  
 
 



 

Page | 3  
 

Recorder’s Office 
 

 
 
Mr. Baker addressed the Council. This is based on the Ogden City ordinance. The City does have 
an ordinance that refers to living in an RV on private property.   
 
The Council asked the following questions: 
What is the penalty? 
 
Chief Day addressed the Council’s question. It is a class C misdemeanor.  
 
The City Council is in favor on this item to help prevent homeless camps and public safety 
issues.  
 
6. Closed Meeting - Litigation, Property Acquisition, and/or Personnel 
There is a closed meeting for property acquisition and litigation.  
 
Council Member Manzione motioned for a closed meeting. Council member Graf Seconded. 
The vote was as follows: Council Member Hansen, “Aye,” Council Member Graf, “Aye,” 
Council Member Manzione, “Aye,” Council Member McCall, “Aye,” and Chairman Brady, 
“Aye.” The motion passed.  
 
The closed meeting began at 6:14 p.m.   
 
Those in attendance were Mayor Debbie Winn, Council Member Manzione, Council Chairman 
Brady, Council Member McCall, Council Member Hansen, Council Member Graf, Michelle Pitt, 
Shannon Wimmer, Paul Hansen, Roger Baker, Chief Adrian Day, Andrew Aagard, and Jared 
Stewart. 
 
7. Adjourn 
Chairman Brady adjourned the meeting at 6:37 p.m.  
 
 
The content of the minutes is not intended, nor are they submitted, as a verbatim transcription of 
the meeting. These minutes are a brief overview of what occurred at the meeting.  
 
Approved this ____ day of October, 2023 
 
_____________________________________________  
Justin Brady, City Council Chair 
 



 

Page | 1  
 

Recorder’s Office 
 

Tooele City Council Business Meeting Minutes 
 

Date: Wednesday, October 4, 2023 
Time: 7:00 p.m. 
Place: Tooele City Hall, Council Chambers 
90 North Main Street, Tooele, Utah 
 
City Council Members Present: 
Ed Hansen 
Maresa Manzione 
Tony Graf 
Dave McCall 
Justin Brady 
 
City Employees Present: 
Mayor Debbie Winn 
Adrian Day, Police Department Chief 
Roger Baker, City Attorney 
Shannon Wimmer, Finance Director 
Michelle Pitt, City Recorder  
Holly Potter, Deputy City Recorder 
Jamie Grandpre, Public Works Director 
Paul Hansen, City Engineer 
Jared Stewart, Economic Development Director 
 
Minutes prepared by Katherin Yei 
 
Chairman Brady called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
1. Pledge of Allegiance 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Council Member Hansen.  

 
2. Roll Call  
Tony Graf, Present 
Ed Hansen, Present  
Maresa Manzione, Present 
Dave McCall, Present  
Justin Brady, Present  
 
3. Mayor’s Youth Recognition Award 
Mayor Winn and Chief Day presented the Mayor’s Youth recognition award to the following: 
Yazin Aldolani  
Riote Lynn  
Maizy Ray 
 



 

Page | 2  
 

Recorder’s Office 
 

4. Domestic Violence Awareness Month Proclamation  
Mayor Winn proclaimed October Domestic Violence Awareness month.  
 
Wendy Stilson presented the shelter stats and help the shelter provides to victims.  
 
5. Public Comment Period 
Ms. Pitt presented a thank you gift for Holly Potter’s work within the City.   
 
6. Request for Deviation from Design Standards for the Towns at Mountain View 
Presented by Andrew Aagard, Community Development Director 
 
Mr. Aagard presented a request for deviation from design standards for the Towns at Mountain 
View located near Goffer Foods. The applicant must demonstrate certain findings to qualify. The 
applicant would like to construct the elevation as presented to the Council. They would like to 
reduce the stone to 20%.  
 
The City Council asked the following questions: 
Is the applicant against waiting until the code is updated? 
 
The Council would like to maintain the standard throughout the City.  
 
Mr. Aagard addressed the Council’s questions. The applicant would like an answer tonight.  
 
Mr. War addressed the Council. They are buying the property from the previous owners. The 
cost to install brick is twice the amount. There is a significant amount of stone which is subject 
to deteriorate, creating a future problem. The applicant is wanting to keep the cost low for 
buyers. Costs continue to go up, they would like to move forward now.  
 
Council Member Graf motioned to deny the request for Deviation from Design Standards 
for the Towns at Mountain View. Council Member Manzione seconded the motion. The vote 
was as follows: Council Member Hansen, “Aye,” Council Member Graf, “Aye,” Council 
Member Manzione, “Aye,” Council Member McCall, “Aye,” and Chairman Brady, “Aye.” The 
motion passed.  
 
7. Ordinance 2023-40 An Ordinance of Tooele City Amending Tooele City Code Section 11-
1-12 Regarding Camping 
Presented by Adrian Day, Police Chief 
 
Chief Day presented an ordinance to amend the Tooele City Code Section 11-1-12 regarding 
camping. Health and safety concerns are rising with the homeless populations moving in. The 
definition of camping can be improved including definition of what camping is including but not 
limited to addressing vehicles, bedding material, and establishing a temporary or permanent 
resident. Chief Day shared examples during the work meeting of an increase safety hazards from 
people camping in public areas. This was modeled off the Ogden City ordinance.  
 



 

Page | 3  
 

Recorder’s Office 
 

Council Member Manzione motioned to Ordinance 2023-40 An Ordinance of Tooele City 
Amending Tooele City Code Section 11-1-12 Regarding Camping. Council Member McCall 
seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Council Member Hansen, “Aye,” Council 
Member Graf, “Aye,” Council Member Manzione, “Aye,” Council Member McCall, “Aye,” and 
Chairman Brady, “Aye.” The motion passed.  
 
8. Resolution 2023-86 A Resolution of the Tooele City Council Authorizing Payment of a 
Fee-in-Lieu of Water Rights Conveyance for the Microtel Moda Hotel Project 
Presented by Jared Stewart, Economic Development Director 
 
Mr. Stewart presented a payment fee-in-lieu of water rights conveyance for the Microtel Moda 
Hotel project. The applicant needs more water than what was originally estimated. They are 
requesting an additional 1.24 acre/feet of water for the development. This is for primarily indoor 
water use.  
 
Council Member McCall motioned to approve Resolution 2023-86 with the correction as 
stated.  Council Member Hansen seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Council 
Member Hansen, “Aye,” Council Member Graf, “Aye,” Council Member Manzione, “Aye,” 
Council Member McCall, “Aye,” and Chairman Brady, “Aye.” The motion passed. 
 
9. Invoices & Purchase Orders   
Ms. Pitt presented the following invoices: 
 
Returning funds to Tooele County for grant funds from COG in the amount of $37,536.11 
Rehrig Pacific for 702, 95-gallon garbage cans in the amount of $45,544.64 
Tooele County Sheriff’s office for 3rd quarter dispatch fees in the amount $82,842 
 
The Council will allow the recorder’s office to approve the Tooele County Sherriff’s invoice 
without bringing it to the Council every time.  
 
Council Member Hansen motioned to approve the invoices. Council Member McCall 
seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Council Member Hansen, “Aye,” Council 
Member Graf, “Aye,” Council Member Manzione, “Aye,” Council Member McCall, “Aye,” and 
Chairman Brady, “Aye.” The motion passed. 
 
10. Minutes 
There are no changes to the minutes 
 
Chairman Hansen motioned to approve Minutes. Council Member McCall seconded the 
motion. The vote was as follows: Council Member Hansen, “Aye,” Council Member Graf, 
“Aye,” Council Member Manzione, “Aye,” Council Member McCall, “Aye,” and Chairman 
Brady, “Aye.” The motion passed. 
 
11. Adjourn 
Chairman Brady adjourned the meeting at 7:44pm.  



 

Page | 4  
 

Recorder’s Office 
 

 
The content of the minutes is not intended, nor are they submitted, as a verbatim transcription of 
the meeting. These minutes are a brief overview of what occurred at the meeting.  
 
Approved this ___ day of October, 2023 
 
_____________________________________________  
Justin Brady, City Council Chair 
 
 
 


	CC Agenda
	2023-37 Downtown Element to General Plan
	2023-37 Downtown Element to General Plan
	Downtown Element_10-2-23

	2023-42 Jalbert In-Fill Overlay Text Amendment ORDINANCE
	Jalbert Ordinance Amendment STAFF REPORT 100423.pdf
	STAFF REPORT


	Prelim Subdivision One O'Clock Hill Staff Report 101223
	10-05-23
	One O'Clock Hill Preliminary Subdivision STAFF REPORT 100523.pdf
	STAFF REPORT



	2023-90 Appointments - Library Board
	2023-91 Fee Schedule - Bulk Culinary Water
	2023-89 Black  McDonald street light maintenance
	2023-89 Black  McDonald street light maintenance
	2023-89 Attachment

	2023-41 Police Officer Authority to Tow
	2023-41 Police Officer Authority to Tow
	2023-41 Exhibit A - Amendment

	2023-87 Central States Payment of a Fee in Lieu
	2023-88 Water Rights Fee-in-lieu for PID (the Kitchen Pickleball)
	WorkMeeting 10-4-23
	Business Meeting 10-4-23



